MOBI E Lt

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. \
ELERABR A A ‘

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) ,
(REISRBEMARINERAA) i
Stock Code R 5% : 947

 — —



Corporate Profile
DA

MOBI Development Co,, Ltd. (the “Company") was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability on |6 December 2002. The shares of
the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 7 December 2009 (Stock Code: 947).

We operate through our subsidiaries MOBI Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(‘MOBI Shenzhen"), MOBI Telecommunications Technologies (Jian) Co., Ltd. (“MOBI
Jian"), MOBI Technologies (Xi'an) Co., Ltd. (“MOBI Xian"), MOBI Technology (Hong
Kong) Limited (‘MOBI HK"), MOBI Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., Shenzhen MOBI
Shiye Development Co., Ltd, Xian Shengrong Communication Technologies Co., Ltd,,
Shenzhen Shengyuzhihui Network Technology Co,, Ltd, Jian Jinshengjing Technology Co.,
Ltd., Wuhan MOBI Technology Co,, Ltd, Shenzhen MOBI Network Communication Co.,
Ltd. and Xi'an MOBI Antenna Technologies Engineering Co,, Ltd.

We are one of the few one-stop providers of wireless communication antennas and base
station Radio Frequency (“RF") subsystems in China. Our business consists of the design,
manufacture, marketing and sale of antennas, base station RF subsystem and solutions
that are the required components of mobile communication coverage systems, including,
wireless access systems (WiFi and PHS), 2G (GSM and CDMA), 3G (TD-SCDMA,
CDMA 2000, W-CDMA and WiMax), 4G (TD-LTE and FDD-LTE), 5G, MIMO Antenna,
satellite communication and microwave transmission networks. We sell our products to
network operators in China and overseas directly for deployment into the networks they
are constructing and operating. We also sell our products to some of the world's leading
wireless network solution providers who incorporate our products into their wireless

coverage solutions, such as their proprietary base stations, which they then sell to network

operators worldwide.

We are committed to providing quality and sophisticated products and building long term

relationships with our customers.
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Corporate Information
NEEH

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY'I-1 104, Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
7 Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit A, 25/F, One Island South, 2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman)

Liao Dong

Non-executive Directors
Qu Degian

Independent non-executive Directors
Li Tianshu

Zhang Han

Ge Xiaojing

COMPANY SECRETARY
Lau Wing

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Hu Xiang
Lau Wing
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
Zhang Han (Chairman)
Li Tianshu

Ge Xiaojing

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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Zhang Han
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Li Tianshu

Zhang Han
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai,

Hong Kong
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Bank of China

No. 442 Renmin North Road, Longhua Street, Longhua District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province,

China

AUDITORS
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

WEBSITE ADDRESS

http://www.mobi-antenna.com

CONTACT INFORMATION FOR INVESTOR RELATIONS
Telephone: 86-755-27150701 (ext 390)
Chen Zhaotong

Email: ir@mobi-antenna.com
STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 947
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Financial Highlights
BB

Analysis of revenue by business type Analysis of revenue by customer type
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Financial Highlights
MBEE

KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES TEBEEE
(All amounts are expressed in RMB' million unless otherwise stated) (BEAEZHPIN FIESEIUAREEET
£5)
2020 2019
2020 20194
Revenue WA 884.5 12149
Gross profit EH 200.0 279.8
(Loss) profit before taxation Al (B8) FE (43.4) 168
Net (loss) profit attributable to shareholders R A F (B5H8 ) A (29.8) 236
Total assets BEE 1,948.4 1969.8
Net current assets MBNEEFE 634.0 641.5
Net assets attributable to shareholders RREMEETR 1,126.0 [171.4
Inventories turnover days FERAEXH 147 143
AJR turnover days LT SEIE PN 231 196
AJP turnover days e BR BB R & 305 272
Current ratio MBIt & 1.85 1.82
Gearing BRAFBLE 8.4% 5.0%
No. of issued shares, million shares BEETROHEAE (B8R) 818.8 819.6
Net assets value per share, RMB BREEFE(ARET) 138 143
Basic (loss) earnings per share, RMB cents BRER (BE) 2R (ARES) (3.64) 2.88
Retum on average equity TR AR R -2.60% 2.02%
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Chairman’s Statement
ETEREE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,
On behalf of the Board of Directors of MOBI Development Co,, Ltd, | am pleased to
present to the shareholders the business development of the Company and its subsidiaries

(the "Group") for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year").

In the immediate past year of 2020, as the first year of 5G large-scale construction
and application, placed its expectation of stimulating “new infrastructure” and driving
innovation in the industrial chain on the communications industry. However, global politics
and economy remained turbulent, and due to continued global impact of the COVID-19
epidemic, the mobile network construction demand of major global operators has slowed
down significantly and delayed backward, communications industry continued to be greatly
impacted, coupled with the extremely fierce competition, throwing up greater challenges
to the business development of the Group. However, we believe that, driven by the
effective control of the epidemic and the “new infrastructure” policy, the communications

industry is about to usher in a new round of major development, especially in China,

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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which will bring unlimited opportunities for the business development of the Group.
Through product technology innovation, continuous market expansion, customer structure
optimization, and deep participation in applications in verticals, the Group continues to
maintain its leading share in the industry while outperforming most competitors in 5G
wireless communication technology, laying the foundation for the Group to achieve stable
income by riding the future waves of the communications industry under the “double

circulation” development pattern.

OPERATING RESULTS

In 2020, the Group realized approximately RMB884.54 million of operating revenue,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 27.2 %, while net loss amounted
to approximately RMB29.81 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 226.3%; basic

loss per share was approximately RMB0.04.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

In 2020, the construction of mobile communication infrastructure has entered a period
of simultaneous construction and synergic development of 4G and 5G networks from
a global perspective. On the one hand, 2020, as the first year of 5G large-scale network
construction and equipment investment of mobile communication in China, bears the
expectation of stimulating “new infrastructure” and driving innovation in the industrial
chain. However, due to the shock of the COVID-19 epidemic and the influence of
international political factors, in the second half of 2020, especially after the third
quarter, major domestic operators have basically suspended the base station network
construction, and some projects have been delayed. It can be noted that as the 4G
network construction of mobile communication in China has entered the late stage,
domestic operators’ capital expenditures in 4G networks further declined significantly, and
after entering September, domestic operators have slowed down the pace of 5G network
construction significantly. Therefore, the industry has experienced slower overall growth

than expected and undergone multiple tests.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHREE

On the other hand, globally, 4G technology was still the mainstream in the global network
construction and is expected to maintain as so for a considerably long time. However, due
to the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic and geopolitical factors in 2020, the demand for
network construction in some overseas countries and regions has slowed down and been
delayed. With the continuous evolution of China's 4G technology and the continuous
improvement of the industrial chain, the PRC base station antennas and filter equipment
manufacturers’ competitive advantage will gradually become apparent in the international
market. Capitalizing on our advantages on customers, technology and costs, the Group
deepened its cooperation with leading customers worldwide, so as to meet customers'
demand for products with high performance and price ratios, and to further increase our
intemational market share. Meantime, we were also positioned as the core supplier, or

even the whole- network exclusive antenna supplier, with some European operators.

These tests and changes will certainly bring temporary costs. To make adequate
preparations for 5G network construction and vertical application projects, the Group
has increased R&D investment. The increase in new research projects has significantly
increased R&D expenditures. In addition, the US dollar remains the dominant currency for
our overseas expansion of exports. From the middle of 2020, as affected by intemational
political and economic factors, the exchange rate between US dollar and RMB has
fluctuated significantly, resulting in a substantial increase in exchange losses, thus leading to
a comprehensive decline in profit results in 2020. The Group believes that these impacts
are temporary. On the one hand, R&D investment will provide a strong impetus for
future business growth. On the other hand, through internal management optimization,

communication, decision-making and execution will be carried out more effectively.

To sum up, 4G and 5G networks are expected to coexistence for a long time in the
future, and the Group is one of the world's few wireless RF technology providers with
leading-edge technologies in both 4G and 5G and is also one of the few providers that
can provide the multi-frequency, multi-system and multi-beam antenna technology. The
Group believes that the Group is a leader of 4G and 5G antenna and RF subsystem

product technologies.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION
In 2020, the Board of Directors of the Group did not recommend any payment of final
dividend.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward to the future, driven by the large-scale 5G network construction in
China, the 5G network will cause profound changes to industrial structures based on
its advantages in high speed, low latency, high bandwidth and wide coverage. It will
open a new era for the Interet of Everything, and drive a new wave of technologies
and industrial changes. In 2020, according to the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, in the next three years, China's 5G will still be in the “lead in stage”, and it
is necessary to adhere to a moderately advanced pace of construction, so as to form a
benign development model of 5G that “promotes the use of construction”. In the context
of the central government’s strategic planning of “new infrastructure” and policies and
industry assistance of local governments, it is expected the continuous large-scale 5G
network construction will continue to bring new opportunities for the development and
integration of the industry. On the one hand, 5G is about to enable high-and low band
hybrid networking and base stations will increase in scale, including the large demand
for the construction of new base station and reconstruction of the roof of existing base
station. On the other hand, driven by the 5G construction, digital transformation in various
fields has been accelerated, and 5G applications may achieve even more explosive growth,
and are expected to be gradually implemented in verticals. With the Company’s leading
position in customer channels and 5G technology, the Company is in place to capture

early opportunities riding on the development waves of 5G.

The Group has always adhered to the important strategy of international development.
In the global arena, the overseas 4G cycle will last much longer than that in China, 4G
technology will still be the mainstream in the global network construction. With its
leading product technology of overseas multi-frequency, multi-system and multi-beam, the
Group achieved satisfying breakthroughs in multinational operators in 2020 particularly its
significant improvement in various aspects such as product technology, quality standards
and technical process experiences. In future, the Group will further develop the markets
of overseas network operators, continuously enter the short lists of multinational and
major regional network operators and continue to increase the Group's share in the global
market on a long-term basis. It is foreseeable that the global market share of the Group
is still extremely small at present, as such, the continuous expansion of the global market
will not only push the way up in periodic development for the next few years, but also

achieve sustained growth in a longer period.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHREE

Meanwhile, the Group will also actively explore the development of new businesses,
including exclusive network coverage for governmental enterprises, the application of
wireless solutions and the application of millimeter wave solution, to expand new growth
momentum for the business of the Company. The Group believes that 5G development
will bring huge opportunities for mobile communication. Wireless will be widely applied
no matter in man-to-man communication, man-to-object communication or object-to-
object communication. The Group will grasp the opportunity to comprehensively enhance
its management of refinement, informatization and automation, continuously improve
various operating indicators and strive to optimize operating efficiency of the Group, so as

to achieve a record high result in the next few years.

I 'would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders and customers for
their kind support and trust, and to our Directors and staffs for their diligent work. The
Company and the Board will continue to optimize the customer base and structure,
adapt strategies of product differentiation based on technology and costs to enhance the
integrated competitiveness and ensure the stable growth of the operating results of the
Group. The Company strives to become a top class global provider of radio frequency
technology for mobile communication in order to maximize the returns to its shareholders

and the society.

Hu Xiang
Chairman and Chief Executive Office

Shenzhen, the PRC
30 March 2021

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Management Discussion and Ana

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

When compared with last year, revenue decreased by approximately RMB330.39 million
(approximately 27.2%), to approximately RMB884.54 million in 2020 (2019: approximately
RMBI,214.93 million).

Sales of antenna system decreased by approximately 38.5% to approximately RMB453.73
million (2019: approximately RMB737.80 million), while sales of base station RF subsystem
decreased by approximately 20.4% to approximately RMB254.90 million (2019:
approximately RMB320.22 million). In addition, sales of coverage extension solution
and other products increased substantially by approximately 12.1% to approximately
RMBI7591 million (2019: approximately RMBI56.91 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEFWR D

The market situation in 2020 suffered tremendous changes and was filled with
tests and challenges. Due to the continuous impact of the outbreak of COVID-19
on global economy, as well as the influence of international political factors, some
network construction and equipment investment projects in China's domestic mobile
communication industry were delayed. In particular, the bidding for relevant 5G antenna
and RF subsystem projects was delayed after the third quarter of 2020. In the meantime,
the construction of 4G networks of China's domestic mobile communication entered
a later stage, the capital expenditures of 4G networks further declined significantly, and
the overall industry growth slowed down than expected. In addition, as affected by the
sharp slowdown of global economic growth and negative economic growth in most
countries and regions, as well as international geopolitical factors, the demand for 4G
network construction in some emerging markets (such as India, Mexico) drastically slowed
down and decreased, and the progress of relevant projects failed to meet expectations.
As a result, sales of the Group fluctuated in 2020. However, the Group believes that
with the effective control of the epidemic situation and the implementation of the “new
infrastructure” policy, the communication industry is about to usher in a new round
of development, especially in China, which will bring endless opportunities to business
development of the Group. Meanwhile, based on the richer application scenarios in the
5G era, the industry application of 5G has been explored in multiple fields and has started
piloting from the scratch. In view of this, the Group has further participated in application
in vertical industries, and made breakthrough progress in related business development,

which is believed to be the Group's new source of growth.

Automated production equipments
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2020, the Group maintained steady in the receipt of orders from domestic and overseas
customers including 4G and 5G R&D projects and market orders, and won a large share
of 5G bids for 5G antenna projects from operators and equipment manufacturers, the
sales revenue from 5G antenna system products increased significantly by 494.5% as
compared with the last year, and maintained a sustained and rapid growth trend. In the
meantime, despite the continuous impact of the global outbreak of COVID-19 and the
project delays in most overseas regions, the export business still maintained a continuously
rapid growth momentum, which increased significantly by 17.1% as compared with
that of last year, with its proportion in total revenue of the current period increasing to

approximately 44.7%.

The Group also believes that the Group, as a leader of 4G and 5G antenna and RF
subsystem product technologies, will gain greater benefits from the long-term coexistence

of 4G and 5G relying on our product technologies and market advantages.

Antenna system

The Group's products of antenna system are primarily sold to the domestic network
operators and network operators in overseas markets (such as Asia, Europe and
Americas); whilst a portion of our products of antenna system are sold to operators
worldwide by way of network solution provider customers such as ZTE and Nokia.
In 2020, the Group's antenna products continued to maintain a leading position in the
domestic market, meanwhile our continuously improving antenna product technologies

and reliability were recognised by more and more international clients.
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In 2020, the Group's revenue from antenna system products decreased by approximately
38.5% to approximately RMB453.73 million (2019: approximately RMB737.80 million),
as compared with that in 2019, whose adjustment was most affected by the market
situation. Of which, as 2020 is the first year of large-scale construction and application
of 5G networks, major domestic operators have invested relevant capital expenditure in
large-scale construction of 5G networks, so the Group's sales of 5G antennas substantially
increased by approximately 494.5% to approximately RMBI126.06 million, as compared
with that in 2019. In addition, driven by the demand for overseas network construction,
the Group made a major breakthrough in multi-beam antennas, with revenue increasing
by approximately 311.0% to approximately RMB5.88 million, as compared with that of last
year. However, as the construction of 4G networks of domestic mobile communication
entered a later stage and the capital expenditures of 4G networks further declined
significantly, sales from WCDMA/FDD-LTE antennas and low-band refarming/loT antennas
decreased by approximately 38.2% and approximately 75.8% to approximately RMB63.20
million and approximately RMB37.14 million respectively, as compared with that in 2019.
In addition, due to the continuous impact of the global outbreak of COVID-19, the
changes of domestic operators in investment hotspots, and the delays in implementation
of certain awarded projects of overseas operators, sales from multi-frequency/multi-system
antennas decreased by approximately 53.3% to approximately RMB172.98 million as

compared with that of last year.

In addition, the Group continued to actively develop the overseas operator market in
2020 and won positive feedback from the customers. The Company's direct sales to
overseas operators are primarily antenna products, which recorded strong growth in 2020,
even though continued impact of the COVID-19 epidemic leads to a sharp slowdown in
the overall economic growth, a significant increase by 7.7% to approximately RMB212.18
million compared with that of last year, with a good growth trend. The Group believes
that the scaled construction of 5G network and overseas growth will be the powerhouses

for growth in antennas business of the Group in the years to come.
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Base station RF subsystem

The Group is a supplier of core RF subsystems for international communication
equipment manufacturers, such as ZTE and Nokia, and provides them with a variety of
products and solutions. The competition of base station RF subsystem was highly intense
in 2020. The Group continued to maintain a leading supplier position among leading global
telecommunication equipment manufacturers. In 2020, the Group's revenue from base
station RF subsystems decreased by approximately 20.4% to approximately RMB254.90
million, doubly affected by the changes in investment hotspots for construction of
China's domestic mobile communication networks and the project delays caused by the
continuous impact of the overseas outbreak of COVID-19. However, through the product
structure optimization and the continuous cost reduction, the Group's gross profit margin

picked up year by year, with the competitive edges continuously intensified.

In 2020, the Group undertook many research and development projects and market
orders of the world's main system equipment manufacturers (such as ZTE and Nokia)
including 4G and 5G RF subsystem, dielectric filters, combiner and diplexer, which have
gradually formed a large-scale production. In the meantime, the Group won the bid for RF
device projects of major domestic operators and some overseas operators, and achieved
large-scale delivery in 2020. The Group believes that base station RF subsystem products
would still have continued growth room in the future, which is due to 5G network
construction starting high and low frequency collaborative networking, and continuous
implementation of overseas construction of 4G networks. Customer diversity, high-end
products and enhancement of its status as a core supplier are conducive to increasing the
market share and profitability of the Group's RF subsystem in the 5G era, bringing a new
round of growth in the future.
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Coverage extension solution and others

The arrival of the 5G era brings rich application scenarios and empowers vertical industries.
Meanwhile, the industry application of 5G has been explored in multiple fields and has
started piloting from the scratch. The Group is committed to creating a diversified product
portfolio and participating more in the construction of a new ecology in the 5G era. In
2020, the Group's revenue from coverage extension solution products and other products
increased significantly by approximately 12.1% to approximately RMBI7591 million, and
achieved substantial growth for several consecutive years, mainly due to the breakthrough
in new business development. Of which, sales of customer terminal equipment increased
significantly by approximately 100% to approximately RMB67.38 million, and sales of EPC
projects increased significantly by approximately 100% to approximately RMB20.48 million.
All of the above businesses have achieved major breakthroughs and formed large-scale
delivery in 2020. The Group is full of confidence in the diversified product portfolio and
vertical industry expansion in future, which is believed to be a new source of growth for

the Group.

Customers

In 2020, the Group noted that a change in market pattern resulted in a change in
customer revenue structure, and the Group's in-depth cooperation with telecommunication
equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators allowed the Group to enjoy
distinctive competitive strengths in changing market opportunities. In particular, the Group
has continuously made significant breakthroughs in its overseas expansion, and continued
to deepen and enhance its cooperation with overseas customers, leading to increasing

proportion in total revenue for consecutive years.

In 2020, the start-up of large-scale construction of 5G networks in the domestic market
brought about opportunities for the continuous growth of the Group's businesses. As
the delivery method of turnkey procurement is adopted for the high-band construction
of 5G networks, and the 5G antenna system products and RF subsystem products of the
Group are delivered to network solution equipment manufacturers, the Group's sales to
the PRC equipment manufacturer customers in 2020 increased by approximately 7.3% to
approximately RMB272.94 million as compared with that of last year, and its proportion in
total revenue of the current period increased to approximately 30.9%. However, as major
domestic operators delayed the construction of some 5G network capital projects in the
second half of the year, especially after the third quarter, the growth of this portion was
mainly reflected in the first half of the year.
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In 2020, the Group's sales to international equipment manufacturers was basically the
same as that of last year, which decreased slightly by approximately 0.9% to approximately
RMB212.40 million, and accounted for approximately 24.0% of the total revenue. This
was mainly affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 at home and abroad, for which the
demand for mobile network construction in some countries and regions slowed down
and some projects were delayed. However, the Group continues to maintain a leading
supplier position among leading global equipment manufacturer customers, with both its
technology and quality performance highly recognized by customers, and the cooperation
therebetween further deepening and strengthening. It is believed that with the mitigation
of the outbreak of COVID-19 and the recovery of the demand for international mobile

network construction, new growth opportunities will still arise in the future.
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2020 is the first year of large-scale construction and application of 5G networks.
Due to the changes in investment hotspots for the construction of domestic mobile
communication networks, 5G networks started large-scale construction, while capital
expenditures of 4G network and low-band refarming slowed down significantly. In
addition, in the early stage of 5G wireless network construction, 5G AAU was a major
part, and domestic operators changed the subcontracting procurement strategy to the
tumnkey procurement strategy. As a result, the revenue from the PRC network operators
declined in 2020. Of which, sales to China Mobile, China Telecom and China Unicom
decreased by approximately 81.2%, 50.9% and 72.9% to approximately RMB41.30
million, RMB43.63 million and RMB59.55 million respectively, as compared with that
of last year. However, sales from China Tower in 2020 increased significantly by 66.0%
to approximately RMB27.71 million as compared with that of last year, due to the
strategic cooperation therebetween being continuously deepened. In the meantime, the
scope of cooperation between the Group and major domestic operators is constantly
deepening and strengthening. On the one hand, the Group has realized large-scale
delivery of 5G indoor distribution products and 5G aesthetic projects for the first
time; on the other hand, the Group has participated in the ICT, RF devices and other
projects of major domestic operators, and has successfully realized the optimization of
product structure. The 5G network construction in China is now in an “introductory
stage”. With the large-scale deployment of medium and high-band 5G networks and
the gradually increasing demand for low-band network construction, the upcoming high
and low-frequency collaborative networking will make the procurement strategies more
diversified. In addition, the industry application of 5G has been explored in multiple fields,
and large-scale commercial application is expected. Based on the above circumstances,
the Group believes that there will be great opportunities for domestic 5G construction

continually in the future, which will benefit sales and profit growth in 2021 and later years.
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In 2020, the Group made major breakthroughs in direct sales markets, including overseas
operators, and won positive feedback from the customers. In 2020, although due to
continued overseas impact of the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group's direct sales to
overseas operators and other international customers increased by approximately 7.7%
to approximately RMB212.18 million, and its proportion in total revenue increased
by approximately 8 percentage points to approximately 24.0%. With the continuous
evolution of China's 4G technology and the continuous improvement of the industrial
chain, the PRC base station antennas and filtter equipment manufacturers continued to
expand the international market share, so that products with a high performance-price
ratio were still in high demand, whereas the overseas peers had great difficulties in cost
reduction. Riding on the Group's proactive and gradual expansion in the overseas operator
market for years, the Group's brand has gained considerable reputation and influence
among overseas operators, and its market share has grown for consecutive years. The

Group is confident in the prospects of overseas market expansion.

The deployment of the Group’s products in the network systems of our diversified

international customers strengthened worldwide awareness of the brand name of MOBI.
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Gross profit

In 2020, the Group's gross profit decreased by approximately 28.5% to approximately
RMB199.95 million (2019: approximately RMB279.83 million), while the gross profit
margin decreased from approximately 23.0% in 2019 to approximately 22.6%. This
has embraced the influencing factor of inventory impairment provision. If relevant
influence was excluded, the gross profit increased by approximately RMB6.43 million to
approximately RMB216.38 million, and the gross profit margin was approximately 24.5%.
The Group will continue to improve the overall gross profit margin through constantly
optimizing the product sales portfolio, increasing the sales proportion of high-tech

products and implementing effective control of internal costs.

The Group noticed that the technology path in the 3G/4G era is relatively short. With the
maturity and rapid spread of technology, there will be highly intense price competition in the
later stage of technological development, which will impact the profitability of the industry.
As 5G is coming soon, the technology evolution path will be longer, and there will be
significant increase in technical difficulties, product solutions, quality requirements and
application scenarios, which will significantly reduce qualified suppliers and be conducive
to the improvement of competitive environment, enabling the Group to focus more on
improving product technology. The Group believes that with the continuous evolution of
technology products and the continuous expansion of new business, the Group s full of

confidence both in the future recovery and growth of profit margins.
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Other income

Other income increased by approximately 52.6% to approximately RMB45.32 million,

mainly due to the increase in the government grants.

Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses decreased by RMB20.76 million to approximately RMB20.10

million, mainly due to the substantial increase in net exchange losses.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses decreased significantly by approximately 32.3% from
approximately RMB81.82 million in 2019 to approximately RMB55.40 million in 2020,
mainly due to the decrease in travel expenses, logistics costs, business fees, social insurance
premiums, consulting expenses and low-value consumables caused by the decreased

wages, strengthened cost control and reduced business activities.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 6.0% from approximately
RMBI101.00 million in 2019 to approximately RMB94.96 million in 2020, mainly due to the
decrease in expenses on rents, social insurance charges, labor union dues, maintenance

costs and business expenditures.
Research and development expenses

During the year, the Group recognised development costs of approximately RMBI17.20
million as intangible assets. After the capitalisation, development costs increased by
approximately 12.7% from approximately RMB97.24 million in 2019 to approximately
RMB109.60 million in 2020, which was mainly attributable to the increase in salaries
for research and development activities, utility expenses, test fee, welfare expenses and
amortization of intangible assets. As the development demand of 5G technology and
overseas projects increased significantly, the Group's R&D investment is expected to rise

rapidly in 2020, which is expected to bring business opportunities in the future.

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately 48.3% from approximately RMB10.24 million
in 2019 to approximately RMB5.29 million in 2020, mainly due to the decrease in the

interest expense of bank borrowings.
Profit before tax

Recorded loss before tax for the year 2020 was approximately RMB43.39 million (2019:
a profit before tax of approximately RMB16.76 million). Net profit margin before tax
charges decreased from approximately |4 % in 2019 to approximately -4.9% in 2020.

The decrease of profit before taxation for this year is mainly due to the great impact of
market fluctuation on sales revenue, the increase of R&D cost arising from the increase of
new research projects, the increase of exchange loss resulting from the distinct fluctuation

of the US dollar to RMB exchange rate, and the increase of asset impairment reserves.
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Taxation

The income tax expenses for the current period were nil for two consecutive years.
Effective tax rates calculated from the tax charged to the profit before tax of the Group

were nil for 2020 and 2019 respectively.

Profit for the year

Recorded loss for the year 2020 was approximately RMB29.81 million (2019: a profit
for the year of approximately RMB23.61 million). The Group's net profit margin was
approximately -3.4% in 2020, compared to approximately 1.9% in 2019. The decrease in
our net profit margin was mainly due to the decrease in the sales revenue, the increase in

net exchange loss and research and development expenses.

Relationships with equipment manufacturers, operators and suppliers

The Group mainly sells antenna products and RF subsystem products to
telecommunication equipment manufacturer customers (such as ZTE) who builds
complete networks for delivery to telecommunication operators (such as China
Mobile), thus enabling the Group to establish close and stable relations with equipment

manufacturers.
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The Group is also one of the few domestic technology providers offering RF solutions
to both global and domestic telecommunication operators (such as China Mobile, China
Unicom and China Telecom) and telecommunication equipment manufacturers (such
as ZTE and Nokia), which enables the Group to maintain a leading edge in product
technology and continuous expansion of customer channels, and thus to build close and

solid relations with global and domestic telecommunication operators.

Suppliers of the Group include raw material suppliers and contract manufacturers. The
Group has developed solid and steady relationships with many of its key suppliers.
Given solid and steady relationships with the suppliers, the Group believes that its
suppliers generally provide supplies to the Group with a priority and the Group has not
experienced any material shortage or delays in receiving supplies or services from the

suppliers during the track record period.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of the Group. Major

risks and uncertainties are summarized below.
Brand/Reputation Risk

The Group has established and maintained its MOBI brand that aims to brand the
products of the Group including antenna system, base station RF subsystem and coverage
extension solution, primarily targeting leading system equipment manufacturers and
telecommunication operators worldwide for provision of its RF solution. If the Group
is unsuccessful in promoting its MOBI brand or fails to maintain its brand position and
market perception, system equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators’
acceptance of its MOBI brand may erode, and the Group's business, financial condition,

results of operations and prospects may be materially and adversely affected.
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Any negative publicity or dispute relating to the Group's MOBI brand, products,
sponsorship activities or management, the loss of any award or accreditation associated
with the Group's MOBI brand or products or the use of the “MOBI" trademark or brand
name by other businesses could materially and adversely affect the Group's business,

financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Market Trend

The Group's success depends on the market perception and customer acceptance of
MOBI brand and the Group's products, which in large part, rely on the Group's ability to

anticipate and respond to different market demands in a timely manner.

If the Group is unable to utilize new technologies and processes, anticipate and respond
to market and new technology trends and customer preferences in a timely manner,
demand for MOBI products may decrease. The Group's business would also suffer if
product creations or modifications do not respond to the needs of customers, are not
appropriately timed with market opportunities or are not effectively brought to market.
Any failure by the Group to offer products that respond to changing market and customer
preferences, or any shift in market or new technologies and processes and customer
preferences away from MOBI brand and the Group's products, could adversely affect

customers' interest in the Group's products.

Competition

Currently, the Group's antenna system products, base station RF subsystem products
and coverage extension solution products face different levels of competition in their
respective market sectors. As competitors with similar brand positioning may emerge
and intensify the current competition, there can be no assurance that the Group will be
able to compete effectively against competitors who may have greater financial resources,
greater scales of production, superior technology, better brand recognition and a wider
and more diverse distribution network. To compete effectively and maintain the Group’s
market share, the Group may be forced to, among other actions, reduce prices and
increase capital expenditures, which may in turn negatively affect the Group's profit

margins, business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group's production process is carried out with low emissions and low energy
consumption, and it will not produce great amount of pollutants. The Group has been
endeavoring to ensure that the production process is in compliance with relevant

environmental rules and regulations.

In the past, the Group has not been in breach of any relevant environmental rules and
regulations and has not been imposed any relevant penalty. It is expected that the future
operational activities of the Group would not be affected by the environmental policies.
The Group strives for energy conservation and consumption reduction. In reducing the

operating costs, the Group also puts efforts in environmental protection.
Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Group's subsidiaries in mainland
China while the Group itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group's operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, to the
best of our knowledge, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
in mainland China and Hong Kong, and there is no material breach of or non-compliance

with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Prospects

Looking forward, the Group will pay attention to both domestic and overseas markets
simultaneously and will continue to focus on the area of RF technology for wireless
communication, especially on base station RF technology and RF technology for other

wireless communications.
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The Group believes that with the promotion of 5G large scale construction in China, the
5G will cause profound changes to industrial structures based on its advantages in high
speed, low latency, high bandwidth and wide coverage. Opening a new era of Internet
of everything, 5G network has become the driving force of a new wave of technology
and industrial transformation. According to the estimation of the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology in 2020, 5G in China will still be in an “introductory stage™ in the
next three years. Enterprises shall adhere to the “moderately ahead” construction rhythm
and form into a 5G benign development mode of “promoting 5G application through
construction”. Under the background of the strategic planning for “new infrastructure” by
the central government and the policy and industrial supports by local governments, new
opportunities for industrial development and industry integration will be brought about
continuously with the continual large-scale construction of 5G networks in the future. On
the one hand, 5G is about to start the high and low-frequency collaborative networking,
and the number of base stations will increase in scale, which will result in the demand for a
large number of new base stations, as well as the needs of roof reconstruction of existing
base stations. On the other hand, as driven by the 5G network construction, the process
of digital transformation in various fields has been accelerated. 5G application will probably
achieve more explosive development, while the vertical application is expected to emerge
gradually. With the Group's leading position in customer channels and 5G technology, the

Group is in place to capture early opportunities riding on the development waves of 5G.
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The Group has always adhered to the important strategy of international development.
In the global arena, the overseas 4G cycle will last much longer than that in China. 4G
technology will still be the mainstream in the global network construction for a long time
in the future. With its leading product technology of overseas multi-frequency system
and multi-beam products technology, the Group achieved satisfying breakthroughs in
multinational operators in 2020 particularly its significant improvement in various aspects
such as product technology, quality standards and technical process experiences. In future,
the Group will further develop the markets of overseas network operators, continuously
enter the short lists of multinational and major regional network operators and continue
to increase the Group's share in the global market on a long-term basis. It is foreseeable
that the global market share of the Group is still extremely small at present, as such, the
continuous expansion of the global market will not only push the way up in periodic

development for the next few years, but also achieve sustained growth in a longer period.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BB REAEE - ERFNEREAE -
pEHME ACHHMREMERRTEE
A AGRMDR AR 2 HBRERNIR
AEENBING S ZFIARS KR RERK
ES  BRIR200FEBEEL BN
BRY - Emil mEKERTELRE
E - MR TREORT - ERR - A%

BRE—SHRBINEERTS  TEEA
EEEEARFTIRELHNERE  REK
BRAASBEZHEMGPNERE » AL
BE AKEEMEEHANTEOEDIER
2/ FEMRERMS - TMER KRR
REFRLAMER  BEANEERNER
AERBELER -



Management Discussion and Analysis

Customers

The Group adheres to the visionary target of “becoming a global leading provider of RF
technology for mobile communications”, and strives to offer its RF solution to leading

system equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators around the world.

The Group is also one of the few domestic technology providers offering RF solutions to
both global system equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators, which
enables the Group to maintain a leading edge in product technology and continuous

expansion of customer channels.

In 2020, the Group continuously expanded and deepened the scope of services to and
cooperation with domestic operators. On the one hand, it maintained close strategic
cooperation in traditional macrocell antennas, integrated aesthetic antennas and other
projects, and on the other hand, it carried out in-depth cooperation in RF devices,
indoor distribution projects, aesthetic comprehensive solutions, special scenario coverage,
etc. With the continuous advancement of domestic 5G network construction, the
implementation of 700MHz co-construction and sharing cooperation framework between
China Mobile and China Broadcasting Network, the 2100MHz co-construction, sharing
and refarming between China Telecom and China Unicom in a concentrated manner,
and the complementary and coordinated development of bands among operators will
accelerate the construction of domestic 5G wireless networks. The Group believes that

this will bring business opportunities for sustained growth in 2021 and in the future.

In terms of domestic equipment manufacturers, the Group still has the advantage of being
a leading supplier, including leading advantage in terms of product technology, quality
performance and customer communication. The large-scale construction of 5G network in
2021 may lead to rapid growth, and major equipment manufacturers, especially domestic
equipment manufacturers, are expected to obtain an important market share. In the
current domestic 5G network construction, the degree of strategic cooperation with
system equipment manufacturers will largely determine the domestic market share of 5G
antenna and RF subsystem business. The Group's close strategic partnership with domestic
equipment manufacturers will further prominent the Company's advantages in the future

market.
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As for international equipment manufacturers, the Group continued to maintain an
advantageous share in 2020. The Group believes that with the ease of the overseas
COVID-19 epidemic, the implementation of research and development projects for
interational equipment manufacturers and the progress in the delivery of new products,

there will still be opportunities for continued business growth.

Through continuous technology accumulation and market expansion, the Group has
continuously made new breakthroughs in the development of overseas direct sales
markets. Especially in the European operator market, its sales continue to climb even with
the continuous influence of the overseas outbreak of COVID-19. Meanwhile, it has also
made breakthrough progress in the African market. The European operator market is one
of the mobile communication markets with the largest procurement scale, the highest
technical difficulty and the most complex application scenarios in the world, as well as
the long-term strategic direction of the Group. In 2021, the Group will make efforts to
promote the technological upgrade of the Group's products and improve the Group's
product coverage to meet the demand of overseas customers. The Group believes that
the direct sales growth in international operators will become another strong impetus for

the Company’s business growth in the next few years.
Products

On 6 June 2019, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of China officially
issued 5G licenses to four operators, namely China Mobile, China Telecom, China
Unicom and China Broadcasting Network, marking 5G commercialization in China.
In December 2020, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of China
issued a |0-year license for the use of 5G medium and low-frequency use licenses to
China Telecom, China Mobile and China Unicom. Hence, the major four domestic
operators have covered multiple frequency bands with their respective advantages.
The low-frequency use licenses can be used as the coverage layer to provide wide
coverage and deep coverage, the medium-frequency band can be used as the continuous
capacity layer, and the high-frequency band can be used as the hotspot capacity layer to
solve the capacity demand. The coverage of multiple frequency bands will help utilize
the advantages of each frequency band effectively, improve the utilization efficiency
and benefits of frequency resources, and thus realize comprehensive improvement in
bandwidth, latency, and synchronization performance in the 5G era. This will continue to

bring about new opportunities for industrial development and industry integration. On
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CHANGES ARISING OUT OF 5G

the one hand, 5G is about to start the high and low-frequency collaborative networking,
and the number of base stations will increase in scale, which will result in the demand
for a large number of new base stations, as well as the needs of roof reconstruction of
existing base stations. On the other hand, as driven by the 5G network construction, the
process of digital transformation in various fields has been accelerated. 5G application will
probably achieve more explosive development, while the vertical application is expected
to emerge gradually. The Group believes that the technological threshold of cutting-edge
high-end antennas and the innovatory base station RF subsystem technology are beneficial
to the Group in competition, while the Group has the capacity of the whole industry
chain for product research and development and mass production, and has supplied
goods massively. In general, the Group believes that with the Group's leading position in
technologies of 5G antennas and RF subsystems, and the integrated and source-based
development of antennas and RF subsystems, the Group's technology and customer
accumulation in these two segments will enable the Group to get ahead in 5G network

construction.
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Globally, despite the popularization of LTE network, its overall development remains
highly unbalanced, with the long-term imbalance between regions. Therefore, despite
the temporary influence of the outbreak of COVID-19 in foreign countries, LTE network
construction continues. The demand for overseas LTE network construction and
complex multi-network stations will bring about a further upgrade of multi-frequency
and multi-system antenna and multi-beam antenna technologies, making them closer
to ultimate design. The Group has undertaken a number of R&D projects from
overseas customers and passed corresponding tests. The Group's continuous entry
into the shortlists for overseas operators, and the accumulation of multi-frequency
and multi-system integrated antenna technology and hybrid beam antenna technology,
including its improvement in automated and intelligent production capabilities, enable
the Group to further upgrade its antenna development platform to meet the evolving

technical demands of intemational operators.

In terms of coverage extension solution products and other products, due to the
rich application scenarios generated in the 5G era and new business forms in vertical
industries, the business models and product demands of domestic operators are more
diversified, therefore, there will be a broad application space for the ecological portfolio of
products. However, the Group has been deeply engaged in the communication industry
for many years, with relevant leading technological advantages, and has continuously
invested research and development and market resources. The Group believes that the
continuous widening and deepening of the scope of services to and cooperation with
domestic operators will bring more new business growth opportunities for the Group in

the application business in 5G vertical industries.
Conclusion

The Group is one of the few one-stop solution providers of RF technology for global
network operators and system equipment manufacturers in the PRC, capitalizing on
a wide range of well-known customers and diversified income sources positive for its
healthy and stable growth.

The Group believes that the telecommunication equipment industry is expected to see
another growth cycle due to the deep development of 4G network and the proceeding
of 5G construction in scale over the next few years. The Company and the Board
will continue to optimize the size and mix of customer base and adopt differentiated
competition strategies underpinned by technology and cost advantages to maximize
the market opportunities in LTE, 5G and next generation wireless technologies, thus
enhancing the Group's overall competitiveness to ensure the robust business performance

of the Group and create more value for shareholders and the society.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group have funded the Group's operations and capital requirements from cash
generated from business, trade credit from our suppliers and short-term bank borrowings.
Our primary uses of cash have been for our increased working capital needs, capital
expenditures on purchases of production equipment and acquisition of land use rights for

our real properties in Shenzhen, Jian and Xian in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current assets of approximately RMB633.98
million (2019: approximately RMB641.55 million) including inventories of approximately
RMB270.02 million (2019: approximately RMB281.69 million), trade receivables and
notes receivable of approximately RMB506.15 million (2019: approximately RMB614.14
million) and trade payables and notes payable of approximately RMB552.62 million (2019:
approximately RMB592.18 million).

The Group maintained effective management of its working capital. For the year ended
31 December 2020, average inventories turnover, average receivables turnover and
average payables turnover are approximately 147 days (2019: 143 days), 231 days (2019:
196 days) and 305 days (2019: 272 days) respectively. We offer credit terms generally
accepted in the antenna system and base station RF subsystem manufacturing industry to
our trade customers. In general, the average credit period for local network operators is
longer than global network operators and solution providers.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a pledged bank balance of approximately
RMBI12.82 million (2019: approximately RMBI137.07 million), cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB371.93 million (2019: approximately RMB292.41 million) and recorded
bank and other borrowings of approximately RMB164.58 million (2019: approximately
RMB98.88 million). The current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) increased
from approximately 1.82 times as at 3| December 2019 to approximately 1.85 times
as at 31 December 2020. The gearing ratio (bank borrowings divided by total assets)
was approximately 8.4% as at 31 December 2020 as compared with a gearing ratio of
approximately 5.0% as at 31 December 2019. The interest rates on the Group's bank

borrowings are designated as fixed rates or floating rates based on prevailing market rates.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group has a solid and stable financial position and
adequate resources to satisfy necessary operating capital requirements and foreseeable

capital expenditures.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

RMB is the functional currency of the Group. Currencies other than RMB expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. We have foreign currency sales and purchases and certain
trade receivables and bank balances are denominated in USD, EUR, CHF and HKD. We
currently do not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management

monitors and will consider hedging of foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 2,346 staffs. The total staff
costs amounted to approximately RMB230.53 million for the year ended 2020. The
remuneration of the Group's employees is determined on the basis of their responsibilities
and industry practices. Regular training is provided to improve the skills and expertise of
relevant staff. The Group also grants share options and discretionary bonuses to eligible

staffs based on their performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 31 December 2020, bank balances of approximately RMBI12.82 million were
pledged to secure bank borrowings and bills payable granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

During 2020, a total amount of 745,000 shares of the Company had been repurchased at
prices ranging from HK$0.72 per share to HK$0.75 per share by the Company via Stock
Exchange. The Company had subsequently cancelled all these shares repurchased during
the year. Save as mentioned above, neither the Company nor the Company or any of
its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the

current year.
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DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend for the year ended 3|
December 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 27 May 2021 (2021 AGM"), the Register
of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 24 May 2021 to Thursday,
27 May 2021, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
2021 AGM, all transfer documents should be lodged for registration with the Company’s
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited (the “Company's
Registrar)at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2| May 2021.
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Corporate Governance Report

CREARS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high standards of corporate governance

to maximize the operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder returns of
the Company. The Company adopted sound governance and disclosure practices and
continued to upgrade internal control system, strengthen risk control management and

reinforce the corporate governance structure.

Save for the deviation disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board comprises six Directors, including two executive Directors, one non-executive

Director and three independent non-executive Directors. The following sets out the

composition of the Board, by category of Directors:

Executive Directors:
Hu Xiang (Chairman)
Liao Dong

Non-executive Directors:
Qu Degian

Independent non-executive Directors:
Li Tianshu

Zhang Han

Ge Xiaojing

The Board's composition demonstrates a balance of core competence with regard to the

business of the Group so as to provide effective leadership and the required expertise to

the Group. The executive Directors and senior management have extensive management

experience in the wireless communication antennas and base station RF subsystems

industry. The biographical details and experience of the Directors and senior management

are set out on pages 90 to 96 of this report.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships among

members of the Board.
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Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and is entrusted with the
responsibility to supervise the overall management of the business, including establishing
and overseeing the Group's strategic development, business plans, financial objectives,
capital investment proposals and assumes the responsibilities of corporate governance
of the Group. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group's businesses to the

executive Directors and members of senior management of the Group.

Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, as warranted by
business needs. During the year ended 31 December 2020, five Board meetings, three
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) meetings, one remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) meeting and one nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) meeting were convened. Details of attendance of Board meetings of each of
the members of the Board are set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

Notices for regular Board meetings are given to each Director at least 14 days prior to
the meeting, whereby the Directors can put forward his proposed items into the agenda.
The agenda and the relevant Board papers are then circulated to the Directors not less
than 3 days before a Board meeting in order to enable the Directors to make an informed

decisions. For other Board meetings, reasonable notices are given.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or

accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors. The Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as

set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

EHBRERLA
20204 3§

CREARS

EZERE

EZeR AR REHAEE - WEEER

MEBEE  ERRIRERAERERER
R ¥%HE - WBER - BARERR

TREAKENEEER EFERTHNT

EXERAKESRERERERNLBEE

BEBREREEAREXBNAREE

Exged

EEERBEBTECHRENEREE
BE200FNA3BLEFE £BRAAKRE
8% ZRERZEE ([BREESE])
g% —REMEEE ((FMEER]) g3
—REZER ([REEZEgEH &
$g KEHFEE FEHERTX
[(REFGRLRFEER] -

P
Rk

EFeTHeRNAENEEAMED 148
AIXTRES WEEEREEZFEMA

2 eRFERABESENHENES
SERAYHTLRIBRTES  INBRE
fERAIBERE -FREFSHMEHE - 84
HAEEAE -

BIFHTES

HE0FNANALFE EE2—HE
TFLTRAGBETE  ZEEL=BBIEHR
TEE HP— R EEEEEEEBA g
SRR B IR o

ARBEWBME LB FFRTESHLNF
EBIURERK - ARBRBABBLIERT
BEEONE EHARRIE 3GRMAEHEELS
185l AmEBL

39



40

Corporate Governance Report
TEEREE

Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to Code Provision A.5.6 of Corporate Governance Code, the Board has adopted
a Board Diversity Policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the Company's
approach to achieving diversity of its Board. The Company recognises that an increase
in diversity at the Board level will support the achievement of its strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to increase Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Company will also take into consideration its own business model and specific

needs from time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this report, Hu Xiang is both the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company, responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board to formulate overall strategies and business development directions for the
Group and for the daily management of the business of the Group, implementation of the
policies, business objectives and plans set by the Board and is accountable to the Board

for the overall operation of the Group.
Code Provision A.2.1

This code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Currently, Mr. Hu Xiang
is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Hu is one of the
founders of the Group and has extensive experience in the telecommunication industry.
Given the current stage of development of our Group, the Board believes that vesting
the two roles in the same person provides our Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates the implementation and execution of our Group's business
strategies. We shall nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of the

prevailing circumstances.
Non-Executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors of the Company is three years. Under the Company's Articles of Association,
one-third of all Directors (whether executive or non-executive) is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Remuneration
Committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors, namely Li Tianshu,
Zhang Han and Ge Xiaojing and one non-executive Director, namely Qu Degian. The

Remuneration Committee is chaired by Li Tianshu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving
its objective of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management of the
highest caliber and experience needed to develop the Group's business successfully.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the Directors and
senior management of the Company and for determining their remuneration packages.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

. formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

. recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration of

Directors and senior management;

. determination of the remuneration of executive Directors and senior management,

including benefits in kind and compensation payments;

. review and approval of the compensation arrangements in connection with any
loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal or removal for

misconduct to executive Directors and senior management; and

. determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance.

No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to review the Company's remuneration policies, the terms of the service
contracts and the performance of all executive Directors and senior management. Details
of attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings of each of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

Details of the emoluments of each Director, on a named basis, are set out in note 10 to

the financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities on 22 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Li Tianshu, Zhang Han and Ge Xiaojing, one non-executive Director, namely Qu Degian
and one executive Director, namely, Hu Xiang. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Hu Xiang. Currently all new appointments to the Board will be considered by the Board

whose deliberations are based on the following criteria:

. possession of core competencies, including but not limited to financial literacy,
that are appropriate to the Company's business and complement the skills and

competencies of the existing Directors on the Board;

. ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties and responsibilities effectively;
and

. possession of a good track record of experience at a senior level in corporations/
organizations.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Details of attendance of Nomination Committee meeting of
each of the members of the Nomination Committee are meeting of each of the members
of the Nomination Committee set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Audit Committee comprises
all the independent non-executive Directors. Zhang Han is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point for communication between the Directors,
the external auditors and chief financial officer as regards their duties relating to, among
other things, financial and other reporting, internal controls and external audits and
to assist the Board in fuffilling its responsibilities by providing independent view and

supervision of financial reporting.
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The Board is of the opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to discharge their duties.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

. to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and removal of

external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of such appointments;

. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity;

. to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external auditor for non-

audit services;

. to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and interim reports and
the auditor's report to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced

assessment of the Group's financial position;

. to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices;

. to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk management and internal

control systems;

. to ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an effective internal

control system; and

. to review the external auditor's management letter and any questions raised by the

auditor to the management and the management's response.

Two meetings were held by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December
2020. The Audit Committee reviewed, together with the management and the external
auditors, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and statutory compliance.
In addition to reviewing the Group's risk management and internal control systems and
the effectiveness of the internal audit function, the Audit Committee also reviewed the
independence of the external auditors and approved the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors. Details of attendance of Audit Committee meetings
of each of the members of the Audit Committee are set out in “Attendance of Individual

Directors at Meetings” below.
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ATTENDANCE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The Code Provision stipulates that the board should meet regularly for at least 4 times

a year at approximately quarterly intervals. The attendance of individual Directors

at meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee, the

Nomination Committee, the annual general meeting during the year ended 3| December

2020, respectively, is set forth in the table below:

Name of Director

Hu Xiang

Liao Dong

Qu Degian

Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Ge Xiaojing
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on the relevant
laws, rules and regulations. From time to time, Directors are provided with written
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills. The Directors had fulfilled the
relevant requirements under A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING

Pursuant to rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take no less than
I'5 hours of relevant professional training in each financial year. The Company Secretary
is Mr. Lau Wing and has taken more than |5 hours of relevant professional development

during the year ended 31 December 2020.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company (“Articles”), without prejudice to
and in addition to complying with the applicable requirements set forth in the Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations, the Company has since 17 December 2009,
the date on which its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange adopted a stringent system
to avoid potential conflict of interests respecting transactions (“Relevant Transactions”) in
which any Directors are interested in, and transactions with any of our connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules) or any company in which the controlling shareholder
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company or its shareholders, individually
or collectively, owns a direct or indirect equity interest of 10% or above (including
transactions with ZTE Corporation, Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen

Zhongxingxindi Technologies Co,, Ltd.) (‘Relevant Companies”), as follows:

(1) Any Relevant Transactions be approved by way of a resolution passed by a majority
of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors, provided
that any non-executive Director or independent non-executive Director interested
in the transactions in question will declare his or her interest and will abstain from

voting on such matters;

(2)  Any Director has a conflict of interest will not participate or be involved in matters

relating to the Relevant Transactions;
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(3)  An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) comprising the chief financial
officer and the deputy financial officer of the Company has been established to
monitor, review and manage all Relevant Transactions, and to prepare semi-annual
report in relation to the execution of the Relevant Transactions (“Semi-annual

Report”) for the supervisory committee’s (the “Supervisory Committee”) review;

(4)  The Supervisory Committee comprising three independent non-executive
Directors (each of whom shall not have any interest in any transaction under
consideration by the Supervisory Committee and shall not be in a position of
conflict of interest when acting in such capacity) has been set up, among other
things, to supervise the Executive Committee, review and approve the terms and
conditions of continuing connected transactions and Relevant Transactions, devise
and review rules and guidelines for the Executive Committee to follow, review
Semi-annual Report from the Executive Committee, report its findings to the Board
and give recommendations to the Board to ensure that the Relevant Transactions
will be entered into in the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole;

and

(5)  The Board will disclose the decisions, findings and recommendations on the
transactions reviewed by the Executive Committee and the Supervisory Committee

in the Company’s interim and annual reports.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings were held by the Supervisory
Committee to review the report on Relevant Transactions in respect of the sales and
purchase entered into by the Group with the Relevant Companies prepared by the
Executive Committee. As reported by the Supervisory Committee, (i) it had reviewed
and approved the master agreements entered into by the Group and the Relevant
Companies and considered the terms and conditions therein were fair and reasonable; (ii)
it had reviewed the supplier procurement bidding documents and interal procurement
procedures of the Group; (iii) it had devised and reviewed rules and guidelines for
Executive Committee and the Executive Committee had followed accordingly; and (iv)
it had reviewed the report submitted by the Executive Committee. The Supervisory
Committee considered Relevant Transactions conducted during the review period were
in line with the respective master agreements and the internal procedures of the Group,
were on fair and normal commercial terms and there was no other matter that needs to

be brought to the attention of the Board and shareholders of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants (“Deloitte”), the external
auditors of the Company, were responsible for providing services in connection with the

audit of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total remuneration in respect of audit services

provided by Deloitte for the Group amounted to approximately RMB2.19 million.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which endorsed the view) that,
subject to shareholders” approval at the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte be re-appointed as
the external auditors of the Company for 2021.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims to present a comprehensive, balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's performance, position and prospects. The management provides such
explanations and information to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the

matters put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of
the Group and for ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with

applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Group has announced its annual results in a timely manner within the limits of three

months after the end of the financial period, as laid down in the Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The main objectives of the Group's risk management and internal control systems are
to provide a clear governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as reporting

mechanism to facilitate the Group in managing risks across its business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which consists of the Board
of Directors, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management Taskforce. The Board of
Directors determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives, and has overall responsibility for monitoring the design,
implementation and effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control

systems.
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The Group has formulated and adopted a Risk Management Policy for providing direction
in identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks on at least an annual basis, the Risk
Management Taskforce identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the
Group's objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according to a set of
standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans are established and risk owners are then assigned

for the management of those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has established an internal audit function to assist the Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee with ongoing monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of
interal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for their remediation.
Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee and the

Board of Directors on a timely basis to ensure that they are promptly addressed.

Risk management and internal control reports are submitted to the Audit Committee and
the Board of Directors at least once a year. The Board of Directors performs an annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
including, but not limited to, changes in the nature and extent of significant risks after
the review in the prior year, the Group's ability to cope with its business transformation
and changing external environment; the scope and quality of the management's ongoing
monitoring of risks and internal control systems; results of internal audit work; the extent
and frequency of communication of the results of monitoring of risk management and
internal control systems to the Board of Directors; significant failures or weaknesses
identified and their related implications; and the effectiveness of the Group's processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance. Following its review for the year ended
31 December 2020, the Board of Directors considers the Group's risk management and

internal control systems are effective.

The risk management and intemal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable

and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR THE HANDLING AND
DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board has established an Inside Information Policy for the handling and dissemination
of Inside Information. The Group complies with requirements of the Securities & Futures
Ordinance ("SFO") and the Listing Rules. It discloses inside information to the public as
soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the Safe Harbours,
as provided in the SFO. Before information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures that it is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached,
the Group would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is
committed to ensuring that information contained in announcements is not false or
misleading as to material fact, or omission of material fact, and to presenting information in
a clear and balanced way, including through equal disclosure of both positive and negative

information.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the

election of individual Directors for shareholders’ consideration and voting.

Resolutions put forward at our shareholders” meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of our Company and of

the Stock Exchange after each shareholders” meeting,
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 79 of our Company's Articles of Association, an extraordinary
general meeting shall also be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
An extraordinary general meeting may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting
to be held within a further 30 Days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may convene an extraordinary general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to

them by the Company.
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(i)  Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general meetings may
achieve so by means of convening an extraordinary general meeting following the

procedures set out in paragraph (i) above.

As regards the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a

Director, they are available on our Company's website (www.mobi-antenna.com).

(i)  Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written
enquires to our Company by addressing them to the Company Secretary by mail at

Unit A, 25/F, One Island South, 2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there has not been any change in the

Company's constitutional documents.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group establishes and maintains different communication channels with its
shareholders through the publication of annual and interim reports, information of the
Stock Exchange, a corporate website, and general and investor meetings. The Group is
going to report to its shareholders twice a year and maintains a regular dialogue with

investors.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each

substantially separate issue, including the election of Directors.
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INTRODUCTION

CORPORATE PROFILE OF MOBI

MOBI Development Co,, Ltd. (the “Company") was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability on 16 December 2002. The shares of the
Company were listed on Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the “HKEx") on 17
December 2009 (Stock Code: 947).

We are one of the few one-stop providers of wireless communication antennas and base
station Radio Frequency (“RF") subsystems in China. Our business consists of the design,
manufacture, marketing and sale of antennas, base station RF subsystem and solutions
that are the required components of mobile communication coverage systems, including,
wireless access systems (WiFi and PHS), 2G (GSM and CDMA), 3G (TD-SCDMA, CDMA
2000, W-CDMA and WiMax), 4G (TD-LTE and FDD-LTE), 5G, MIMO antennas, satellite

communication and microwave transmission networks.
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We sell our products to network operators in China and overseas directly for deployment
into the networks they are constructing and operating. We also sell our products to some
of the world's leading wireless network solution providers who incorporate our products
into their wireless coverage solutions, such as their proprietary base stations, which they

then sell to network operators worldwide.

The Company relies on scientific management and a people-oriented corporate
culture in pursuing “dedication, devotion, pragmatism and pioneership”. We deem it
our responsibility to provide our employees with an ideal working environment and
development opportunities so that they can exert their full potential. Through scientific
management, we aim to create a good working atmosphere for employees while providing
reasonable incentives to promote their healthy growth. It is our relentless pursuit to satisfy

customers, employees, investors and the whole community.

The Company adheres to the principle of sustainable development and lays great
emphasis on environmental protection throughout its entire product life cycle in the
course of its business operations, from product design and development, procurement of
parts and components, manufacturing to product delivery. Through systematic planning
and operation, we ensure that the impact on the environment is minimized, and that the
use of resources is efficient from the source so as to reduce resource consumption and

achieve energy conservation.

In terms of the establishment of its management system, the Company passed the
ISO9001 Quality Management Systems Certification, TL9000 Information Communication
Technology (ICT) Quality Management System Certification, ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System Certification, 1SO45001 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System Certification and ESDS20.20 ESD Protection Management System
Certification. It made efforts in Electronics Industry Citizenship Coalition (EICC), social
responsibility management, risk management, carbon emission, conflict minerals and
corporate governance by setting up and strictly complying with corresponding policies and

standards, thereby achieving substantial results.

We are committed to providing quality and sophisticated products and building long-term

partnerships with our customers.

COMPANY VISION

“Becoming a global leading provider of RF technology for mobile communications.”
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CORPORATE MISSION

“Explore and walk on the path to survival and development of the Company with
collective intelligence from employees; continuously bring management and technology
innovation into practice; and develop MOBI into a global leading provider of RF

technology for mobile communications.”

CORE VALUES OF THE COMPANY
“Accountability, devotion, diligence and efficiency, team-spirit, care for people, mutual

respect.”

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT PHILOSOPHY OF THE COMPANY
“Human resources is the core to the sustainable rapid development of the Company, we
pay close attention to the performance and remuneration of the employees, as well as

their development.”

TABLE OF CONTENTS
About this report
Environmental/Occupational Health and Safety Policy of MOBI
General Rules on Corporate Social Responsibility of MOBI
Devotion to Environmental Protection
Emissions
Use of Resources
Environment and Natural Resources
Conflict Minerals
Establishment of a Team of Excellence
Staff Employment
Health and Safety
Development and Training
Labor Standards
Staff Activities
Responsible Supply Chain and Product Liability Management
Supply Chain Management
Product Liability
Compliance in Operation
Compliance with Laws and Regulations
Anti-corruption
Community Involvement

Charity Activities
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Pursuant to the requirements set out in the ESG Reporting Guidelines (“ESG Guidelines”),
Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules of the HKEx, the Company is pleased to
publish this report on the environmental, social and governance aspects for the disclosure
on the relevant information (this “Report™). This Report covers the period from | January
2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”). This Report mainly covers the
performance of MOBI Development's subsidiaries in three places of operation (Shenzhen,
Guangdong; Xian, Shaanxi, and Jian, Jiangxi) with respect to environmental, social and

governance.

The Board of Directors of the Company assumes full responsibility for the overall
environmental, social and governance strategy and reporting of the Company. The Board

is responsible for assessing and determining the issuers' risks in relation to environment,
society and governance and for ensuring that the Company establishes appropriate and
effective environmental, social and governance risk management and internal control
systems, while the management is responsible for monitoring and managing the risks
associated with environment, society and governance and the effectiveness of the
management system. The management personnel will be responsible for checking the
information disclosed in this Report, while the Board of the Company will be responsible
for review and approval thereof. The Board has authorized the environmental, social and
governance working group to carry out the day-to-day work in relation to corporate
governance and corporate social responsibility. The responsibilities of the working
group include conducting internal and external materiality assessments, implementing
the strategies and policies of the Board, preparing environmental, social and governance
reports, and collecting and monitoring information and data related to daily corporate

social responsibilities.

The Company has established an internal audit department and will also engage a third
party to carry out an independent assessment of risk and internal monitoring systems
every year to provide improvement suggestions on risk management and internal control
as required. The management personnel will be responsible for checking the information
disclosed in this Report, while the Board of the Company will be responsible for review

and approval thereof.
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The Company conducts business activities in a responsible and sustainable manner
to create value for employees, customers and shareholders, as well as to fulfill its
commitment to the environment and society. We understand deeply that exhaust
gases and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land and generation of
waste can adversely affect the environment and we understand the scarcity of natural
resources. Therefore, the Company will persist in adopting appropriate measures to
achieve sustainable development during its business operation. We are convinced that
sustainability in business is not just window dressing, but is essential to the development of
the Company. By adopting sustainable practices, we will gain a competitive edge, increase
our market share and bring value to our shareholders in the long run. On top of that,
we will keep a focus on social responsibility and continue to take practical actions for the

benefit of the community.

This report has been prepared in accordance with four reporting principles in the ESG
Guide, namely “quantitative”, “consistency”, “materiality” and “balance”.

“Quantitative” The Company has established internal guidelines and procedures,
by reference to industry practices, guidelines of exchanges or relevant government
departments, laws and regulations, and has collected environmental performance data
from various business departments and kept records from relevant monitoring instruments

or supporting documents.

“Consistency” The statistical method for the data and contents disclosed in the report
is the same as that for the previous year, and the same statistical and conversion
methods have been used. Relevant historical data have been disclosed in the report to
give stakeholders a clearer understanding and comparison of the Company's sustainable
development performance.

“Materiality”™ In defining material ESG issues related to the Company's business and
stakeholders, we maintain communication with internal and external stakeholders
of the Group to understand their expectations and suggestions. We maintain close
communication with all stakeholders, including employees, investors, customers, suppliers,
local government agencies and local organizations, whether they are affected by or have a

significant impact on our operating business.

“Balance™: This report presents the Company's environmental, social and governance

performance in an impartial manner.
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The Company understands the importance of the stakeholders’ participation in achieving
its sustainable development, so the Company persists in communicating with relevant
internal and external stakeholders regularly to know about their opinions on the
Company's business development, environmental, social and governance aspects, and to
help us satisfy the stakeholders’ expectations. The Company's key stakeholders and the

communication methods with them are as follows:
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Investors and shareholders

Communication Methods
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. Business meeting
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Government and regulatory authorities o Public consultation
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° Announcement

. DOk

° Employees Activities

s BITEH

o Enterprise WeChat

o BERME

®  Performance evaluation
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° Questionnaire survey
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° Plant visit

s BREEE
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The management of the Group regularly reviews the operation of its various departments,
identifies relevant environmental, social and governance issues, consults and synthesizes
the results of stakeholders' participation and assesses the significance of these issues to
our business and our stakeholders. We will disclose in this Report the environmental,
social and governance issues we deem to be most material. Our environmental, social
and governance working group has verified and confirmed the major environmental, social
and governance issues and their correlation with the key performance indicators of the

corresponding ESG Guidelines. The materiality assessment results are shown as follows:
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° Emissions
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° Use of Resources
o  EBREH

*  Staff Employment
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] Health and Safety

. EEERe

®  Development and Training
o BREMEI

®  labor Standards

o HBTER

®  Compliance with Laws and Regulations

o BYARNAR
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Important Issues

EERE

Environmental
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o Environment and Natural Resources
o RIRNRABR
o Conflict Minerals
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Social
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. Employees Activities
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®  Supply Chain Management
o fERER
®  Product Liability
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e Community Involvement
s HRZE
Governance
R
®  Anti-corruption
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Based on the materiality assessment results, this Report serves to provide an overview
of our sustainable development principles, policies and actual practices under five topics,
namely Devotion to Environmental Protection, Establishment of a Team of Excellence,
Responsible Supply Chain and Product Liability Management, Compliance in Operations

and Community Involvement and Visit and Guidance of Officials of the Government.

ENVIRONMENTAL/OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY OF
MOBI

We are committed to: conducting our business activities in a manner that take
responsibility for the environment and the health and safety of our staff, fulfilling our
responsibilities in protecting the environment and promoting the health and safety of our

staff, in order to provide more competitive products and services to our customers.

To this end, we have developed a clear environmental/occupational health and safety

management policy, requiring us to:

Maintain precautions for strengthening risk management;

Comply with environmental and safety regulations, raise the awareness of all parties;
Advocate green operations, step up emissions reduction;

Emphasize pollution prevention, perform environmental and safety commitments;

Pay attention to employee health, ensure safe production;

Create environmental and safety culture, support consultation and participation;
Optimize environmental and safety performance, encourage continuous improvement;

Collaborate with all stakeholders, achieve synergies and progress.

Details of the environmental/occupational health and safety management policy are as

follows:

> Adhere to the ideology of maintaining precautions in the first place, establish,
implement and maintain a documented EHS (“EHS") management system, to
achieve systematic and standardized management, incorporate risk management
into our normal operations and business activities, and strengthen the identification,
assessment and control of sources of danger and environmental risk factors
of occupational health and safety, emphasize the identification and analysis of
and response to risks and opportunities in our management system, and plan

countermeasures;
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Comply with international agreements, laws and regulations and environmental and
health and safety requirements of relevant parties, continue to provide education
and training on the environment and health and safety, enhance the awareness,
knowledge and skills of employees in terms of the environment and health and

safety, to enhance the initiatives of all employees in taking part;

Promote the philosophy of green operations, adhere to the sustainable
development strategy, and incorporate it into the entire life cycle of products and
services; consider and pay attention to the potential impacts on the environment
in the early stage of the life cycle of products and services; taking into account
the whole life cycle of product, and adopting concrete measures in all aspects to
prevent harm to the environment, reduce energy and resource consumption, and

strive for environmental affinity;

Emphasize and raise the awareness of pollution prevention, and take prior
control measures to avoid pollution prevention; meantime, attach significance to
the sustainable use of resources, mitigate and adapt to the climate change, and
protect biodiversity and ecosystem, performing our commitment to environmental
protection. MOBI is also committed to eliminating sources of danger, and takes all

feasible measures to reduce occupational health and safety risks;

Put the occupational health and safety of our staff in the first place to ensure that all
business activities strictly comply with respective working procedures and policies,
so as to create a healthy and safe working environment for our employees with

zero injuries and zero accidents;
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

> The Company strives to create and advocate a culture of protecting environment,
saving resources, preventing pollution and paying attention to safety that supports
the environment and occupational health and safety management system to
achieve expected results. We have established and improved the Health and
Safety Committee and ensure its exercise of functions. We have also set and
implemented a mechanism and process for staff consultation and participation
to ensure that our staff can actively participate in occupational health and safety
activities, provide consultative suggestions and opinions and participate in process
of the decision-making, thereby ensuring that our employees at all levels are fully
communicated with the effective occupational health and safety management and

the importance to meet its requirements;

> Continuously optimize environmental and health and safety management system
performance, persevere in developing new technologies, processes, approaches and
products that are beneficial to the environment and the health and safety of our

employees, and always search for “better solutions’;

> We advocate the concept of EHS, and incorporate related requirements into our
supply chain management activities, to improve performance with our suppliers,
contractors, and subcontractors from the perspective of the overall supply chain,
with a pursuit of a harmonious balance between corporate development, social

responsibility and the health and safety of our employees.

Safe production is a core value of the Company. It is the Company's basic responsibility
to prevent casualties and fatalities of our employees and to create a safe and healthy
working environment. The Company strives to become an outstanding organization with
continuous improvement and long-term development. In developing the Company's
strategic objectives, action decisions and in conducting daily operations, the Company will

consider factors such as economy, environment, health, safety and social responsibility.

All of our management personnel are the medium to promote our priorities in the
environment, health and safety, and the exponent for putting such ideas into practice. All
employees are required to comply with the Company’s safety regulations and policies.
Employees are the Company's most essential asset and each employee’s contribution
to the Company is unique and value-adding. The Company encourages, recognizes and
rewards employees for their active contributions to the Company's environmental, safety

and health performance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiIR HERERES

GENERAL RULES ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY OF MOBI
The Company manages its social responsibility and commitment within the scope of
its control and influence, and ensures that the management systems and regulations

it formulates comply with national laws and regulations and internationally recognized

SAB000 ethical standards.

This includes the principles of the following international agreements and relevant
national laws, regulations and policies: International Labor Organization Convention 29
and Convention 105 (forced labor and debt-bondage), International Labor Organization
Convention 87 (freedom of association), International Labor Organization Convention 98
(right to organize and collective bargaining), Intemational Labor Organization Convention
100 and Convention || (equal remuneration and discrimination), International Labor
Organization Convention 135 (workers' representatives), International Labor Organization
Convention 138 and Recommendation 146 (minimum age and recommendations),
International Labor Organization Convention 155 and Recommendation 164 (occupational
safety and health), International Labor Organization Convention 159 (vocational
rehabilitation and employment), International Labor Organization Convention |77 (home
work), The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child under The Universal

Declaration of Human Rights etc.

The Company hires, manages and assigns employees in accordance with the requirements
under relevant laws and regulations, including the Labor Law of the PRC, the Labor
Contract Law of the PRC, the Social Insurance Law of the PRC, the Employment
Promotion Law of the PRC, the Implementation Regulations of the Labor Contract Law
of the PRC, the Special Rules on Labor Protection of Female Employees, the Provisions
on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor (Order No. 364 of the State Council), Regulatory
Standards for Penalties Against the Employment of Child Labor (Ministry of Labor, MOF
Document, Laolizi (1992) 27), Regulations on the Special Protection of the Minority
Workers and Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC to pay the salaries of employees at
standards higher than local minimum wages and complies with the provisions of the Labor
Law on working hours, overtime compensation and remuneration. We strictly prohibit the

recruitment of child lab.

The Company will not to use any form of forced labor, and signs an employment contract
with the employee’s consent and full understanding of the terms, and will not require
any employee to pay any “deposit” or deposit identity documents at the beginning of

employment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Company has appointed the executive vice president of the senior management team
to take full responsibility for the health and safety of all employees, and the Group and its
subsidiaries has formed Safety Production Committee which is responsible for ensuring
and achieving safe production on the part of the Company. The Company has established
an occupational health and safety management mechanism to effectively identify sources
of danger and to reduce and prevent potential threats to employees’ health and safety

through hazard assessment, preventive measures and related emergency mechanisms.

The Company is committed to providing a safe, clean, healthy and productive working
environment for all employees by providing drinking water, medical and sanitation facilities,
fire safety and proper ventilation conditions. The Company will also take necessary
measures on its own initiative to minimize possible hazards in the workplace when
possible in order to avoid work-related accidents and health hazards. The Company
regularly focuses on reviewing health and safety conditions in the workplace, canteens and

dormitories, and makes constant improvements based on issues identified.

The Company provides training for all employees on health and safety, energy
conservation, environmental protection and various management systems and standards.
In addition, It also provides induction training for new staff, and retraining for transferring

staff.

The Company has formed a trade union which helps its members to safeguard their
legitimate rights and interests, encourages regular communications between employees
and the Company, and assists with solving any special difficulties they have. The Company
respects the freedom of all employees to participate in the trade union, and collective

bargaining as well as their freedom of association.

The Company is strictly prohibited from engaging in or supporting matters based on
race, ethnicity, social hierarchy, nationality, religion, physical disability, gender, age, sexual
orientation, trade union membership or political discrimination in matters relating to the
appointment, remuneration, welfare, training opportunities, promotion, discipline, dismissal

or retirement.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HERERKRE

The Company fully respects the personal religious beliefs and ethnic customs of
employees. We prohibit any personal discrimination and infringement of rights. The
Company does not interfere with the rights of employees to observe their religious beliefs

and customs.

The Company undertakes to respect and treat every employee impartially. It prohibits
compulsive, abusive or exploitative acts of intrusion in the form of gesture, language and
physical contact. The Company also prohibits the engagement or support of corporal

punishment, mental or physical persecution and verbal humiliation.

The Company actively takes measures against extortion and bribery or any form of

corruption, advocates fair and orderly competition and prohibits unfair competition.

In assessing and shortlisting suppliers, the Company considers the ability of suppliers to
meet the requirements of this policy and prioritizes them who have the ability to meet the

requirements.

If necessary, the Company may provide information to stakeholders and communicate
with them on, including but not limited to, the results of its management reviews and
audits. The Company may provide stakeholders with reasonable information and access
to information for them to determine whether the Company fulfills its social responsibility
and ethical commitments. If there is any doubt as to whether the Company fulfills its
obligation on social responsibility and ethical commitments, the Company will conduct
timely investigations before handling and responding to related enquiries. If any employee
presents a question as to whether the Company complies with the requirements of those
provisions, the Company will not penalize, dismiss or discriminate against the employee
for it. If any violation of corporate social responsibility and ethical commitments is found,
the Company will take appropriate remedial measures and correctible actions against in

accordance with the severity of its nature.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Company engages third parties to conduct annual tracking and auditing of the
relevant management system to ensure that it complies with relevant management
system requirements and standards. In recent years, the Company has also received more
surveys on the environment, safety and health, carbon emissions, conflict minerals from
key customers, to which the Company has given positive response. During the Reporting
Period, the Company has not received any complaints and penalties from government,

third parties and customers in these respects.

DEVOTION TO ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Company persists in operating its business in an environmentally responsible manner
and adheres to the concept of sustainable development by taking various measures to
reduce the environmental impact arising from its production and business activities with
an aim of achieving harmonious coexistence with the society, the environment and its
stakeholders. The concept of innovation and environmental consciousness have also been
infiltrated into our entire product life cycle and all business processes from research and
development, production, logistics to customer service. We spare no effort in reducing

energy consumption, resource consumption and carbon dioxide emissions.

The Company has been monitoring and managing our emissions for many years. In recent
years, we have also begun to monitor greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption.
We hope to strike a balance between business growth and environmental protection by
improving our business operations and practice, and encouraging employees to work in an

environmentally responsible manner in the workplace.

The Company complies with the EU RoHS and China RoHS-related Directive. We
conduct comprehensive management of hazardous substances from product design,
procurement, production to delivery, to avoid the use of prohibited substances, and
to ensure that the volume of restricted substances is within relevant restricted ranges.
The Company also provides declarations of hazardous substances and the content
of substances for customers that require them. Where necessary, the Company may
also provide inspection reports from third parties on the composition of substances to

customers as required.
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RIR - HERERKRE

The Company complies with the EU WEEE Directive and adopts ecological product
design with full consideration of recyclability of products, generalized design and the most
economical design principle, to satisfy the recovery rate and the recycling rate of products

and to minimize the environmental impact on the product life cycle from the source.

In general, the Company's production process and business nature enable low-emission,
low-energy consumption and low pollutant generation. We are committed to operating
our entire business in compliance with relevant environmental protection laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Company did not violate any relevant

environmental regulations and was not subject to any related penalty either.

EMISSIONS

The Company focuses on the waste management arising from its operating process.

The Company mainly adopts mechanical processing, assembly and testing for its
production and does not discharge industrial wastewater. The Company's domestic
wastewater mainly comes from the drainage of office washrooms and water from
its kitchen. There is no discharge of toxic, hazardous or special substances. For oily
wastewater produced from cleaning canteen kitchens, solid waste is first filtered through
cleaning tank filters. Preliminary filtered kitchen wastewater will flow towards a three-stage
grease trap, where major pollutants are removed during grease treatment before being
discharged into the municipal sewage pipe network. Toilet sewage will go through septic
tank treatment in the industrial area, and will be discharged through the local municipal

sewage pipe network.

Industrial air emissions arising from the production process of the Company mainly come
from residual lead-free solder exhaust, which is collected from exhaust gas collection
devices installed in the workshops and led to the top floor of the workshops through
pipelines to achieve high-altitude emissions. Meanwhile, we continue to improve the
ventilation of our workshops. The emission of exhaust gases after treatment meet
the"Air Pollutant Emission Limit" standards and produces little impact on the surrounding

environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The noise sources of the Company include certain production equipment, such as the
CNC punch press, stamping equipment, die-casting equipment, air conditioning units, air
compressors, cooling towers, fans, pumps and other ancillary power equipment. With
machine layout of the workshops and routine regular equipment maintenance, the noise
generated in the production process meets the “Standard of Boundary Noise of Industrial

Enterprise” and has limited impact on the surrounding environment.

The solid waste produced by the Company includes general industrial solid waste,
domestic waste and a small amount of hazardous waste. Among these, the general
industrial solid waste mainly comprises of production packaging materials, metal scrap,
lead-free slag and plastic scrap, which are sold to relevant extemal parties after collection
by category, for recycling treatment. Domestic waste is handled by environmental and
health departments after collection by category. Residual hazardous waste produced
during the production process mainly comprises of oily rags, oily gloves and waste oil,
the volume of which falls below the minimum requirements for transport, and so they
are regularly delivered to external parties with relevant qualifications in hazardous waste

disposal for collective treatment.

In addition, through continuous improvement of our production process, including the
gradual shift to semi-automatic or fully automated production methods, the Company
strives to enhance production capacity and reduce labor input to increase production
efficiency, while improving staff training and management to improve operating
performance, consummating and standardizing the management system of the Company,
vigorously promoting clean production, and actively pursuing energy-saving measures by
using environmentally friendly materials and improving the utilization of raw materials.
We always use recyclable packaging materials to reduce pollutant emissions and achieve

advanced circular economic standard.
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RIR - HERERKRE

Consumption of Packaging Materials (Tons)
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Note: As affected by the epidemic, overseas orders decreased, product shipments declined, and packaging

materials decreased compared with 2019.

The Company's statistics on waste in 2020 are as follows:

Industrial wastewater: none.

Domestic sewage: 228,451 tons, recording an increase from 2019, all discharged
through the local municipal sewage pipe network. Water consumption rose due to
the increase of employees in Jian and Xian plants, and domestic sewage in 2020
increased due to the increased water consumption for greenbelt irrigation in Xian
plant.

Domestic Sewage Output (Tons)

235,000
230,000

225,000 228,451
220,000
215,000
210,000
205,000 2026808
200,000
195,000
190,000
185,000
2020
2. Lead-free solder exhaust: traces in compliance with regional environmental standard

and without significant environmental impact.

3. Factory noise: in compliance with regional environmental standards.
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4. General solid waste (recyclable): the amount of general solid waste (recyclable) 4. —ARERE (RIEY) - F20205 ERER
declined as compared with 2019, because the packaging materials usage decreased ZEETR  AMERETR B3 —
due to output decline caused by the epidemic in 2020. RRERE (TR EXEER2019FEEF

B -
General Solid Waste (Recyclable) Output (Tons) —REE (TEK) EER (W)

60 60

49.96 49.96

50 50

40 40

© 28.16 " 28.16

20 20

10 e

10
0
2020 2019 0
20205 20194

5. Household waste: household waste declined as compared with 2019, due to 5. AENIR : F200F ERBFEELY

suspension of production and work caused by the epidemic in 2020. 2 BRAEFENRL2009FEBMRE
P
Household Waste Output (Tons) EERREER (W)
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6. Hazardous waste: the amount of hazardous waste increased, mainly because 6. EREEY: F00FEHREBEE

hazardous waste generated from equipment maintenance, supposed to be handled B REREEENCERRMEEDE

by original suppliers, was all handled by the Company in a compliant manner due TRENARDBG—EHRER R

to regulation of hazardous waste management in 2020, and the amount of scrap XEEEMBRAR WEEBONHE

rubber increased due to the adjustment of product structure. 2 EREREEYELSEMN -
Hazardous Waste Output (Tons) BREZEYEELR (M)
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The statistics about the Company’s total greenhouse gas emissions in 2020 were as ARENOOFERERBAHMERTEH

follows: (I
2020 2019
20204 20194
Carbon emissions Carbon emissions
(carbon dioxide Volume per (carbon dioxide Volume per
(CO,) equivalent) working hour  (CO,) equivalent) working hour
YR E BENTHE B E BRUTHE
(=& B Co, (=& LB Co,
ath 5 [= ="
E8) E8)
Total greenhouse gas emissions (tons) 742539 0.0027/working hour 8,12054  0.0024/working hour
BERBEHNE (W) 00027,/ Lk 00024, TH§
Direct emissions — emissions from vehicles,
power generators and boilers (tons) 31156 0.0001/working hour 36641 0.0001/working hour
BRI T - HERNERED R () 00001,/ L& 00001,/ T
Indirect emissions — emissions from
electricity (tons) 7,11383  0.0026/working hour 7,754.13  0.0023/working hour
FEHEHEIN — P Bh i (WE) 00026,/ Tk 00023/ Tk
Note |1 Total working hours in 2020 were 2,739,749.07 hours F 2020 B TR R2,739,749.07 /MK

Note 2:  The calculation of the above greenhouse gas emissions is based on the 2019 China Regional 2 DERERBZFERERRPEARLNEE

Grid Baseline Emission Factors announced by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the BIRBEHAM2QIIFERRE S EHEE
People’s Republic of China. SRBERER) o
- . . S meme . e
Note 3:  The total greenhouse gas emissions decreased as compared with those 2019, but the emissions 3 RERBLHMERN9FEERE BB
. . . . . . = =N
per working hour slightly increased as compared with those 2019. For detailed analysis of THRHFREB019FBA L - ARRAS T
, ) s NPl Y
reasons, please refer to the following description on usage of energy resources. HATEEERERERERGA -
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions BERBAGHE
8200 8,120.54 8200 8,120.54
8,000 8,000
7,800 7,800
7,600 7,600
7,425.39 7,425.39
7,400 7,400
7,200 7,200 !
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2019 2020 20195
Greenhouse Gas Emissions per Working Hour BERREN TR
000275 0.0027 000275 0.0027
000270 0.00270
0.00265 0.00265
0.00260 0.00260
0.00255 0.00255
0.00250 0.00250
0.00245 0.0024 0.00245 0.0024
0.00240 0.00240
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0.00230 0.00230
000225 0.00225
2020 20205 20195
Production Working Hours EETRIH
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USE OF RESOURCES: ENERGY, WATER AND OTHER RAW MATERIALS

The main raw materials consumed in the Company's production are aluminum, copper,
steel, plastic, PCB boards and others. At the product level, we focus on the efficient use of
resources. In the product development stage, we conduct rigorous design and assessment
to assure product features and performance while using a variety of materials in the most
frugal manner by the use of environmentally friendly and recyclable or reusable materials.
This not only ensures that costs can be controlled, but also reduces the consumption of
resources. We promote clean production and strengthen equipment maintenance while

improving energy efficiency.

In our daily office operations, we advocate the concept of energy-saving. Through regular
self-examinations, inspection and reporting, we enhance the awareness and capability of
our staff in energy-saving and reducing emissions. Meanwhile, we advocate a paperless

office to reduce the use of paper, and always reuse waste paper, such as print and copy

paper.

The Company attaches great importance to electricity saving, and promotes environmental
protection and energy conservation through the implementation of relevant policies and
measures, to achieve energy conservation and consumption reduction. For example, we
make full use of natural light when the weather is bright. We always choose energy-saving
products when purchasing lamps and electrical appliances. We switch off idle lights,
computers and electrical appliances. In summer, our air conditioning is generally set
at room temperature of above 26 degrees. We conduct timely maintenance of air
conditioners to ensure their good operation. We encourage the use of telephone and
video conferencing systems to reduce business travel. We also post some energy-saving

tips on our intranet to remind employees to practice energy-saving ideas.

In terms of water saving, water in the Company comes from the city water supply
system. It is mainly used as domestic water in our offices. Our production process does
not involve industrial water and therefore does not have a serious adverse impact on
rivers, lakes and underground water. We develop and refine water-saving management
system with the use of a water saving faucet, to ensure that the concept of water-saving is

implemented in practice.
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Achieving the efficient use of resources not only requires a sound management system,
and implementation of relevant policies, but also the cooperation and support of staff.
The Company strives to create a corporate culture that treasures resources, enhances
employee awareness of environmental issues, and encourages employees to actively

participate in and fulfill our environmental commitments.

The major energy and resources consumed by the Company are electricity, water, paper,
natural gas, gasoline and diesel. The following table shows the use of energy resources for
2020 and 2019:

BRERER TEFETENEEGE -
HEEENEEEFRRRE NS MX
o ARABNEELRERNEEXL
REEINRREH BEEIBGLHEN
BERIRREAG

AATEEEENTZRMERAS N -
KR - RARRM A ML - T%&‘J/T\
2020F EA019FERELRERERER

2020 2019
2020 20195

Consumption Consumption
Energy Consumption Total Consumption  per working hour ~ Total Consumption ~ per working hour
RERHE HEHRE BAUTIRHER HERE BUIREEE
Electricity (KWh) 8,845,844.39 3.229/working hour 926751866  2.784/working hour
& (ThE) 3209/ 1 2784/ TBs
Water (Tons) 248,866.03  0.091/working hour 22520000  0.067/working hour
7K (1) 0091,/ Ik 0067/ IF
Paper (Sheets) 371954300 1.3576/working hour 5142,094.89  1.5449/working hour
% () 13576,/ LB 15449,/ T s
Canteen liquefied gas (Litres) 1333435  0.0049/working hour 12,462.67  0.0037/working hour
RERILR (1) 00049,/ T B 00037/ I
Motor gasoline (Litres) 3651631 0.013/working hour 4481087  0.013/working hour
BATH () 0013/ TH 0013/ IFK
Motor and power generator diesel (Litres) 5283265  0.019/working hour 63,881.18  0.019/working hour
HRAREEHBLH (F) 0019/ Ik 0019/ TH

paerstags O ComSumPton ofEnergy S R s

10,000,000 | 8,845,844.39

5,142,094.89

4481087 6388118

1335455 36,516.31 5283265

225,200
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1,000,000

Electricity Water Paper Canteen Motor Motor
liquefied gas  gasoline  and power
generator diesel
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Energy Consumption per Working Hour BEREN T EEER

m2020 W 2009 W20205 M 20199
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e
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Among which,

The total consumption of electricity in 2020 decreased over that in 2019, but
the consumption per working hour slightly increased over that in 2019, mainly
because the working hours of employees were reduced due to the suspension of
production and work caused by the epidemic, and the consumption per working
hour rose slightly as the daily electricity consumption except for production was

not highly affected by the epidemic.

The total consumption of water in 2020 increased over that in 2019, but the
consumption per working hour slightly increased over that in 2019, mainly
because the working hours of employees were reduced due to the suspension of
production and work caused by the epidemic, and the consumption per working
hour rose slightly due to the increase of employees in Ji'an and Xian, and the

increased water consumption for greenbelt irrigation in Xian plant.

The total consumption of papers and the consumption per working hour in 2020
decreased over those in 2019, mainly because the Company adopted remote
work at the beginning of the year due to the epidemic, resulting in increased online
approval documents, and employees’ awareness of saving paper increased, which

led to a decrease in paper consumption and consumption per working hour.

The total consumption and the consumption per working hour of canteen liquefied
gas in 2020 slightly increased over those in 2019, mainly due to the increased
canteen liquefied gas consumption caused by the increased employees dining in the

canteen in Xian plant.
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RE #HE8REAR
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Microcell antenna (PCS)

Integrated aesthetic antennas (PCS)
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5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000

1,000,000

wE

The total consumption of motor gasoline in 2020 declined as compared with
2019, and the consumption per working hour was basically the same as that in
2019, mainly due to: Xi'an and Jian plants strengthened management and control
of vehicles, optimized their vehicle dispatching to reduce the frequency of vehicle

usage.

The total consumption of diesel in 2020 declined as compared with 2019, and
the consumption per working hour was basically the same as that in 2019, mainly
because the consumption of diesel decreased as the transportation of goods
declined due to the epidemic, and employees’ working hours decreased. The two
decline ratios were basically the same, resulting in the consumption per working

hour being the same as last year.

The total working hours (2,739,749.07h) in 2020 declined by 17.69% as compared
with the total working hours (3,328,416.66h) in 2019, as a result of which the total
consumption of electricity, water, papers and canteen liquefied gas declined, but the
consumption per working hour still increased slightly despite of the improved daily

energy saving and consumption reduction.
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ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Based on the nature of the Company's main business, our business activities will not have
a significant impact on the environment and natural resources. However, the Company
will continue to enhance environmental protection to reduce any adverse effects on the

environment brought about by our business operations.

According to the environmental laws, regulations and relevant policies of the PRC,
including the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Environment Protection Tax Law of People's Republic of China, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Water Pollution Prevention and Control, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution, Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Wastes and the Energy Conservation Law of the People's Republic of China,
when carrying out project construction, the Company will assess the potential pollution
arising during the construction and production process, the feasibility of governance
measures, whether production processes and products are in line with clean production
requirements, and the impact of the actual discharge of pollutants on surrounding
environment. An Environmental Impact Assessment Report (“EIA Report”) will be
submitted to the environmental protection department in accordance with the laws and

regulations.

CONFLICT MINERALS

Since the late 1990s, most of the minerals mining in the Democratic Republic of the
Congo and its neighboring countries and territories has contributed to local armed
conflicts, leading to long-term instability in the region and creating serious human rights
and environmental problems. In 2012, the US Securities and Exchange Commission has
required all securities issuers whose production processes involve the use of four types of
minerals, namely tantalum, tin, tungsten and gold, to disclose their mineral sources. These
four types of conflict minerals are widely used in the information and communications
technology products manufacturing industry. The Company takes the initiative to refrain
from using minerals from conflict-affected and high-risk areas and conducts surveys on
conflict minerals every year in cooperation with clients. The Company has signed Conflict
Minerals Agreements with a total of 216 related suppliers in 2020, and has undertaken not

to procure and use metal minerals from conflict-affected or high-risk areas.
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ESTABLISHMENT OF A TEAM OF EXCELLENCE

The Company is committed to creating a good working environment for its employees.
We attach great importance to the value of talents, carry out selection of high-quality
talent and make good use of their talents. We mainly recruit through on-campus and
general recruitment. Our recruitment procedure is open, fair and reasonable. The
Company has established a series of standardized human resources recruitment and
training programmes and systems, which have been strictly implemented. In 2016, the
Company set up the MOBI Academy to provide educational training and training functions
for all levels of the Company, providing valuable seminars to support and strengthen
the knowledge and skills of employees for the benefit of their career development and
promotion. The Company provides competitive remuneration packages, sets working
hours complying with relevant national policies and regulations. We also provide various
types of paid leave, as required by the government, and do not allow any inequality or

discrimination in respect of job opportunities and other aspects.

STAFF EMPLOYMENT
I.  Employment Chart:

Employment Situation
2020 W20(9
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500 I
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60.00% 59.05%
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Note: As affected by the epidemic, the external market environment fluctuated greatly, and
orders were unstable, resufting in large changes in frontline production personnel and a

higher tumover rate.
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2. Age Distribution Chart:

Age Distribution of Employees
B Age 30 and below B Age 31-40 M Age 41-50 MAge 51-60 M Age 61 and above
37 2
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912
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1,031
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3. Education Structure Chart:

Education Structure
M Master’ s degree M Bachelor’ s degree M College M High school or technical M Junior high school
and above secondary school and below
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HEALTH AND SAFETY
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2 FRIMER:

BIFRDM
W30RAT 31-40 41-50 W50 W6l RIALE
37 2
159% 0.09%
364
1552%
912 1031
38.86% 4394%

3. EBEMEX:
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REEZZ

The Company established an occupational health and safety management system which RRNREML TISO45001 B ERFEL 2B

was recognized by the ISO45001. The day-to-day operation of the Company follows

% TRERE - ARMAREESREER

national laws and regulations, including the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic EREER  AE(PEARKENBEZ2EE
of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of E)  (REARKAMBEBZERNAE) - (F
Occupational Diseases, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and ~ #EAREMBEGELRERHAZE)  (REARH

Treatment of Infectious Diseases, the Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,

MEDEFE) - (THERER GG - CFERE

the Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances, the Regulations on Safety Supervision ZEERGD) (2 EEFTAFERH) -
of Special Equipment, the Regulation on Work Safety Permits, the Measures for the (BRIt B REREEIE) - (PEARLM

Administration of Registration of Hazardous Chemicals, the Social Insurance Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Measures for the Administration of Occupational

Health Examination, and its health and safety policy and regulations to ensure a safe and

BitgRns) M BEREREEEINE) -
NEREZEEABIENRE - BREE—
B2 MERNTERE  REEIHF L

healthy working environment and to protect the physical and mental health and safety of MERZZ -

our employees.
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Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic, the Board has been closely monitoring
the epidemic and responded cautiously. The executive directors and senior management
of the Group established “MOBI Group Emergency Management Commanding Team
for the Prevention of Epidemic” on 26 January 2020 to closely monitor and respond to
the development of the epidemic, and report major issues to the emergency team as
soon as possible for making unified decisions and coordinate the management team and
various departments of the Group to implement relevant measures. The Group has also
adopted comprehensive and strict preventive and control measures in accordance with
relevant regulations issued by the Chinese government to fight against the epidemic, and
the relevant measures have begun to show results. Although the Group has gradually
resumed production, the Group will continue to strictly abide by these preventive and
control measures to ensure that employees can work in a safe and healthy environment.
During the Reporting Period, the Company did not receive any report on the violation of

laws and regulations related to health and safety in workplaces.

Staff health examination: The Company provides staff health examinations on an
annual basis. Funded by the Company, all staff are entitled to physical health checks
at medical institutions where medical reports as well as health advices will be

provided.

2. Occupational disease inspections: The Company conducts occupational disease
inspections on annual basis for employees identified with potential exposure to
minimize the risks. In 2020, a total of 261 employees have been arranged for

occupational disease inspections.

3. Workiinjury data: In 2020, zero work-related fatalities was recorded. Meantime, the
Company recorded the total reportable accident rate per a million working hours
of 0.34 and the lost-time rate per a million working hours of 79.87 in 2020, which
decreased as compared with those of .23 and 411.80 in 2019, mainly because the
Company strengthened safety management and safety awareness of employees

was enhanced.
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(Note: total reportable accident rate per a million working hours = total number of reportable (: BBIREACHEQRE=-@rIHE
accidents (including work-related injuries and accidents) |0%total working hours, and HRE (BTE - BN *100 BTk
lost-time rate per a million working hours = lost working hours (including work-related BEIRBATIRR=BLXIR(ET
injuries and accidents) |0%total working hours) B BN #1000 BTHE)
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Health and safety manual: The health and safety manual is available to every 4. REZ2FM : B EITHAELE

employee at any time on the WeChat platform of the Company so that they could WMiETE LRNHEIREZ2FM
learn about the Company's health and safety concepts, strategies, measures, and J’/{E@E\I%%)b%% RAMBERZERE

safety guidelines, and know about what is right or wrong though pictures and texts, R BN 2TRERE - E
I TREB X KB R T EREE -

=HEE - BRR R RELRE

11 )

so as to prevent risks and reduce health and safety hazards.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Company's MOBI Academy has a wealth of courses, including on corporate culture
and rules and regulations, new employee induction training courses, staff basic skills
training, on-the-job knowledge training, management skills and leadership, and other
aspects. The course lecturers include the Company's in-house instructors and external
lecturers from external schools and training institutions. In 2020, the Company completed
a total of 58,674.23 hours of training, with a total of 5,560 attendants, representing an
average of 10.55 training hours per person. As affected by the epidemic, the Company's
interal centralized training and external training decreased, resulting in a slight decline of

the total training hours and the per capita training hours as compared with 2019.

Total Training Hours
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12.79

2020 2019

The Company has also cooperated with a number of tertiary institutions. Through the
provision of pre-courses to send students to the Company as intems, we hope to alleviate
the disconnection between school learing and the actual needs of enterprises with

common training of practical talents.

The Company has established an internal platform for career development and promotion
in operations, technology and management. Through a well-functioning mechanism,
employees are encouraged to exert their talents, expand their horizons and maintain
their vitality, ensuring that the development of our employees synchronizes with the

development of the Company.
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() “Patent Value and Mining” Patent Knowledge Training: (1 [BREEEEZRE | ZRMEE

(2)  Cadre Ability Improvement Training on System Integration Management: () ZEEEREEHDEIRAVEI

(3)  Manufacturing System “Value Engineering” Study and Sharing Activity: () HRERG(BEIRZBIZTEH:

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
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LABOR STANDARDS

The Company strictly abides by national laws and regulations, including the Labor Law of
the PRC, the Labor Contract Law of the PRC, the Social Insurance Law of the PRC, the
Employment Promotion Law of the PRC, the Labor Dispute Mediation and Arbitration
Law of the PRC, the Law on Safeguarding Women's Interests and Rights of the PRC, the
Law on the Protection of Minors of the PRC, the Implementation Regulation of the Labor
Contract Law of the PRC, the Special Rules on Labor Protection of Female Employees
of the PRC, the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor, the Regulations on
Paid Annual Leave for Employees and the Provisions on Minimum Wages. We do not
employ child labor or use any forced labor in any of our businesses. In the recruitment of
employees, we will verify the age of candidates through an identity card verification system
to prevent non-compliance. During the Reporting Period, the Company did not receive
any reports of non-compliance. For details, please see “General Rules on Corporate Social

Responsibility of MOBI" above.

The Company provides each employee with statutory social security such as five
insurances and one fund (pension, medical care, unemployment, workers” compensation,
maternity, housing provident fund) in accordance with national policies. In addition, the

Company will maintain corresponding commercial insurance for employees as required.

The Company strictly follows national laws and regulations and provides various kinds of
paid time off to ensure that every employee has reasonable working hours and holidays,
including statutory holidays, marriage leave, matemity leave, paid annual leave and paid sick

leave, to encourage employees to strike a balance between work and life.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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STAFF ACTIVITIES: CULTURAL CAMPAIGNS AND RECREATIONAL
SPORTS

We pay great attention to humanistic care and team building. For many years, we
continue exploring new cultural and sports mechanisms for staff, and striving to assist
employees in achieving a work-life balance, improving the working and living conditions of

staff and enhancing their happiness and sense of belonging.

() “Co-Drawing a Map of the Park” Orienteering Activity at the Mould Base:

Rz #HERERES
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(2)  Ji'an Antenna Workshop Welding Skills Competition:

2 BHRAGEMERRELRAE:
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(3) 2020 “MOBI Cup” Tug of War Competition: () 2020 [EELLHR | BOTLLEE

(4) 2020 Creo Software Competition (4 2020FECreo BB LLE

(5) 2020 HFSS Simulation Software Competition (5) 2020FEHFSSERBBHREAE

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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RESPONSIBLE SUPPLY CHAIN AND PRODUCT LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Company is committed to promoting the integrity of business practices and positive
social responsibility, to guiding the suppliers’ code of conduct, and stipulating requirements
on corporate social responsibility of suppliers in relation to integrity, law-abiding, respect
for human rights, employment of labor, health and safety, environmental protection and
business ethics. We require each supplier to follow the standard and the relevant laws and
regulations of their place of operation, especially key suppliers with long-term cooperation.
In 2020, we signed corporate social responsibility agreements with 216 suppliers with a
view to exerting influence on their environmental, social and governance requirements.

The types of agreements and undertakings signed are as follows:

“Supplier's Green Product (GP) Declaration”

“Supplier Quality Assurance Agreement”

“Supplier Quality Assurance Agreement — Supplemental Agreement”

"Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Agreement with Suppliers, Contractors, and
Outsourcers of MOBI"

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Company emphasizes the management of Product Responsibility. During the product
research and development stage, we carry out stringent implementation of product
management, not only to identify product features and performance requirements, but
also to identify the demand in environment, safety, reliability and other aspects for the
products. We strictly adhere to the industry and international standards to meet customer
and legal requirements in all respects. During the production and delivery stage, in
accordance with the processes and standards developed by the Company, we carry out
product checks and tests at all stages from stocking, manufacturing to product delivery
to ensure the safety of products delivered. In 2020, the Company did not receive any
product returns due to product health and safety problems, and the customer satisfaction

reached 87.50%.
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The Company has implemented an intellectual property policy for many years. We have
documenting procedures and systems to regulate the management and operation of the
Company's intellectual property rights. As of the end of 2020, the Company had applied
for 873 patents, with 149 ones newly increased as compared with that at the end of 2019.
And 631 patents had been granted, with 92 ones newly increased as compared with that
at the end of 2019. No patent infringement incidents occurred in 2020. The Company has
formulated internal controls to protect customer information. There are clear guidelines
available for the collection, storage, use and destruction of customer information. We
have also adopted a variety of measures to prevent leakage, including providing training
on the customer information confidentiality and conducting regular checks for each safety
and security measure. The Company has also established a product recall system, and
there were no product recalls caused by product quality and safety incidents in 2020.
In accordance with customer requirements, the Company will sign business framework
agreements on mutual cooperation with its customers to ensure that confidential
information of both sides will not be disclosed. In 2020, the Company did not receive
any complaints or litigation caused by leakage of customer information and confidential
data. The Company has established a corresponding customer complaint and handling
procedure to regulate the follow-up of customer complaints and product returns or
exchange. In addition, the Company will maintain product liability insurance for customers'
products in response to their individual requirements.
Number of Patents
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COMPLIANCE IN OPERATION

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

It is the basic principle of the Company to carry out operational compliance by abiding
by business ethics and observing the laws and regulations of China and other countries
where the Group operates. The Company is committed to ethical operations and legal
compliance in operations. We practice “zero tolerance” of any violation of laws and
regulations, and any breaches of business ethics. We carry out compliance in operations in
a proactive, effective and scientific manner, and are willing to work with global customers,

suppliers and other business partners to achieve sustainable development.

The business of the Company is mainly carried out by its subsidiaries in Mainland China,
and it is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The operations of the Company strictly
comply with relevant laws and regulations of Mainland China and Hong Kong. During the
Reporting Period, there was no serious breach or non-compliance with relevant laws and

regulations.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Company actively takes measures against extortion and bribery or any form of
corruption. It has a zero-tolerance policy for corruption, and strictly abides by relevant
local laws and regulations, including the Law of the People’s Republic of China Against
Unfair Competition and Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China. The Company
encourages all employees to report any case of corruption and has established a
formalized management system as well as developed a formalized process for the daily
business operations to prevent the occurrence of corruption. The Company has set up
an independent audit department to strengthen the regular review of the operations of
various centers and departments of the Company in order to detect any non-compliance
with the code of ethics. In addition, the Company engages independent auditors to
conduct accounting and auditing of the financial management system on an annual basis to
prevent financial and intemal control risks. During the Reporting Period, the Company was

not involved in any litigation in relation to corruption or bribery.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

As a company that values sustainable development, the Company has been committed
to contributing to the interests of the community, and spared no effort in creating more
value for the community, with a view to fulfilling corporate citizenship responsibilities. The
Company will more actively organize employees to participate in relevant charity and
donation activities, and encourage employees to create value for the community, thus

further enhancing our corporate image.

CHARITY ACTIVITIES
During the Reporting Period, the Company has actively participated in various charity

activities, leaming activities organized by Community Party Branch and other activities.
“Red Flag” party member volunteers outdoor outreach activities

MOBI Academy, the human resources and corporate culture center of the
Company, has actively arranged the party members in the Company to participate
in charity activity organized by the Party Building Service Center of Yutang
subdistrict office, and took a day to clean the beach.

PN e
w2y T P oM

HESHR
ER—RERAFEERNLE - A2
ERH2EBNEEFEOER - @ﬁa%ilnﬁ_u
TERN  BOILEAREE - ARFKE
EMEREEABEIRERBRED &
BMET—REEHLE  E—FRACEM
SR -

DEFE
RMEHE ARAERENEERRE
B HREXHABNBEEDS

I [AEB I RERTIFMIRES

ANERER b O E L B iER
HERRIEESZ bufﬁﬁkzﬁ_ﬂwqﬂ
LRBOMERREE  BR—KE
BRI o

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

MOBI Party Branch established pioneer volunteer team of party members

During the epidemic, the MOBI Party Branch formed a pioneer volunteer team of
party members to go deep into the Company’s front line of fighting the epidemic

and contributed to the Company's epidemic prevention and control.
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“Donate for Love” charity activity on donating used clothes to Daliang Mountain

MOBI organized employees in three places to donate clothes to the poor people

in the Daliang Mountain area.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hu Xiang, aged 67, is an executive Director, the chairman of the board of Directors and
the chief executive officer of our Company. He is also a director, the chief executive
officer and legal representative of MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI Jian and a director of
MOBI Xian and MOBI HK. Mr. Hu was appointed a Director on 19 December 2002.
Mr. Hu was an engineer. Mr. Hu graduated from the Xian Infrastructure University (now
Xian University of Finance and Economics) majoring in radio communication in August
1981. During the period from 1972 to September 1981, Mr. Hu worked in the hydraulic
transmission and control department of the Northwest Industrial University. Mr. Hu
then served as chief of the planning and supply department at Shenzhen Zhongxingxin
Tongxun Shebei Co,, Ltd. for the period from 1992 to 1999. Mr. Hu joined our Group in
August 1999. Mr. Hu was a director of Shenzhen Kang Cheng Jixie Shebei Co,, Ltd. from
June 2002 to June 2007 and the general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxing Weixiantong
Shebei Co,, Ltd. from March 2000 to September 2007. He is a shareholder of Fangyi
Collaboration Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Liao Dong, aged 50, Mr. Liao was appointed as an executive Director and chief
operating officer of the Company with effect from 26 March 2015, Mr. Liao graduated
from Chongging University with a doctoral degree in mechanical manufacturing and its
automation in 1999. Mr. Liao had worked at ZTE Kangxun Telecom Co,, Ltd. during the
period from July 1999 to February 2001 and at ZTE Corporation president” office during
the period from February 2001 to March 2003. Mr. Liao joined the Group in March 2003.

Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian, aged 58, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Qu was appointed a Director on |9 December 2002.
Mr. Qu graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of
Economics and Finance of Xian Jiaotong University) in June 1992 and he further obtained
the qualification as an accountant in the PRC in October 1994. From June 1993 to
April 2003, Mr. Qu was the chief of ZTE Corporation’s accounting and auditing centre
and the deputy chief of its financial centre. In April 2003, Mr. Qu was appointed as the
deputy general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxing Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. and since
September 2007, has been the general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxing Weixiantong
Shebei Co,, Ltd. Mr. Qu joined our Group in December 2002. He is a shareholder of
Fangyi Collaboration Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu, aged 67, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Li was appointed a
Director on | July 2007. Mr. Li graduated from Xian Jiaotong University in 1976 majoring
in computational Mathematics. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Li studied business economics
at Universitat Mannheim in Germany and pursued a doctoral degree at Universitat
Mannheim in 1988. From 1988 to 1995, Mr. Li worked as a research assistant in the
business economics department of Universitat Mannheim. During the period from March
1995 to September 1995, Mr. Li worked in Germany for Friatec Aktiengesellschaft, an
international manufacturing enterprise, and was designated to become the future managing
director for China. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Li first worked for KSB Aktiengesellschaft,
an international machinery manufacturing enterprise, as the assistant to the chairman of
the management board of KSB and then became the chief representative of its Beijing
Representative Office. During the period from 1998 to 2002, Mr. Li took the position of
regional director of Messer, an international chemical manufacturing enterprise, responsible
for its business development in Northern China as well as the operation, sales and profits
of its joint ventures and wholly owned companies in the Northern China region. During
that period, Mr. Li also served as the general manager of Messer North China Industrial
Gas Co, Ltd. and the chairman to the board of Tianjin Messer Gas System Co,, Ltd. Since
2002, Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Delintech Technology Co., Ltd, a
technical promotion service provider and sales service provider. Since 27 March 2011,
Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Zhong Biao Fang Yuan Anti-counterfeiting
Technology Co. Ltd. Mr. Li has valuable experience in international corporate management

and enterprise resources planning (ERP). Mr. Li joined our Group in July 2007.
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Zhang Han, aged 57, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 25
November 2009 and the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Zhang is currently an
independent director of Perfect World Co,, Ltd. (stock code: PWRD), a Nasdaq listed
company, where Mr. Zhang has also served as a member of its audit committee since
July 2008. The responsibilities of such role include overseeing the accounting and financial
reporting processes as well as external and internal audit of the Company. Mr. Zhang
received his bachelor's degree in chemistry from the Peking University in 1985. He
later obtained an EMBA degree from the China Europe International Business School
in 2004. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Zhang worked at Beijing Fiber Reinforced Plastic
Research & Design Institute. Mr. Zhang was the Manager in the securities department
of Shenzhen Shekou China Merchants Co,, Ltd. from 1989 to 1994. Mr. Zhang was the
deputy manager at the finance department of China National Technical Import & Export
Corporation, and also the general manager of Shanghai CNTIC Investment Advisory
Co,, Ltd. from 1994 to 1998. From 1999 to 2000, Mr. Zhang served as assistant to the
general manager, investment director and fund manager at Penghua Fund Management
Co, Ltd, a fund management company in China. Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general
manager of Rongtong Fund Management Co., Ltd, a fund management company in
China, from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Zhang also served as the general manager of Great Wall
Fund Management Co,, Ltd, a fund management company in China, from 2004 to 2005.
Mr. Zhang is currently a partner of Share Capital Partners Ltd, a Chinese venture capital
firm. Mr. Zhang has built up his experience in conducting due diligence work in respect
of the financial performance, management and corporate government quality of various
companies and conducting financial analysis of listed companies throughout his various

tenures in the investment industry. Mr. Zhang joined our Group on 25 November 2009.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ge Xiaojing, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 3 August, 2018. She is a partner of SAIF Partners. Ms. Ge
joined SAIF Partners as vice-president in 2009 and became a partner in 2018. At SAIF
Partners, Ms. Ge has been responsible for investments in high-end smart manufacturing,
big data, energy, education, new media and other areas, and has also led the investments
in certain successful enterprises, including Orbbec (BBLEHY), QKM (ZEEEENL),
UniFortune Supply Chain (Bf& F 2 &5 ), SuperC Technology (JE#%HY ), Hujiang
Education (JBIT#{B ), Xinzhi Digital Media (¥TA1E#E) and Annoroad Technology (%
FEfEE) . In addition, Ms. Ge is currently a director of QKM (ZEE#){t), UniFortune
(Bt 5 ME ), SuperC Technology (B#H ) and Xinzhi Digital Media (¥ A1##E)

From 2005 to 2009, Ms. Ge was the deputy general manager and financial controller of
Mobi Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (BELb K& £ AT ORI BRA 7).
Ms. Ge has nearly 30 years of working experience in, among other things, corporate
finance and operation, international business development, project management and
information technology. Ms. Ge graduated from The George Washington University in
1994 with a master degree. She obtained her master and bachelor degrees from Tsinghua

University in 1986 and 1983, respectively.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Shao Zhiguo, aged 57, was an executive Director of the Company from | April 2012
to 25 March 2015 and is the executive vice-president in research and development and
quality of the Company, MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI Xian and MOBI Jian respectively. Mr.
Shao graduated from the Northwest Telecommunications Engineering College (now
Xidian University) with a bachelor degree in wireless equipment structure design in
1984. In 1998, Mr. Shao obtained a master degree in systematic engineering from Xi'an
Electronic Technology University. During the period of 1984 to 1999, Mr. Shao has held
such positions as engineer and senior engineer at the Shijiazhuang Communications Survey
and Control Technology Institute. Mr. Shao has over |5 years experience of research and
development in the area of telecommunication measurement and control technology and
has received a second class award in Scientific Technology Advancement of the Ministry
of Machine Building and Electronics Industry. Mr. Shao is a senior member of the Chinese
Institute of Electronics. Mr. Shao was a director of Kang Cheng from June 2002 to June

2007. Mr. Shao joined our Group in August 1999.

Kong Weitong, aged 57, is the executive vice-president of the Company, which
responsible for operation, manufacturing and supply chain. Mr. Kong obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of
Economics and Finance of Xian Jiaotong University) in August 1998. Mr. Kong worked
at the China Aerospace Corporation from 1982 to 2002 in the areas of accounting and
audit, where he was appointed as an accountant in 1992 and as a senior accountant in
1999. Mr. Kong became a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified

Public Accountants in 2006. Mr. Kong joined the Group in May 2002.

Chen Yang, aged 39, is the vice president of the Company, responsible for leading
businesses in the operator market in China. Mr. Chen Yang graduated from Xidian University
majoring in electronic information engineering, in 2003, with a Bachelor' s degree. He joined
the Group in 2003, and has successively acted as sales manager in provinces in China and

general manager in the intemational key account marketing region.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ye Rong, aged 41, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading the
business of the research and development of RF products. Mr. Ye Rong graduated from
Xidian University in 2005 with a master of science degree in electromagnetic field and
microwave technology. He joined the Group in 2005 and successively held the posts of
electrical engineer, research and development project manager, division head and the

general manager of the radio-frequency product business division.

Wu Qian, aged 32, was appointed as chief financial officer of the Company with effect
from 13 July, 2018. Ms. Wu joined the Group in 2015 and successively held variously
positions, such as manager of investment and financing, manager of investor relationship,
head of securities and investment department, etc. From 2013 to 2015, she joined a joint
venture of the Shell Oil as a management trainee, responsible for matters relating to
supply chain. Ms. Wu obtained a bachelor's degree in management from School of Public
Affairs and another certificate in second major of finance from School of Economics,
Zhejiang University in July 201 1. She subsequently obtained her master's degree in science

from University College London in November 2012.

Zhou Lingbo, aged 40, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading
the business of administration and personnel. Ms. Zhou Lingbo graduated from the
department of law of Nanjing University in 2004 with a LLB degree. She joined the Group
in 2004 and successively held the posts of director of the infrastructure office and director

of the president’s office.

Zeng Zhi, aged 39, is the vice president of the Company, responsible for leading
antenna product research and development businesses. Mr. Zeng graduated from the
School of Electronics and Information Engineering, Harbin Institute of Technology majoring
in communication and information system in 2006, with a Master of Engineering degree,
and from the Shenzhen Graduate School, Harbin Institute of Technology majoring in
communication and information system in 2015, with a Doctor of Engineering degree.
Mr. Zeng joined the Company in 2006, and has successively acted as antenna engineer,
research and development project manager, department manager, technical director, and

general manager of the antenna business department.
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Directors and Senior Management
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Lau Wing, aged 48, is our deputy financial officer, authorized representative and company
secretary. He is also the deputy financial officer of financial centre of MOBI Shenzhen.
He is responsible for our company secretarial, financial and accounting management and
internal audit affairs. Mr. Lau obtained a bachelor's degree in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 1996, and later obtained a master's degree in business
administration (financial service) in 2005. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lau has over 20 years of experience in finance,
accounting, auditing and company secretarial matters. Mr. Lau had held senior financial

positions in several listed companies. Mr. Lau joined our Group in May 201 1.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRG

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION
The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 16

December 2002.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on |7 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries comprise the research, development, manufacture and sale of antenna system,
base station radio frequency subsystem and products of coverage extension solution.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during

the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages | | to 36 of this annual report. This

discussion forms part of this report of the directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2020 and the state of affairs of
the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 123 to 248.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31
December, 2020.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a 5 years summary of the resufts and assets and liabilities of the Group

Report of the Directors

for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Prospectus and the audited financial

EEEHRE

MBERHE
TEBRASERTRENRFEHEESR
BEMAE RERRERREEZVHR

statements. xKo
Year ended 3| December
BZ12A3IHLLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194 20184 20174 20165
RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
RESULTS £
Revenue WA 884,54 1214929 1,257,215 1,422,441 1,459,704
(Loss) profit before taxation  FiAT (&518) FIH (43,388) 16,756 10,021 (60,980) 71956
Income tax credit PG % 13,575 6,855 6,668 12,471 (6,107)
(Loss) profit for the year FR (BE) M (29,813) 23611 16,689 (48,509) 65,849
(Loss) profit and the total ARRAER AEIGH
comprehensive income FE (BB MER
(expenses) for the year 2EWA (Fx) #5
attributable to owners
of the Company (29,813) 23611 16,689 (48,509) 65,849
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets FREEE 567,187 547,649 537,626 540,782 488,249
Current assets MBEE 1,381,187 1,422,185 1,764,814 1,807,204 1,702,773
Current liabilities mEaE (747,208) (780636)  (1,126905)  (1,157,942) (859,794)
Non-current liabilities =V (75,117) (17,770) (12,773) (12,797) (81,849)
Net assets BEFH 1,126,049 1171428 1,162,762 1,177,247 1,249,379
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT V¥ BERGE

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year

are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

On 13 January 2010, 18,443,000 over-allotment shares of USD0.00000! each of the
Company at price of HKD3.38 per share were issued pursuant to the underwriting
agreement of the IPO of the Company. Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on |
June 2010, a bonus issue of 72,446,099 shares of USD0.00000! each of the Company is
issued to the persons whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on | June 2010 on the basis of one share for every ten shares held

on | June 2010. These new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all aspects.

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during the year

are set out in notes 28 and 29 to the financial statements, respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save for the share option scheme of the Company as set out on pages 103 to 106, no

equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to RMB459.3 million. This amount includes the Company’s share premium account
of RMB404.1 million at 31 December 2020, which may be distributed provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
In the year under review, revenue attributed to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 75.7% of the total revenue for the year and revenue attributed to the

largest customer accounted for 30.8%.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers for the year is less than 28.7%.

The Directors’ Interests in a major customer and suppliers are set out in the paragraph
headed "Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts” on

page 109 of this report.
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DIRECTORS B

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were: FAREBEEAREAH EE 5
Executive Directors HITES

Hu Xiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) A (L ERTTIEAEZ)
Liao Dong BR

Non-executive Directors EHITES

Qu Degian BE

Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Li Tianshu FREF

Zhang Han R

Ge Xiaojing BRE

Under the provisions of the Articles, all of the Directors are subject to retirement by BRIEBARZEENET  2RESAGREBERT
rotation and re-election. I fEEE (T

In accordance with Article 130 of the Articles, Mr. Zhang Han and Ms. Ge Xiaojing, RIEARZRE 13016 BYIERTES RN

independent non-executive Directors will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves EEREBEELZ T §RRARERERFER

for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. FRELRERT  ZFEFHSEERARE
EE&EET -

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an BE EHREIE33E  NATIEWE&IE L
annual confirmation of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules IRTEEFEBIIERAL S5
and the Board still considers each of the independent non-executive Directors to be REEE NI TESHBINART]

independent from the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of the

Group are set out on pages 90 to 96 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Except for Mr. Liao Dong, an executive Director, has entered into a service agreement
with our Company commencing from 26 March 2018 for a term of three years, each of
the executive Director and non-executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with our Company commencing from |7 December 2018 for a term of three years,

respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Han and Ms. Ge Xiaojing
has entered into a letter of appointment with our Company for a term of three years
commencing from |7 December 2018 and 3 August 2018 respectively (except for Mr.
Li. Tianshu whose engagement with us commenced on | July 2007) and renewable by

mutual agreement on annual basis.

None of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in

relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage

for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ emoluments are reviewed by Remuneration Committee with reference to

Directors' duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at 31 December 2020, the number of ordinary shares in respect of which options had
been granted and remained outstanding was 45,266,000 (2019: 46,336,000), representing
5.53% (2019: 5.65%) of the total ordinary shares in issue at end of the reporting period.

The total number of ordinary shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of options
granted and to be granted to each eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any period of twelve consecutive months up to and including the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the ordinary shares in issue as of the date of grant.
Any further grant of options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders” approval in
advance in a general meeting.

Particulars of the Company's share option scheme are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company's share option scheme during
the year:

Report of the Directors
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fBRESTE

F2020F 128318 iR EERERLE
MATEHNERERS IO L BREE B
45266,0000% (20194 : 46,336,0000%) * 15
ERPREBTERRELMN5.53% (2019
F 1 565%) °

BERMBRERY (REZA) HEE2E
AEMHE  BIfeETEERTEAER
SEE 7 BRE (BRETEREARITEZE
) ME BT RS TRIT2EBRER T
GHRBRLABZEBTEERBBEZ1%-
EHE-FREBBZRB L BREREL
BERABERAG LHE - HAEE -

AR BB B RN M I SRR MR 29 -

TREEAD VRS BE S

Exercise price Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during during asat end
Name Option type Date of gant BRATEE Exercisable period of the year the year the year the year of the year
£ FRERN  RHEE  (ARW) AR ENHANE ERiH Rl FREAE  FREAGRE
Directors:
g
Hu Xiang 20150ption A~ 2632015 147 142016 - 2532025 450,000 - - - 450,000
i) DISFRREA
2015CptionB 2632015 147 142017 - 2532005 450,000 - - - 450,000
WISFERIED
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 600000 - - - 600000
WISFRREC
Lizo Dang 2013Option A 23122013 109 [62015- 23122023 300000 - - - 300000
ER DIFRREA
2013OptionB 23122013 1.09 142016 -23.122023 300000 - - - 300000
VI3ERRIED
20130ptionC 23122013 109 142017 -23.122023 400,000 - - - 400,000
DIFRRIEC
20150ption A 2632015 147 142016 - 2532025 510,000 - - - 510000
DISFRREA
2015CptionB 2632015 147 142017 - 2532005 510,000 - - - 510000
WISFRRIED
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 680000 - - - 680000
WISFRREC
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Exercise price Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during during asat end
Name Option type Date of gant BRITEE Exercisable period of the year the year the year the year of the year
i FREEN  RHAS  (ARW) fTEHE FAMANE ERid FRiE#E  FREME  FRHAGE
Qu Degian 2013Cption A 23122013 109 [62015- 22122023 150000 - - - 150000
et NI3EERIEA
20130ptionB 23122013 109 142016 - 22122023 150000 - - - 150000
I3FRRIEL
0130ptionC 23122013 109 [42017- 22122023 200,000 - - - 200000
I3FRREC
0150ptionA 2632015 147 142016 - 253-2025 150000 - - - 150000
NI5FERRIEA
0150ptionB 2632015 147 142017 - 2532025 150000 - - - 150000
WISFRRIER
0150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 200,000 - - - 200000
WISFRREC
Sub-totat: 52200000 - - - 5200000
L
1 04 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Exercise price Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during during asat end
Name Option type Date of gant BRITEE Exercisable period of the year the year the year the year of the year
i FREEN  RHAS  (ARW) fTEHE FAMANE ERid FRiE#E  FREME  FRHAGE
Other participants:
AfgRE
Participants 2005 Option 3182005 06655 3182006 - 3082015 - - - - -
pak W05 R
Participants 013OptionA 23122013 109 [62015- 22122023 - - - - -
paE DI3FRREA
2013OptionB 23122013 1,09 142016 -22.12.2023 - - - - -
NI3EERIES
0130ptionC 23122013 109 [42017- 22122023 - - - - -
I3FRREC
Participants 0150ption A 2632005 147 142016 - 2532025 - - - - -
baE DISERREA
20150ptionB 2632015 147 142017 - 2532025 - - - - -
NI5FERIES
0150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 - - - - -
WI5FRREC
Sub-total: - - - - -
It
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Exercise price Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during during asat end
Name Option type Date of gant BRITEE Exercisable period of the year the year the year the year of the year
i FREEN  RHAS  (ARW) fTEHE FAMANE ERid FRiE#E  FREME  FRHAGE
Other employees:
HfpfES -
Employees 013OptionA 23122013 109 [62015- 22122023 6,422,000 - (228000) - 6,194,000
& I3FRREA
20130ptionB 23122013 1.09 142016 - 22122023 6,986,000 - (228000) - 6,758,000
VI3FERIED
0130ptionC 2312203 109 [42017-22122023 9,788,000 - (304000) - 9,484,000
NI3FERMIEC
Employees 0150ptionA 2632015 147 142016 -253.2005 5,382,000 - (93000) - 5,269,000
& DISFRREA
0150ptionB 2632015 147 1420172532005 5,382,000 - (93000) - 5,269,000
IS5 EiED
0150ptionC 2632015 147 1420182532005 7176000 - (124000) - 7052000
0I5 EIIEC
Sub-totat 41,136000 - (1,070,000) - 40,066/000
It :
Total: 46336000 - (1,070,000) - 45266000
it

The weighted average closing share price immediately before the dates on which the HEBREETEEEA - RO METLY
options were exercised was HK$1.53. WHERISIBIT

1 06 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors, the chief
executive or their associates in the share capital, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO™) ) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO),
or which, as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

EEHESRTRAESRKRS - HER
PREFNERRAR

R2020512A318 - E% - BRITBRAER
BENBBEAREARZEBEZEZE (TR
B LB ([F 7RG R ]) EXv
#) R - HERG REFPEEREES
REEHHIEXVERET R ESHEANGARA
AIRERMEER AR (BEREE S K
SHEOIE IR RERNERIOAR) R
BEFRPEENESEALERARAEF
ENFCMANERRAR  JBRELTE

“Model Code"), were as follows:

FARBRTEER S HIETFA (28T
81 A& A R R R ERTAR N

T
Ordinary shares of the Company: FRFEER

Approximate

percentage of

Number of the Company’s

shares and issued capital

Number of underlying shares HEERT

Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of shares underlying shares 5 K& B¢y

EEps BEREME RHBE HEROEE MEROHE BRANE D

Hu Xiang Personal 26,102,500 1,500,000 27,602,500 3.37%
FiiE2) EPN Long Position Long Position Long Position
RE B RE

Liao Dong Personal 10,850,000 2,700,000 13,550,000 1.65%
BR EA Long Position Long Position Long Position
RE RE RE

Qu Degian Personal — 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.12%
[EE% A Long Position Long Position
RE RE

EHERAERRZSF

20204 3}
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Share options of the Company:

Details of the Directors interests in share options of the Company are set out in the

Section headed “Share Options” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had registered any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
SFO), or which as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as is known to the Directors or Chief Executive of the Company as at 3|
December 2020, shareholders (other than Directors or Chief Executives of the Company
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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EEEHRE

Ordinary shares of the Company: RAREBR
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s
shares and issued capital
Name of Substantial Number of underlying shares HEERT
Shareholder Nature of Interest Number of shares underlying shares R K 2RT
FTERREW BEME BHEE HERORE HEROHE BRANBED
Fangyi Collaboration Beneficial owner 230,607,300 — 230,607,300 28.16%
Holdings Limited EnBBA Long Position Long Position
TEERAR AR =9 =9
Li Xiaoyong Beneficial owner 48,358,000 — 48,358,000 590%
FINE ERBEAAN Long Position Long Position
=9 =

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2020, Directors' interests in a major customer were as follows:

ZTE Corporation (“ZTE")

EERRS  REHSHNZEAER

HZE2020F 128318 EXTERFTHNES

SHTPHERIT -

RESEARDARAR ([ EEA )

Hu Xiang and Qu Degian, Directors of the Company, are members of the 39
shareholders (“Beneficial Owners”) of Fangyi Collaboration Holdings Ltd. (“Fangyi"”),
a substantial shareholder of the Company.

The Beneficial Owners had an indirect equity interest of approximately 10.7% in
ZTE, the largest customer of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020,
through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Zhongxing Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Weixiantong”). Shenzhen Weixiantong owns 49% shareholding interest
in Shenzhen Zhongxingxin Tongxun Shebei Co., Ltd. (“Zhongxingxin”), which in
tumn had approximately 21.85% shareholding interest in ZTE.

Hu Xiang and Qu Degian together held approximately 4.1% shareholding interests
in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Therefore, they have indirect shareholding interests in
ZTE through their shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong,

EhkERERLXT
20205 ]

ARREFHANERELARAR LR
BRI EERER QR ([77:E]) 8939
LER((ESBEAAD) ZKE -

HE20F12A3BILEE  BEEE
ABBRAY TP EETBREERD
A (DRI E ) OFR - BEEE
AEBRAEFPHEBAL07%H K
T o R m A R TR ERTE
RABERAE ([ B ]) 49%HIAHE -
T RIS B A2 85% R IR
o

HANERLAABARIELBN
41%EBRTE - B - AR RRLE S
ERNRIEemnioE - MEgEeHE
SERFHORHE
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As of 31 December 2020, Directors' interests in major suppliers were as follows:

Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co,, Ltd. (“Kang Cheng”)

. Kang Cheng is a supplier accounted for 0% purchase of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2020.

. The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Kang Cheng through
their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong was a 10.4%

shareholder of Kang Cheng.

. Hu Xiang and Qu Degian as members of the Beneficial Owners, therefore, have
indirect shareholding interests in Kang Cheng through their shareholding interests in

Shenzhen Weixiantong.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhongxingxindi”) which former name as
Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi Tongxin Qicai Co., Ltd.

. The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Zhongxingxindi, a supplier
accounted for 0% purchase of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020,
through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong
was a 34.3% shareholder of Zhongxingxindi. Shenzhen Weixiantong owned 49%
shareholding interest in Zhongxingxin, which in turn had a 70% shareholding

interest in Zhongxingxindi.

. Hu Xiang and Qu Degian as members of the Beneficial Owners, therefore, have
indirect shareholding interests in Zhongxingxindi through their shareholding

interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company's or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or its connected entities had a material
interest (whether directly or indirectly) subsisting at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the Group are set out
in note 36 to the financial statements which did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles of association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

EHBRERLA
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the percentage of shares of the Company in
public hands is in compliance with the prescribed level of the minimum public float as set

out in Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has set up an audit committee with written terms of reference. The audit
committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors and reports to the

Board of Directors.

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company, who are of the opinion that
such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards and legal requirements,

and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte as

auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
MOBI Development Co., Ltd.

Hu Xiang
Chairman

30 March 2021

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MOBI Development Co,, Ltd.
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 123 to 248, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs™)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Independent Auditor’s Report
R R S

REELER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most BREZFERRMNZIXAEH - BRA
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. MM BRRTREENEE - HAXE

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereo

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

HRELER

of the consolidated financial BEBGAVERREELSERREEF
n and we do not provide a ~ KER - MASRUZFFEEFERER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BMREEZRIMNEERRERER

Valuation of inventories

FEMLE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the use of judgment and estimates by the
management in estimating the allowance for inventories.

In determining the allowance for inventories, the
management considers the aging analysis, technology
development of the industry, net realisable value for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories that are no longer
suitable for use in operation and subsequent sales or usage.

BARFELERCABRERZSZE  RAREEE
fhEt F BRI E A H B R fhat o

EEEFERER  BEREZRTENTFERENN
MEMFRE  THEREENREHEIERANRE
M T B A 23 HE

Our procedures in relation to valuation of inventories included:

*  Understanding how management estimates the allowance of obsolete and
slow-moving inventories items;

»  Obtaining the inventory aging analysis and checking its classification by age on
a sample basis to relevant documents;

*  Checking on accuracy of the inventory aging analysis and subsequent sales or
usage of inventories on a sample basis to relevant documents;

B EFEHERRNEFERE
© THREEBMEGEHRENBHTEEORE
- DBHFEREST - mikeEiRko BEIEBX S

© DHEEEREFENRE DT ERIENZERESEAREX
e
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BYZBERE

Key audit matters

HRELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMREEBINEERRELER

Valuation of inventories (Contd)

EftE(E)

As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of inventory was RMB270,017,000, net of the allowance for
inventories of RMB63,562,000.

AR A ISR I19FTHE » 20208128318
FEREEAARE270017,0007T « B EEEEA
R#63,562,0007T °

Checking on the net realisable value of inventories to the subsequent selling
prices on a sample basis;

Evaluating the reasonableness of the allowance of obsolete and/or slow-
moving inventories identified by the management with reference to the aging
analysis of inventories, market information, subsequent sales and usage of
inventories;

Performing a retrospective review on the allowance estimation by
management by comparing historical allowance made to the actual selling
prices and actual loss incurred; and

Assessing the reasonableness of reversal of allowance for inventories
previously recognised by tracing the sales of respective inventories to
corresponding supporting documents, on a sample basis.

NHEEEREFEISRFENKEEE

HEEEE2REENREDN  MBER  FENREHENER
MmatRERER,/ & %ﬁéﬁ SRR AL
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Key audit matters
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMREEBINEERRELER

Impairment assessment of the identified long-lived assets (as defined below)

ERBNRPEE (BERR T BRERE

We identified the impairment assessment of the long-
lived assets relating to the Group's business of research,
development, manufacture and sale of antenna system,
base station radio frequency subsystem and products of
coverage extension solution, comprising certain property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
(the “Identified Long-lived Assets”), as key audit matter as
significant judgement by the management is required to
assess the amount of impairment of these assets.

During the year ended 3| December 2020, the management
of the Group performed an impairment assessment of
the Identified Long-lived Assets due to the indication for
impairment as disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate
carrying amount of the Identified Long-lived Assets was
RMB426,142,000, including certain property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets of
RM333,275,000, RMB26,555,000 and RMB66,312,000,
respectively, as set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statement.

RMEREE BEEERRER  BUGFHETFRER
BERMOIRERNIART  FE  BEREEEBN
RPEE (BRETYE  BELRE  EREEER
BVEE) ([CRAIRPEE ) 0REFHER SR
ERER  RAREEEREELERHEATGZ
FEEMNRETHE

HE220F 128318 - ESEEEEHRREEH
BREMT4PHEBORETRMECZPIRBEE
EITRERE - R2020F 128318 EHRIEHEE
MR AARE426,14200070 - BEETHE -
BELREE FRAEEERBEVEENIAARE
333,275,0007T * AR#26,55500070 K& AR # 66,312,000
T WWERER A BT SRR M4

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment of the
Identified Long-lived Assets included:

« Understanding the Group's impairment assessment process, including
impairment assessment model adopted and assumptions used;

 Evaluating the independent qualified professional valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

* Engaging our internal specialists to review the reasonableness of the
impairment assessment model adopted and assumptions used by the

management of the Group;

+  Assessing the reasonableness of the management's estimate of the growth
rates with reference to the historical performance and the latest budgets of

the Group and market data;

B ER BN D BRI R DA E AT B -
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Key audit matters

HRELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMREEBINEERRELER

Impairment assessment of the Identified long-lived assets (as defined below) (Contd)

ERGRMEE (EERTX) WREE ()

For the purpose of assessing impairment of these assets, the
recoverable amounts of these assets have been determined
by the management of the Group by value in use calculations
using financial budgets based on past performance and
expectation for market development, where the key input
parameters include growth rates and discount rates.

Based on the management's assessment, no impairment loss
of the Identified Long-lived Assets has been recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 3| December 2020.

REFEENFERENS  ZAFEENAIRLDEH
Bl ESEEEENEREENEET  £HE
EMFEDENBENEE NARTSERNIEE
B HPiRa \28emRERERTREK -

BEEEBNL  BHE200FENANBIEE B
HAEREENRESEREESPHER -

Assessing the reasonableness of the discount rates used by management in
determining the value in use, with reference to the current market risk-free
rate of interest and the industry specific risk factors;

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the management's cash flow projections
by comparing the historical cash flow projections with the actual performance;

Assessing the sensitivity analysis prepared by management on the significant
assumptions to evaluate the extent of impact of these assumptions on the
impairment assessment model.
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OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include

the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, action taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report is Mok

Sau Fan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeRaRkEMEZEREERR

For the year ended 3| December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

2020 2019
20206 20195
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®TR ARETT
Revenue WA 5 884,541 1214929
Cost of sales SHERAR (684,591) (935,098)
Gross profit E7 199,950 279,831
Impairment losses under expected credit loss HHEEEE ((BHEEER]) 9
(“ECL") model, net of reversal BEXTHRERSE - H%REE (1,550) (2,712)
Other income HAA 6 45316 29691
Other gains and losses H o & &5 18 6 (20,102) 657
Research and development expenses MEFRS (109,597) (97,244)
Administrative expenses THRX (94,958) (101,001
Distribution and selling expenses PDIHRIHERX (55,400) (81,820)
Finance costs BT RR 7 (5,292) (10.240)
Fair value change on derivative financial instruments ~ $T4&& 8 T A X FEEE) (1,349) -
Share of results of associates i NS E S (406) (406)
(Loss) profit before tax AT (BE) AE (43,388) 16,756
Income tax credit FsHER 8 13,575 6,855
(Loss) profit and the total comprehensive FRARBEEAEENEE (BB)FE 9
(expense) income for the year attributable to REERXRKEERE
owners of the Company (29,813) 23611
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (BE) BF
~ basic (RMB cents) —ERN(AEBS) 13 (3.64) 2.88
— diluted (RMB cents) -85 (ARED) 13 N/A T 2.88

EHBRERLA
20204 3§
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R &REK

At 31 December 2020
R2020F 128318

2020 2019
20205 20194F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BisE ARETR ARETF T
Non-current Assets FREEE

Property, plant and equipment e 14 379,256 377,278
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 34,061 35461
Deposits for purchase of plant and equipment BEREMRBEE RS 11,671 7464
Deferred tax assets BERIEEE 16 71,362 57,172
Intangible assets B EE 17 66,312 66,273
Interests in associates NN =l 18 4525 4001
567,187 547,649

Current Assets REBEE
Inventories "E 19 270,017 281,691
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b FEUER X 20 624,838 709,423
Income tax recoverable BB 1,586 1,586
Pledged bank balances BHIRERITAEER 21 112,816 137,074
Bank balances and cash IBITEESR IR S 21 371,930 292411
1,381,187 1,422,185

Current Liabilities =
Trade and other payables 85 REMEMNERR 22 630,952 666,984
Contract liabilities BREE 23 7,272 6,206
Bank borrowings RITREK 24 99,575 98,882
Derivative financial instruments TEeRMTA 27 1,349 -
Tax payable eI 604 -
Lease liabilities MEERE 25 4,920 4408
Deferred income R A 26 2,536 24
Dividend payable FERIAR S = 4,132
747,208 780,636
Net Current Assets REEEFHR 633,979 641,549
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEERRBEE 1,201,166 1,189,198

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B AR Rk

At 31 December 2020
#2020%12R318

2020 2019
20206 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt ARBTR ARETT
Non-current Liabilities FRBEE
Other borrowing HAbER 24 65,000 -
Lease liabilities HERE 25 3,851 5,021
Deferred income EEWA 26 6,266 12,749
75,117 17,770
Net Assets EERE 1,126,049 1,171,428
Capital and Reserves RAER &
Share capital A 28 6 6
Reserves & 1,126,043 1,171,422
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARAEE NEGER 1,126,049 [,171,428
The consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 248 were approved and authorised FBIVEBENGEEVBERRELESZERN

for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hu Xiang
ik
DIRECTOR
=

ELERERLA

2021 3 A0 B HEMRETIZ - WA TE

ERREE

Liao Dong
BR
DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GERERBBHRE

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

Statutory Share
Enterprise surplus option
Share Share  expansion reserve Special reserve  Retained
capital  premium fund fund reserve  (note 29) earnings Total
LEBR AEER Rk
Bx  RiEE i% B RAEE  (WE9) REEN Azt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTRT ARMTT ARMTR ARETR ARETR AR®TR
(note a) (note b) (note b) (note c)
(Frzta)  (WEb) (L) (MfRc)
At | January 2019 R19%51 A18 6 434656 3034 63,744 2999 28029 630294 1,162,762
Profit and the total comprehensive ERNMER
income for the year THRREE - — - — — — 2361 36! 1
Transfer o - - - 3958 - - (3959) -
Transfer of share option reserve upon B URBERR 1R
forfeiture of share options BRERERA - - - - - (2268) 2268 -
Dividends recognised as distribution BRIEDRARE
(note 12) (st 12) —  (1443%) - - - - - (1443%)
Repurchase and cancellation of shares B2l a5k (n
(note 28) (Fifa8) - (510) - - - - - (510)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 124318 6 419711 3034 67,702 2999 2576 652215 1171428
Loss and the total comprehensive FREER
expense for the year THRNES — — — — — — (9813 (9813)
Transfer 3 — — — 2,288 - — (2288) -
Transfer of share option reserve R RS
upon forfeiture of share options BRERERE - - - - - (575) 575 -
Dividends recognised as distribution BREDRERE
(note 12) (MzE12) —  (15080) - - — - — (15080
Repurchase and cancellation of shares BB R R 17
(note 28) (FifsE28) - (486) - - - - - (486)
At 31 December 2020 20206128318 6 404,145 3034 69990 2999 25,186 620689 1126049

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes:

(®)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2009 Revision), the share premium of the
Company may be applied for redemption or purchase of any shares of the Company, payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, payment of its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. During the years ended 3| December 2020 and 2019, dividends were

paid out of its share premium.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
the Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain statutory reserve. Appropriations to such
reserve are made out of net profit after tax reported in the statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are decided by their respective boards of
directors annually. The statutory reserve can be used to make up their prior year losses, if any, and
can be applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue or expanding the capital

base of the PRC subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.

Special reserve represents the difference between the paid-in capital of EEEL R&EAT ORI B
fE 2 &) MOBI Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd. (“MOBI Shenzhen”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in connection
with the acquisition of MOBI Shenzhen. MOBI Shenzhen was acquired pursuant to the group
restructuring completed on 19 December 2002, at which time the Company entered into an

equity transfer agreement for the acquisition of the entire equity interest in MOBI Shenzhen.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2020 #§

Pt aE

GEERSB®E

For the year ended 3| December 2020
HZ200F 12831 RILER

BEFESBEEQFE (Q009FBEIAR) - KA
AR 17 & (B AT AR BB R ok i B A A R AR
7~ FMRE A DIRKRE  BEERELS
[EDRz B - BN A EERBRS
SZATRIEREY &S - MEIZ 20205 20195 12
3IREFE - REERNDGERK

REPEARKME ([PE]) RAMERLE
REATE - ARANPEFRRAELETRE
T - ZRBBEENBERDBTETRAREER B
BERAZHMOBRBFNBEL - SBROEE
EGFREEFGRTE  ETRETAERH
EFNER (F) R ABRAE M ETER
REARBEAMCEITRIEERTEF AT
BARER -

BREEEALAZEFRAREL RS
CRYD BRAE (LRI BB SARA SR
DA E L R B TR MEENEE -
FELGRYITAR 2002 F 12 A 19 B R M EEE
YRR - MARAINRBE BB EL IR
BT —TEREE R -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

2020 2019
20206 20195
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES SdyET )
(Loss) profit before tax Fipn (&18) FE (43,388) 16,756
Adjustments for: FELATIER {EH R -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERREITE 36,329 40,382
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 17,161 11,974
Write-down of inventories TFEMOR 16,426 12,258
Unrealised exchange loss (gain) AREIE HEE (W) 6,416 (1,277)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 6,061 3,698
Finance costs BAREAAR 5,292 10,240
Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal HEHEEERERA THREES -
alisiE 1,550 2712
Fair value change on derivative financial instruments TEemIAATESZE) 1,349 -
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEME - BFEREENEE 637 703
Share of results of associates Fgfﬁ NS EF 406 406
Interest income from bank deposits 1T BIA (2,920) (6,305)
Government grants related to assets Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁ BT fEN& (3.971) (24)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE— e QR e = (509)
Cash discount from suppliers upon settlement PR R B R RIR 2 (12) ©)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital ~ RaM &8 & & B EYFIALL L mE 41,336 91,009
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (g m)ms (4,752) 154,743
Decrease in trade and other receivables g5 K E M ERTOR 85,847 130,634
Decrease in trade and other payables E 5 KA MR BRFOR (38,976) (226,126)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities BHBEEMORD) 1,066 (16,733)
Cash generated from operations REmERE 84,521 133,527
Taxation (paid) receipt (B BMe#iE () 2,118
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RREPELH PR 84,510 135,645

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the year ended 3| December 2020

BE0ENARILEE

2020 2019
20205 20195
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERD
Placement of pledged bank balances FEEEMRITER (121,194) (467,389)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE BELRE (63,947) (62,175)
Development costs paid and capitalised ENREREERKAR (17,200) (16,937)
Deposits paid for purchase of plant and equipment HEERE RSB NNEE (1,671) (4489)
Capital contribution to an associate RIS N A A (930) (4,000)
Withdrawal of pledged bank balances HeHE ERIRITA 145,452 502,059
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BERREWEETIE 35,291 25,298
Interest income from bank deposits RITESRAEMA 2,920 6,305
Proceeds on disposal of an associate H & — A R RIR AT RIE - 1392
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZSMATRSFE (31,279) (19936)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HEED
New bank and other borrowings raised FrgERIT R EMER 179,863 231,000
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITIER (114,170) (328918)
Dividends paid ERIRE (19,212) (10,303)
Interest paid ERFE (5,292) (10.240)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEAE (5,187) (2,841
Repurchase of shares IR BB (486) (510)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES B E EBFTEFTRIR & /%58 35,516 (121,812)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND Re kR eZBWFEEM RS
CASH EQUIVALENTS 88,747 (6,103)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT | JANUARY RIAIBNRE KR EEFEY 292,411 296,341
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES NI BE R BB 2 (9,228) 2,173
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER, R 12A31 BMRE KA S EEY
represented by bank balances and cash (RERITHBR KRR SR) 371,930 292,411

ELERERLA

20204 3}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“The Stock Exchange”) on 17 December 2009. The address
of its registered office is Maples Corporate Services Limited P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KYI-1104, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business
is 7 Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group") are

production and sale of antennas and radio frequency subsystems.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is

also the functional currency of the Company and its principal subsidiaries.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated

financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8

—REHR

BHBERERAR ([ARAE]) BEH
EREEMKINDRBERAA -
BR2009F 12817 HHEBRERA
SHRARRE (TBRF]) EH -
o 37 5 B2 /0 Hb ik A5 Maples Corporate
Services Limited P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KYI-1104, Cayman
lslands * EF EEEMB BT EERE
ARYE LB ERL —H 758

<k D

/i

ARBIREFRA([AEE TR
EBREENBEERG R BRES AT
ES

BRMBHRRAARE (TARE]) 2
5o ARBTEZARRRATEFAF
KR EH -

FERERMEREER ([FBHMHE
|ERER ) BRI A
FEERHERERMBREENETE
RAEE - REECRREEA G I
BRERERMBESHMAG[EL
SEEAg]) B 2 BBHHEREER
ol B SHERZERT R NI RABE
BIREERZIERT - ARERTIN2020%F
| A Bz ®FR 2 FEBEBRHE
4

Definition of Material

BEAGERE SRREAGHERFEH (BF]AX) EAZTEE
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
BEAMBRSERE IR (BFIAR) E Wt

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
BARBERSERNEIR - BB ENFERR
BEMBIMEERETHR (BRIAR)

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year
(Contd)

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out

in these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 for the first time
in the current year. The amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments also
clarify that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial

statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current year. The
amendments clarify that while businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not
required for an integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as a business. To
be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute

to the ability to create outputs.

EhkERERLXT
20205 ]

2.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BZ00F12A31ALFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

(Contd)
Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
(Contd)

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of replacing any missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce
outputs. The amendments also introduce additional guidance that helps to

determine whether a substantive process has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional concentration test that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business. Under the optional concentration test, the acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred
tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. The
election on whether to apply the optional concentration test is available on

transaction-by-transaction basis.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the

Group but may impact future periods should the Group make any acquisition.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ERTAMEREERDN (EFEMK

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17
BRWBHEERE 175
Amendment to HKFRS 16
BERPBHEERF 165 (BRI X)
Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB BHwEERE35 (BITA)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
BN BwEERFEIFR -
BB GITERIFE9%
BRI RELEETHR -
BEMBWEERE4TH R
BRIBHRELEE 165 (BTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
B BHREENE 05K
BB G ERIFE28H (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS |

oo >oo

A
A

BRGHERE 5 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 16
BBGTERE 165 (BFIA)
Amendments to HKAS 37

BB GERIE7H (BATAR)
Amendments to HKFRSs
BERIBHEER (BFTAK)

WEER N ERTA ()
EREMEMRERZHTERYBRE
R BRMBHHREENEIT R
AEELEREREB TIIEEMERR
EM A BRI s R LA
BREEAEATA -

Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments'
REBA D RAEBERT

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions*

0198 RASHEESEE

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

B HEZR AR

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2°

FlREAENE — E RS

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

REEREBENRSAE R HANEENELIE’

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and

related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'
BENBEARDAIFRBALBBREES (20205) 2 BHER]
Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use?
WE - BE K& — BT AR SR
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?
EEAH - BITRKMBA
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
BAM B EEA2018F E2020FEH 2 FEKHE?

EhBHREAERALTT
20204 £ 133
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For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. EATEUWBEREE[ (FEME
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd) BEER ) BETA (2)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Contd) EHEAEERERZHTEBMBRE
EAREBUBHEENBTE ()
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023. I FA2023E | A | B2 2tk FE B
e
B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022. 2 P00 E | B B2 2Bk EE B
e
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. 3 RETARSZERBZEEHHE
e
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | June 2020. 4 FA2020E 6 A | B2 12tk 7 F 5 B
e
> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021. 5 FONIE IR Bz BB zEER
AR
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all these new and ARREFRE  BRAMEAMNEE
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial BRBRERARBBABHRERANE
statements in the foreseeable future. FIART R R g HiR e M HRRE
REATE -
1 34 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (‘Listing Rules™) and by the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies

set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given

in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value
in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets (‘HKAS 36”).
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For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements (Contd)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs

to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level |, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

3.2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of

the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with

the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Basis of consolidation (Contd)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed

to the owners of the Company.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Investments in associates (Contd)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associates other than profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations

or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Investments in associates (Contd)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period

in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest
in an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists,
the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

EHBRERLA
20204 3§

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

GEUMBBRNEREEREAS
ATBE (&)

FREFBEK ()
REERGTZRE (%)
RREHRKA—RBEARE
B R—RBERRZRERR
BEEANR - BUSRB 2 AR H
RER  REKABBEASEE
REHRMAEREERAEN
NHEFRRAIE RO’
waEaE (BEEMARENE
HER) - MRAEBEUIRA
FEERBBENDHEFETM
EROBERERERA - MAE
BHFHARITRML - A
THREANGZEREANENY
EEt ARt o

AEEFEROFEREEERR
RIS — [ = A Bl MR e ] RETR
EAERE - MEFEERTEHE
B REZEHEEERSRE
BEEGEEHIERE—SR
EETRENH  WERBLEBHE
AREEE (EREERRAFE
BHERAZERSE) AR
{8 - WERAZEMRESEETS
NTEEENEE (BREKEE
REEZ—SBINEE) - ZRE
BREMBROREEEGTE
RIE 365 - HEXBEIRIB N
AL ERE SRR -

139



140

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Investments in associates (Contd)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS
9"), the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in
the associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant

associate,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Investments in associates (Contd)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in

the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that

are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an altemative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment

for performance completed to date.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer

obtains control of the distinct good or service.

All of the Group's revenue are recognised at a point in time except
for revenue from provision of engineering procurement construction is

recognised over time.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or

an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured based on output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining goods
or services promised under the contract, that best depict the Group's

performance in transferring control of goods or services.

Leases

Definition of a lease
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application or arising from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the

contract are subsequently changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Leases (Contd)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component and are
accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

: any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Leases (Contd)

The Group as a lessee (Contd)

Right-of-use assets (Contd)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term
are depreciated from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over

the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost of

right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures
the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the

interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments) less any lease incentives receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

32

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Leases (Contd)

The Group as a lessee (Contd)

Lease liabilities (Contd)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest

accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) when the lease term has
changed, in which case the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of

reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease fif:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right

to use one or more underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any
appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the

circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group remeasures the lease liability less any lease incentives receivable,
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.
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Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Leases (Contd)

The Group as a lessee (Contd)

Lease modifications (Contd)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the
modified contract contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the modified contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone

price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components, the Group
applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15")
to allocate consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease component on the basis of

their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Leases (Contd)

The Group as a lessor (Contd)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under HKFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition

are considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part of the
original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease modifications,
including lease incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of

rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease

payments for the new lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.
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Significant accounting policies (Contd)
Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that

the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related

assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Such grants are presented under “other income”,

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes which are classified
as defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the

cost of an asset.
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Significant accounting policies (Cont d)
Short-term employee benefits (Contd)
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already

paid.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share option granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing
similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at

the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined at
the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to

the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will

be transferred to retained earnings.
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Significant accounting policies (Cont d)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit/loss before tax because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse

in the foreseeable future.
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Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Taxation (Contd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to

be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in which
the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities,
the Group first determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the
lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements
to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal

portion of lease liabilities resufting in net deductible temporary differences.
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Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Taxation (Contd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by

the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the

business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than plant and machinery under construction as described below).
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Plant and machinery in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when

the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Property, plant and equipment (Contd)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the
extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the

entire properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other than
construction in progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective

basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. REMBRRNGREEREAS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) TR (&)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd) 32 FEEHEE(A)

Intangible assets BREE

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development AIBBEL B EE — HEFX

expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period FFF 9005 B 8 8 S PO A BRI AR

in which it is incurred. BRI

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development activities (or mAEEE (KENAIER FE

from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and only BEER) Mel BN ABEEEFE

if, all of the following have been demonstrated: EEEEATINSREISHR

o

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will . TREREERM LA
be available for use or sale; 17 AR E

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it; . T FRRHEEFE

ENER
. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset; . ERAHERTEENE
il

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic . BEERELBERRK
benefits; BENRA A

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to . TG TR & E R
complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and BERERIHERTHR

fir - BB REMER : Rk

+  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the - AIREEVEERHE
intangible asset during its development. R (G MR8 S
1 54 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Intangible assets (Contd)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure (Contd)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is the
sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first
meets the recognition critenia listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment

losses (if any).

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine

the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
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STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets (Contd)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the

recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporates assets are
allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of

cash-generating units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets (Contd)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future

cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units, including
the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets (Contd)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated

costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15, Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (‘FVTPL") are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or

financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI™):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

achieved by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Cont d)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that
at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or
. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial

instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at

FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Contd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Cont d)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-

impaired

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included

in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade receivables, other
receivables, pledged bank balances and bank balances) which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at

each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
[2-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at

the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HFAVBBRRNEREEREARS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) TR (&)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd) 32 FEEHEE(A)
Financial instruments (Contd) E@ITR(E)
Financial assets (Contd) EHEE(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Contd) EREERE(E)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
[2-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking

information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Contd)
Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Contd)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when

assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit

default swap prices for the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Contd)
Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Contd)

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant

decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating

results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

0

Significant increase in credit risk (Contd)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount

becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event
of default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any

collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to

demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. REMBRERNGREEREAS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) TR (&)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd) 32 FEEHEE(A)
Financial instruments (Contd) E@ITR(E)
Financial assets (Contd) EHEE(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Contd) EREERE (£)
(i) Credit-impaired financial assets (i FEREEREE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that PREEE—BEIULE
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of H(HZeRBEERT AR
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is RengBINEE) %
credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events: EREREERE - &8

BRELBREERENER
BREEE NN EHFHOAE

REE
(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower; @ BITARERALR
BAMBREE -
(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event; (b) EH mMEHIEH
EJE
(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual © BRANERARR
reasons relating to the borrower'’s financial difficulty, having CLEE NGB i
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) B A KB A
would not otherwise consider; ERAREERAT
ERTERNEE
(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter (d) ERABARE
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or EHEMIBES
=19
(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset () HEoRBEENRED
because of financial difficulties. % A B 7% [ B A
9{ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any

subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data and
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the

respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Contd)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the

effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past due information and
relevant credit information such as forward looking macroeconomic

information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration the

following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Contd)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the

constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk

characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which

case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the

financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial

asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to

another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the

difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the

consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity

instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
All of the Group's financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and bank and other
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

32

Significant accounting policies (Cont d)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial liabilities and equity (Contd)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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For year ended 31 December 2020
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note
3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see
below), that the directors of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Capitalisation of development costs

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the Group's development costs
amounted to RMB24.5 million (2019: RMB48.3 million), which are not ready for
the intended use, were included in intangible assets. The capitalisation involved
management's judgement in assessing of whether technical and commercial
feasibility of each project had been achieved. Technical feasibility are evaluated
based on testing results of products and commercial feasibility are evaluated based
on forecast with assumptions on revenue to be generated, budget costs to be

incurred and relevant market analysis of the relevant product.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that may have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowance for on inventories

The Group provided an allowance for inventories based on an assessment of
the net realisable value of inventories. Allowance is applied to inventories where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower
than the cost of inventories. The identification of obsolete inventories requires the
use of judgment and estimates on the conditions and usefulness of the inventories.
The management may consider the aging analysis, technology development of
the industry, net realisable value for obsolete and slow-moving inventories that
are no longer suitable for use in operation and subsequent sales or usage. Where
the actual outcome or expectation of the net realisable value of inventories
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and allowance for inventories in the period in which such
estimate has changed. The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December 2020 is
RMB270,017,000, net of allowance of RMB63,562,000 (2019: RMB281,691,000, net
of allowance of RMB71,632,000).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables
Trade receivables with significant balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL

individually.

In addition, for trade receivables which are individually insignificant or when the
Group does not have reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort to measure ECL on individual basis, collective
assessment is performed by grouping debtors based on the Group's internal credit

ratings.
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For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables (Contd)

The Group uses collective assessment to calculate the lifetime ECL for the
trade receivables through groupings of various debtors of same credit rating.
Trade receivables within same internal credit rating have similar loss patterns
after considering of ageing, repayment history and past due status of respective
trade receivables. The estimated loss rates are based on the Group's historical
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about
the ECL is disclosed in note 33 and the details of the Group’s trade receivables is

disclosed in note 20.

Estimated impairment of Identified Long-lived Assets (as defined below)

Certain long-lived assets are related to the Group's business of sales of the antenna
system and related products, base station RF subsystem and related products and
coverage extension solution and related products, comprising certain property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets (the “Identified Long-
lived Assets”). In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an
event has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the value in use including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the assets belongs, including allocation
of corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined at the smallest group of
cash generating units, for which the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or the growth

rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the recoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

Estimated impairment of Identified Long-lived Assets (as defined below) (Contd)

Due to the need for mobile network construction in certain countries and regions
has slow down and slower-than-expected progress of 5G network construction
in the PRC during the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group is experiencing
negative business conditions. The management of the Group concluded there
were indications for impairment and conducted impairment assessment on the
recoverable amounts of the Identified Long-lived Assets. As at 31 December
2020, the aggregate carrying amount of the Identified Long-lived Assets was
RMB426,142,000 , including certain property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, and intangible assets RMB333,275,000, RMB26,555,000 and RMB66,312,000,

respectively.

The recoverable amounts of the Identified Long-lived Assets have been determined
by the management of the Group by value in use calculation on the basis of the
cash-generating unit to which these assets belong. The value in use calculation
uses financial budgets based on past performance and expectation for market
development, where the key input parameters include growth rates and discount
rates. The Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
as it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of each of the Identified
Long-lived Assets individually. As at 31 December 2020, no impairment loss (2019:
nil) on Identified Long-lived Assets has been recognised. The pre-tax discount rate
adopted is 13.13%.
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For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief executive officer of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (‘CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods sold or services

provided.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Antenna system — manufacturing and sales of antenna system and related products

Base station Radio Frequency (“RF") subsystem — manufacturing and sales of base

station RF subsystem and related products

Coverage extension solution — manufacturing and sales of a wide array of coverage

products

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

All of the Group's revenue except for revenue from provision of engineering
procurement construction is recognised when goods are delivered or picked up,
being the time when the customers obtain control over the antenna system and
related products, base station RF subsystem and related products and coverage

extension solution and related products.

The Group provides engineering procurement construction services to customers.
Such services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time as
the Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these construction services based
on the stage of completion of the contract using output method. Contracts with

the Group's customers are agreed in fixed-price.

All the Group's contracts have an original expected duration of one year or less.
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to the remaining

performance obligation of these contracts is not disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 31 December 2020
BZ00F12A31ALFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) WARDEHER (&)
Information of segment revenues and segment results EHEIBUARD BEENER
2020 2019
20205 20195
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFR ARETT
Segment revenues EBA
Antenna system PN SN 453,729 737,796
Base station RF subsystem BULSTSRT R4t 254,899 320222
Coverage extension solution BELHAR 175913 156911
884,541 1214929
Timing of revenue recognition WA RER R
A point in time RE BRI E R 864,094 1214929
Over time N — BB R AR 20,447 -
884,541 1214929
Segment results DEEE
Antenna system PN S 53,611 145,344
Base station RF subsystem B SHEF R4t 8,583 3922
Coverage extension solution BELREAZR 28,159 33322
90,353 182,588
Reconciliation of segment results to (loss) profit before tax: 2 EBFAREEH AT (F18) FIBHE
Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal BHEEBEREA THRIERSE -
MERE (1,550) 2.712)
Other income and expenses, other gain and loss HiWA KRR -« Hihies REE 25214 30,348
Unallocated corporate expenses AR ERX (150,358) (182,822)
Finance costs BHEAAR (5292 (10,240)
Fair value change on derivative financial instruments TTHEERIAAREE (1,349) -
Share of results of associates JEIREE A RIEE (406) (406)
(Loss) profit before tax Al (&) FI)E (43,388) 16,756
Other segment information HitnHER
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment: MmE - B RRETE
Antenna system PSS 12,764 10,038
Base station RF subsystem HUGHEF R4t 6,997 4357
Coverage extension solution BEEMAR 1,688 2,135
Segment total 7 e st 21,449 16,530
Unallocated amount ADESE 14,880 23852
Group total SE@E 36,329 40,382

EHERAERRZSF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont d)

WA D EER (&)
AR BRARD BREEANER (E)

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB'’ 000 RMB' 000

AR®TR ARETTT

Research and development expenses: M -
Antenna system RRFE 62,881 48,959
Base station RF subsystem BULSTSRT R4t 30,965 35,486
Coverage extension solution BELHEAR 15,751 12,799
Group total (note) BB (M) 109,597 97244
Amortisation of intangible assets: B EAESN
Antenna system PN & 10,988 8,350
Base station RF subsystem HUHHEF R4t 6,173 3624
Group total SEEE 17,161 11,974
Allowance for inventories FERERE
Antenna system PN SN 5,701 5,659
Base station RF subsystem B SHEF 24t 10,089 6,599
Coverage extension solution CESUELES 636 -
Group total (note) SE @ (FaT) 16,426 12,258

Note:  Amounts included in the measure of segment results.

Revenues reported above represent revenues generated from external customers.

There are no inter-segment sales for the years ended 31 December 2020 and

2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont d)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies described in note 3. The Group does not allocate impairment
losses under ECL model, net of reversal, other income and expenses, other gain
and loss, unallocated corporate expenses, finance costs, fair value change on
derivative financial instruments and share of results of associates to individual
reportable segments when making decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segments and assessing their performance. This is the measure reported to the

CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

No segment information on assets and liabilities is presented as such information
is not reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers and information about
products

Revenues from each group of products within the operating segments are as

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

WA D EER (&)

BRI BRARD BRENEN (£)
KD MO HER B3l AL
ER & 5 ERAAR © ARBIOREDE
BRTENBEHMEERRE - ~2f
BHEEBEREA THRERSE - Mk
e B AR - E e K
B ROBEEEMZ - BBERA - 074
EMTARAERPREGRERRE
B TERIAZ2\AE - IAKRS
LERRAZWARED BB R KT
FEATT -

AREENBEDHERLERRRE
ERRAZMARED B RREHER
B BUBEZIZFER -

REEFEANBARERER D

REDHAESERARIOBALIT :

follows:
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETFT
Segments 2
Antenna system ARESR
Multi-band/multi-system antennas %98,/ SRR 172,984 370,698
5G antennas SGARER 126,056 21203
WCDMA/FDD-LTE single-band/multi-band antennas WCDMA/FDD-LTEE 58/ % JEKR 4% 63,199 102,267
Low-band refarming/loT antennas ESREH / MBBRE 37,140 153362
Microwave antennas TN 13,757 24,184
FDD+TDD antennas FDD+TDDR 4R 3290 30,727
AAU antennas AAUZ SER 353 2561
CDMA/GSM antennas CDMA/GSMA#R - 2,659
Other antennas RPN 36,950 30,135
453,729 737,796
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers and information about

WA D ERER ()

REEFANNBARERER DR

products (Contd) (&)
2020 2019
2020 20195
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Base station RF subsystem BUTHEFER
WCDMAJLTE RF devices WCDMA/LTEST $B=5 1 216,876 212632
TD/TD-LTE RF devices TD/TD-LTES! SRt 28,307 44,137
GSM RF devices GSM&T SRgs{f 4,998 20,098
Low-band refarming/loT RF devices {ESEE R/ W BaTsARR 3522 41911
Other devices Hithgstt 1,196 | 444
254,899 320222
Coverage extension solution BEEMLE
Aesthetic antennas R 80,376 136,384
Customer premise equipment BP#ima 67,382 -
Engineering procurement construction REEERT 20,477 -
Access point BAR 1,530 1,086
Small cell (T3] 1312 13,077
Other products HfthEm 4836 6,364
175913 156911
884,541 1214929
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over 10% of the

total revenue of the Group are as follows:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

WARDEER (&)
ERTIEEFMNERN
RERNEAFEHAEBRABERR
B8 1 0% ) 2 P E AT -

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB' 000

AR®TR ARETT

Customer A!
Customer B!
Customer C!

Customer D!

EPA
EFB
ERC
EFD!

272,671 254367

198,745 176,768
N/A2 T 2 219,637
N/A* 38 > 219,498

Revenue from antenna system and base station RF subsystem.

2 The revenue amount of the customers did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of

the Group in the corresponding year.

Geographical information

Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is presented

based on the location where the goods are delivered to:

REREZGREGHAT RBHOURA -
REBFEHREBRALHTBAREB 0%
HEPBALEE -

BREASERBIIPEFPBANER T
REXNEMNOLEZS

2020 2019
20205 20195
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

The PRC H 489,448 877,654

Overseas SN
Other countries/regions in Asia TNEMBER,hE 119912 158,504
Europe BOM 204,315 134,298
Americas EM 70,838 44473
Others Hah 28 -
Subtotal 4N 395,093 337,275
884,541 1214929

All non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets) of the Group are located in

the PRC.

EHBRERLA
20204 3§

AEERBERBEE (BTHREE
BRAN) BRI -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

6.  OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Ht W ARBX - Hittls RER

2020 2019
20205 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Government grants B E
— related to expense items (note) — HFXIAE A8 (M) 29,869 15938
— related to assets (note 26) — EE AR (fFr26) 3,971 24
Rental income =G UN 8,556 7424
Interest income from bank deposits SRITIF RS 2,920 6,305
Other income HAA 45316 29,691
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment RES (EE) (637) (703)
Exchange (loss) gain B (E8),/ Wa (19,426) 2,498
Gain on disposal of an associate HE — R E R AR e - 509
Others Hity (39) (1.647)
Other gains and losses HAh s REE (20,102) 657
Total 25214 30,348

Note: The amounts represent incentives from various PRC government authorities in connection
with the enterprise expansion support, technology advancement support and product
development support during the year, which had no conditions imposed by the respective

PRC government authorities.

During the current year, the Group recognised government grants of RMBI,172,000 in
respect of Covid-|9-related subsidies.

1 84 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

FINANCE COSTS B E AR
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AREBTR ARETTT
Interest on bank borrowings RITERFE 4,671 9,931
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEH S 621 309
5,292 10,240
TAXATION HiE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB'’ 000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETTT
Current Tax: BIEARIA
PRC Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT") PRI AEE ([RERMED]) 615 -
Deferred tax credit (note 16) EERIER R (P 16) (14,190) (6,855)
(13,575) (6,855)
Hong Kong TEES

The applicable tax rate of the Company and MOBI Technology (Hong Kong)
Limited (“MOBI HK") is 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been recognised as the Group had no

assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the both years.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2020 #§

RABRELRE (RS BRRA
(TELLEE ) MEFE NG ERHA
ERERREA165% -

AEERMEFELEERBELEM
FERBAE - MU BRBBNEHIESL
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

8.

TAXATION (Contd)

The PRC (excluding Hong Kong)

In September 2014, MOBI Shenzhen was defined by Shenzhen Finance Bureau,
Administrator of Local Taxation of Shenzhen Municipality and Shenzhen Municipal
office of the State Administration of Taxation (the “SZ Authorities”) as a High and
New Technology Enterprise and therefore was entitled to 5% preferential tax
rate from the EIT for three years starting from the year ended 31 December 2014,
according to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law. On 31 October 2017, the SZ
Authorities have further extended the preferential tax rate for another three years
starting from the year ended 31 December 2017. On || December 2020, the SZ
Authorities have further extended the preferential tax rate for another three years
starting from the year ended 3| December 2020. Accordingly, the tax rate for
MOBI Shenzhen is 15% for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

In November 2016, MOBI Telecommunications Technologies (Jian) Co., Ltd.
(“MOBI Jian") was defined by Province Finance Bureau and Administrator of
Local Taxation of Municipality and Municipal office of the State Administration of
Taxation in Jiang Xi (the “Jiang Xi Authorities”), as a High and New Technology
Enterprise and therefore was entitled to 5% preferential tax rate from the EIT for
three years starting from the year ended 31 December 2016, according to the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax Law. On 16 September 2019, the Jiang Xi Authorities have
further extended the preferential tax rate for another three years starting from the
year ended 31 December 2019. Accordingly, the tax rate of MOBI Jian is 5% for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

In December 2019, MOBI Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (‘MOBI Technology")
was defined by the SZ Authorities as a High and New Technology Enterprise and
therefore was entitled to 15% preferential tax rate from the EIT for three years
starting from the year ended 31 December 2019, according to the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax Law. Accordingly, the tax rate of MOBI Technology is 5% for the year
ended 3| December 2020 and 2019.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BWIE (&)

Bl A RE

R201459 A + BRI RIIG K
B RIS SR KA T B KT
BR(ORNER]) RERBIH LM
¥ AUAREHECEMETARE
E014F A3 BLEFERB=FIAI5%
HBE EBMBERAEN  R20175F
I0A3I8 - FIEREE—FHEER
KAREZE017F 123 BIEFERBE
RE=ZF - 200FI1AIIB  FIES
BE—THEENERBZE20205F 12A
JIRIEFERBER=F - Al - FELL
YR R A E E2020F 22019F 12 A
3IAIEFERI5%

201611 A - BLBARKN (FR)
BRAR(ELER]) BIRE TR
B IAg I nERRIAEBERY
BR(IBAER]) RERBMRLME
¥ AUARBEPECERSTEBE
E016F A3 BIEFEB=FIAI5%
HEER R EMEN - R2019F
9R168  IAEREE—FHEEH
RHEE019FN2A3HLEFERE
ER=F - At - BLELZREZE2020
FER019FNANBLFENTERA
15%

R2019F 128 - BHLRER ORI BR
AR ([BLERE]) BRYERRT A
SRR - B ATRERR B
BEERBEZ2019F12A3BLEFE
FB=FUN 5% BB R BN EME
Boo AUt - ELEBREREZE2020F K
019F 12431 BIEFENBER15%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TAXATION (Contd)
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) (Contd)

The applicable tax rate of other PRC subsidiaries is 25% for the year ended 3|

December 2020 (2019: 25%).

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to (loss) profit before tax per the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

BWIE (&)

FEIRRE ()

HZE2020F 12831 BILFE » HEfprp
BlFRARIHERARER25% (20194 :
25%) °

FARAA AR MmN
KHBRBLAT (B51R) FUBSIRMT :

2020 2019
20205 20195
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBT
(Loss) profit before tax Al (B518) M (43,388) 16,756
Tax at EIT at 15% (2019: 15%) (note a) REEREHTE5%
(20195 : 15%) s EMHIE (FiTa) (6,508) 2513
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose TERBERERAINHETE 346 1,552
Tax effect of share of results of associates EEBELRXENHBYE 6l 6l
Tax effect of additional deduction on research BN BB AR EY
and development costs (note b) P2 (o) (11,107) (10,179)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRBERNRBY E 3,483 3322
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised YRBTARBRHERE (334) -
Fffect of different tax rates of group entities SEERNTRANENTE 484 (2,096)
Change in opening deferred tax asset resulting ERREZHHN
from change in applicable tax rates (note 16) EIEHIEEEZE) (FiT16) = (2,028)
(13,575) (6855)

Notes:

(a) Applicable income tax rate of 15% represents the relevant income tax rate of MOBI

Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI Technology, the major subsidiaries of the Company.

(b) Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC, additional 75% (2019: 75%)

of the qualified research and development costs are entitled to claim as PRC income tax

credits. Such PRC income tax credits are accounted for deduction from enterprise income

tax expenses when relevant conditions are fulfilled.

ELERERLA

2020 #§

@  ISHEHERFEHEEEAATEET
RRELRY| - B % % REEH RHR A
FRRIFT SRR -

() REFEEBRBMRINDER 4B
WA R A B9 EESN75% (2019 4F + 75%) ]
RFEPEMEHIES - ZEREMEH
B R ER G ER R ARSI ER 2T
BERERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

FE (BR) FE
FE(BHR) MBESHE GTA) ATE

9.  (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9.

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting) the following

items:

g

2020 2019
20205 2019F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBT

Directors' remuneration (including equity-settled 2 (BREAEREE RN
share-based payment) (note 10) REBHFF) (HEE10) 3,453 3212
Other staff costs A B TRA 215,689 222903
Retirement benefits scheme contributions for other staff Hith 8 TRIERIFT A 11,383 25,003
230,525 251,118
Less: amount capitalised as cost of inventories manufactured W FERENANERN SR (77,105) (97,610)
153,420 153,508

Auditors' remuneration BEMMHE

— audit services - BR% 2,192 2,237
Lease payment on short-term leases in respect of premises W&z RBRENBEERNR 2,442 3923
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0% - BERXERE 36,329 40382
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREAENE 6,061 3698
Amortisation of intangible assets B ARSI 17,161 11974
59,551 56,054
Less: amount capitalised as cost of inventories manufactured W FEEENANERN L E (18,022) (18,060)
41,529 37,994
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRRRXOFEENAR 684,591 935,098
Werite-down on inventories (included in cost of sales) FEMR Gt AHEKK) 16,426 12258

Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal REEEEREX THRERSSE -
FiIlE e 1,550 2712

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 10.
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and chief executive by

the Group in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and

the Group, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Companies

Ordinance are as follows:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BZ00F12A31ALFE

EESRFETHRAEME
EESRFETHAEMSE

R RE A & AR B K 2 BB PR R
B AREREEARRRAEEER
ENHENSEZREZTHABHM
ST

2020
2020F
Other

Retirement emoluments Equity-

benefits (mainly basic settled

scheme salariesand  share-based
Fees  contributions Bonus allowances) payment Total

HittBe LUEREE

BAEN (FEEE  UkRHA
ik AHEIfR Re EFRRR) EROOR st

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETR ARWTR

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR

Executive directors BiTES

Hu Xiang (note a) A5 (Ffeta) 82 = 591 648 - 1,321

Liao Dong BR 67 14 852 707 - 1,640

Non-executive director ~ FH{TES

Qu Degjan [EEE 89 - - - - 89

Independent non- BYKHTES

executive directors

Li Tianshu FRE 147 - - - - 147

Zhang Han G 142 - - - - 142

Ge Xiaojing BB 114 - - - - 114
64l 14 1,443 1,355 = 3,453

EhkERERLXT
20205 ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

10. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

0. EERFETHAEME (E)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Contd) EERFETHAEME (Z)
2019
2019F
Other
Retirement emoluments Equity-
benefits (mainly basic settled
scheme salariesand  share-based
Fees  contributions Bonus allowances) payment Total
Hitie DEmEE
R (FERFE  LUROA
e TR ®#e EFLER) ARONR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARET:
Executive directors HITES
Hu Xiang (note a) 57 (PiiEra) 89 - 399 692 - 1,180
Liao Dong BR 7 15 693 721 - 1501
Non-executive directors  FEH{TES
Qu Degian JEET 88 - - - - 88
Chen Zhaojun (note b)  BRKE (Fiikb) 16 - - - - 16
Independent non- BYKHTES
executive directors
Li Tianshu FREF 16| - - - - 161
Zhang Han G 141 - - - - 141
Ge Xiaojing EBE 125 - - - - 125
692 5 1092 1413 - 3212

190
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company and the Group and their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company or its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive directors” emoluments

shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which

are determined based on the performance of the Group.

Notes:

(€] Mr. Hu Xiang (“Mr. Hu") is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the chief

executive officer.

The retirement benefit scheme contribution of Mr. Hu is paid by Shenzhen Zhongxing
Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. RYITT R E LS BREBR AT ('SZWS") as Mr.
Hu is also a director of SZWS. SZWS is controlled by a group of common controlling

shareholders of the Company.

(b) On 21 March 2019, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Chen Zhaojun

from non-executive director.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the directors or the chief executive as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors
or the chief executive has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the

years ended 3| December 2020 and 2019.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2020 #§

10.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

EERTETRAEME (E)
NEFRBTES S RN R EHE
ERRARAEEERE LU EERRT
RAKEEHRM R o A LPEZ
FHITEREZME DR REERAR
AIEF AR ERRMI R o LA LA
HBUIFRTESZME BN R EE
RADAIESRE IR -

RAAETHTESTREREAEE
KR EIEAL -

BfFE

@  APRE(HREL] TRAREITHA
o NEMEEMS BREEERTRE
HRHEREOME

Ameh R RREERAE (DRI
#5E D) ERBEE X RAETE S
R DERAEETARYI#ERE
o R EBATD AN —ARFEE
PRASCR Pl

(b) HR2019F3A2 8 EFSHERIKE
EERHEIFRTES -

EHZE2020F R2019F 12831 BLEF
B AEEVERAEEHEETHAS
XM (ERBE MBI MER
SERERNER  JERBIBME - HE
2020 2019 12 A3IBILFE » #
BEAEEHTETRABHELRE
MEWREEREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

Il.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES . BEfURESHHES
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two (2019: two) directors BZE200F12A3IALLFE - A5E R
for the year ended 31 December 2020, details of whose emoluments are set HEREFMALBERE (2019F - M
out above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2019: three) highest paid R)EF  RENMSFBRHN LX -
individuals are as follows: HB =% (20195 : =8) &RSFMA

THBSEIIMT

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Salaries and other benefits e MEMET 1,665 1,670
Bonus ey 1,134 738
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RIKBFIFH IR 42 47
2,841 2,455

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEHME MR T EE -
2020 2019
2020F 20194
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEA™ EEAR
Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$") nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T ([HL]) 3 3

1 92 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

For year ended 31 December 2020

BEA0FENARILEE

DIVIDENDS 2. RE
2020 2019
20205 20196
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: FRERED AR :
2019 final dividend of HK$0.02 per share 2019 F REARR B & %0028 7T
(2019: 2018 final dividend of HK$0.02 per share) (20194 : 2018 F REAME
F%002787T) 15,080 14,435
No final dividend for the year ended 3| December 2020 was recommended by EETEBILMNEZE20205F 12431 B1E
the directors. FREMARBRE o
The final dividend of HK$0.02 per share in respect of the year ended 3| December BZ2019%F12A31 B EFEHRIAK
2019 was approved by the shareholders in the 2020 annual general meeting held BER0.02ETIN2020F6 A5 HARK
on 5 June 2020. 200FRRBF ARG LCRFAE

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2020 #§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

3.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 13.

The (loss) eamings figures for calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share and
diluted earnings per share attributable to the ordinary owners of the Company are

based on the following data:

Bk (BR) BF

RN READ R EBBEE AEHEEK
EX(BR) 2N R#EEaMNN (B18)
BNBFIRE T IEEAE -

2020 2019
20205 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARBTT
(Loss) earnings (E51E) BF
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to owners /NGIE 2PN
of the Company and (loss) earnings for purpose of (&8 FMEkAETE
basic (loss) earnings per share FRER (BE) 27
&) (E18) &7 (29.813) 23611
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company ANAFJ#A AL ERFER
and eamings for purpose of diluted earnings per share REtESREE RN M 2T N/A T 23611
2020 2019
2020 20194
’000 '000
TR T
Number of shares Vg 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RETEERER (BE) BH)
for the purpose of basic (loss) earnings per share ) BRI T 98 819,444 819,993
Weighted average number of ordinary share Rt B REER T
For the purpose of diluted earnings per share LRI T8 N/A REH 819,993

For the year ended 3| December 2020, the computation of diluted loss per share
is not presented as there is anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2020 if assumed the exercise of the Company’s options.
The computation of diluted earmings per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 did not assume the exercise of the Company's options because the exercise
price of those options was higher than the average market price of shares for the

year ended 31 December 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 4. Y% - WERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold Motor Plantand  Construction
Buildings ~ equipment improvements vehicles  machinery in progress Total
KA -%E  HEME BER
BF K& &% nE BE  HRIE EH)
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR®T:R
COsT 2%
At | January 2019 H2019F1 A18 306,153 34316 12,035 7297 241212 41744 642,757
Additions AE 581 3916 29 397 33064 13,126 51313
Transfer g2 98 237 724 - 21,767 (22.826) -
Disposals HE (409 (3809) - (1033) (44808 - (50,059)
At3! December2019  #2019F 12 A31H 306423 34,660 12988 6661 251235 30,044 64401 |
Additions RE 593 3341 4l 4 56913 12963 74235
Transfer gz - 31 - - 10487 (10518) -
Disposals HE (250) (1556) (302) QI (55417) - (57.736)
At3| December 2020 F2020% 12831 H 306,766 36476 13,107 6454 263218 34489 660510
DEPRECIATIONAND  HERHE
IMPAIRMENT
At | January 2019 B019F 1 A18 59,117 18370 6042 4631 162,249 - 250409
Provided forthe year ~ FRIEE 11,036 3860 802 903 23781 - 40382
Eliminated on disposals & § (192) (2501 - (981)  (20384) - (24058)
At 3l December 2019 ®2019F 124318 69,96 19,729 6844 4553 165,646 - 266733
Provided for the year  FEREHE 10614 3702 526 706 20781 - 36329
Eliminated on disposals ~ tH& 1 8 (250) (728) (248) Qo (0381) - (21,808)
At31 December2020  #2020F12A31H 80325 22,703 7122 5058 166,046 - 281,254
CARRYING VALUES SR
At3! December2020  #2020F 12 A31H 226441 13773 5985 1,396 97,172 34489 379,256
At3! December 2019 #2019% 12 A3IA 236462 14931 6,144 2,108 85,589 32,044 377278

ELERERLA

2020 #§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using straight-line

method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of lease or
30 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 19% —31.7%

Leasehold improvements 3% —33.3%

Motor vehicles 9.5% — 19%

Plant and machinery 9% — 33.3%

The Group's buildings are situated in the PRC under medium-term land use rights.

The Group was in process of obtaining certain relevant property ownership
certificates for buildings with carrying amount of approximately RMB6,343,000
(2019: RMB6,597,000) in property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2020.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the relevant property ownership

certificate can be obtained in due time without incurring significant costs.

The Group as lessor

The Group leases out certain floors of Group's owned buildings under operating
leases. The leases typically run for a fixed period of | to |0 years. None of the
leases includes variable lease payments. The Group is not exposed to foreign
currency risk as a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at

the end of lease term.

The portions of the Group's owned buildings under operating leases could not
be sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease and the portions
of the Group's owned buildings which are held for use in the Group’s production
of goods or for administrative purposes are not insignificant. Such of the Group’s

owned buildings are included in the Group's property, plant and equipment.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BZ00F12A31ALFE

I5. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 5. ERAEEE
Leasehold Leased
lands premises Total
HELTH HEME @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBT R AR®TR ARBT T

As at 3| December 2020 20206128318
Carrying amount AREE 25423 8,638 34061
As at 3| December 2019 20195128318
Carrying amount REE 26,091 9,370 35461

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12831 HLFE
Depreciation charge nER 668 5393 6,061

For the year ended 3| December 2019 EZ2019F12A31 HLLEE

Depreciation charge nES 668 3,030 3,698
2020 2019

2020F 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

AR®BTR ARETT

Expense relating to short-term leases RS HTEE AR X 2,442 3923

Total cash outflow for leases MEReMILER 8,250 7,073

Additions to right-of-use assets EREEERE 4,661 10,129
EL#EREBERLDA 1 97

20204 3}



198

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

I5.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Contd)

For both years, the Group leases leasehold lands and premises for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of | year to 50 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines

the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for office premises and staff
quarters. As at 31 December 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to
the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term expense included in

administrative expenses as disclosed in note 9 and above.

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB8,771,000 are recognised with related right-
of-use assets of RMB8,638,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: lease liabilities
of RMB9,429,000 and related right-of-use assets of RMB9,370,000). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security

for borrowing purposes.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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RREFERN  AEEREZEHREMR
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| FES0FETA  HERFK IR MERIE
BTN - B EESBTRRETRRE
1 o RETEM HI R AT AT R sE AR Y
RER  AEERAGANERTERE
BRI FIFITH AR o

AEBTEHRB SR EIEEL
REATEE - 20206 124318 - KHAHE
SHEEAEURE AN R EX AT
THRXESRRAEREEES -

BESN - 2020 12 A31 8 - BREES
BAKKS 771,000t MR AEEE
AR#8,638,0007T (20195 : HERE
AR#9,429,0007T KA AEEEA
FX#9,370,0007T) ° HE HETHEMNE
MEH  EHAARENHEEEETHN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS le. JEEBHEEE
Excess of Unrealised
accounting profit of
Allowance  depreciation  Allowance inter- Share-
for overtax for credit company based
inventories  depreciation |osses sales  Tax losses payment Others Total
EifiE )
BHHE HED HRGA
el REBR KE5 BB
FERRE 8 B ME  HEER (A Eft )
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTL ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTL ARETR
At | January 2019 R019F1A1H 11,300 1733 2,087 25059 4276 1229 50317
Credit (charge) to ERERAR
profit or loss (31)
Effect of change ERTEZEH)
in applicable e
tax rates (1,050) - - 3078 - - 2028
Effect of change TREEEEHN
of temporary g
difference 175 (129) 14 3964 - 671 4827
At 3] December 2019 #2019 124318 10425 1,608 2,101 32101 4276 1,900 57172
Credit (charge) to EERRAR
profit or loss (k)
Effect of change IREREZHN
of temporary e
difference (1,210) 149 (643) (926) 15390 - 1430 14,190
At 3] December 2020 #2020 124318 9,215 757 458 3,835 47491 4276 3330 71362

EHBRERLA
20204 3§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

6.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Contd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB333,242,000 (2019: RMB217,300,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of RMB281,553,000 (2019:
RMB179,838,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining RMB51,689,000 (2019: RMB37,462,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unused tax losses is tax loss of
RMB322,715,000 (2019: RMB21 1,696,000) which will expire in the following years

ending 31 December and other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

BELEREEE (&)

RBERR  AEBRBAHBKER
AR®333242,0007C (20194 : AR
217,300,0007T) A] ARME S AR SRAN A o
B ARKE281,533,0007T (2019 © A
FR#179,838,0007T ) KBS 1B SRIR ALY
HEE - BRRRBFRH TR
o JAI R T AREES 1,689,000
T (20194 + AR®37,462,0007T) R
EREBEEE - REANBEBES
RUTEZ 12831 BIEFEREROTK
BB AR#3227150007T (20194 = A
FREE211,696,0007T) K EoAth B 18 A] A& R
Hstes

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AR%F ARETTT

Unused tax losses with expiry in: R TEES B REAHBESE -
-2020 — 20204 - 343
—202] —-2021 4 37,519 44,149
-2022 - 20224 77,709 77,709
-2023 - 2023%F 45,144 45,144
2024 — 20244 44351 4435]
-2025 —2025%F 117,992 -
322,715 211,696

Under the relevant laws of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits eamed by the PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB460, 146,000 (2019: RMB480,766,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

REHEIEBEERE - B20085F 1 A1 H
8 R BT AR RIS FIEE R
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

BVEE

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

Development costs

BEEAE
RMB’000
AR¥TT
COST %N
At | January 2019 20191 A1 H 113,092
Additions NE 16,937
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12431 H 130,029
Additions NE 17,200
At 31 December 2020 72020 12 A31H 147,229
AMORTISATION 5
At | January 2019 R2019F 1 A 1A 51,782
Charge for the year FAMNGK 11,974
At 31 December 2019 F2019% 12 A31H 63,756
Charge for the year FAHBR 17,161
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31 B 80917
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31 B 66,312
At 31 December 2019 2019812 A31H 66,273

ELERERLA

2020 #§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Contd)

Development costs on antenna system (LTE antennas and Multi-system Antennas)
and base station RF subsystem (LTE filters and new models dedicated for some
customers) are intemally generated and amortised on a straight-line basis over 3
years when they are ready for use. Included in the cost of the Group's intangible
assets, approximately RMB24.5 million (2019: RMB48.3 million) were relating
to development of systems not ready for the intended use and, accordingly, no

amortisation was made.

At 31 December 2020, the Group conducted an impairment review of those

Group's intangible assets, and set forth in note 4.

Certain intangible assets were pledged to independent financial institution to secure

other borrowing of the Group.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

17.

BREE (&)

RBEG (LTERBRZ ZGRR) RE
BT AR (LTER RS R E AR L
BPREHFER) M ERKA RN
EH - AR ERBEIFERNIAELE
B AEERTEECKAFHAR
B245BETT (2019F : ARM483F
Br) BREERTERENANERA
B8 PUE 0 T AR o

P00 128318 AEBDHEER
BEEITHERN WS

ATEVEECERGELSBEEN
EREMEEER -



8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BZ00F12A31ALFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REt&E QTR zER
2020 2019
20205 20195
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR
Cost of interests in associates RE DRI Z R AR 6,430 5,500
Share of post-acquisition losses and other PR B R R A 2 E s -
comprehensive income, net of dividends received BHBREKRE (1,905) (1499)
4,525 4,001
Details of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting period are as follow: AT RREHRAEERE QRN
¥
Principal Proportion of Proportion of
Country of  place of ownership interest voting rights
Name of entity registration  business held by the Group held by the Group ~ Principal activity
TEEX FEEFEN FEEFEN
EREH AMER BB ARRLA FRERLH IREKED

2020 2019 2020 2019
200 2019 20206  2019%F

Shenzhen Borynet Co,, Ltd, PRC PRC 15.1% 15.1% 15.1% [5.1%  Software technology development
(“Borynet”) (note i)

AIMBEERHRBRAS]  PH FE 15.0%  150%  IS0%  150% EAEREREE
(&g ]) (Fe)

Wauxi Gaoyusheng New Material PRC PRC 40% 40% 40% 40%  Matenial development

Technology Co, Ltd,
(“Gaoyusheng) (note ii)

EHTRTRIMAERR P hE 40% 40% 40% 0%  PRFER
BRAR(THFR)) (i)

EhkERERLXT
20205 ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

18.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Contd) 8.

Notes:

() The entity is accounted for as an associate as at year end date as the Group has directors

in the board of the entity and is able to exercise significant influence in the entity.

(if) In October 2019, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and an independent third
party agreed to contribute 40% and 60% equity interest of Gaoyusheng, respectively. The
Group has contributed cash investment amounting RMB4,000,000 to Gaoyusheng. In April
2020, The Group has contributed additional cash investment amounting RMB930,000
to Gaoyusheng. The Group is able to exercise significant influence in Gaoyusheng as the
Group has the power to appoint one out of three directors of Gaoyusheng and the Group

recognised Gaoyusheng as an associate.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material associate,
Gaoyusheng is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the associate's financial statements prepared in

accordance with HKFRSs.

REHE DRz (8)

BisE

m%%§§53§$@ﬁX§$%lm§$
£ ZERBTEATE %
ERNFEAERARIIERZAF -

%mwimﬁ'$“ﬂ§§¥“ﬂ&*
HZBEUE=FREDHIKESFR40%
&w%k%°$%lﬁﬁ$%&Aﬁ
SHEAREA000,0007T ° R202054
A AEEREFREERARSRAA
R¥930000 K KB ME R FRITES
A¥EN RAAKREBAERZAST
BEREFPHP % BAKEHER
BFRABE R

BREAKETIERENRRTRONE
BRBIZEIIN T - A THIEERE]
EEREEEUHRELERBRNH 2
DRIPBEREAROEE

Gaoyusheng is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial SRR EFNGE AR REALE o
statements.
2020 2019
20205 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Current assets MBEE 12,649 12,224
Non-current assets FERBEE 12,132 -
Current liabilities ik JN=RE 14,088 2,368
Loss and other comprehensive expense for the year FEBEREMZEAS (1,488) (143)

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Contd) 18. MEE AT R (&)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented above to the FIMBERBERN G TR ER
carrying amount of the interest in Gaoyusheng was set out below: REEHREAT

2020 2019
20205 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
Net assets of Gaoyusheng BFRLEEFH 10,693 9,856
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEERAERTR BRI
interest in Gaoyusheng 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Gaoyusheng ~ ASRER & FREDR Z KEE 4,277 3,942
Aggregate information of Borynet that is not individually material ERIBEEREE 2 ELER
2020 2019
20205 20196
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
The Group's share of profit (loss) from SEELRECERBL
continuing operations 27 (F8) 189 (349)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEEREEZ
interest in Borynet a2 RHELR 248 59

EHBRERLA
20204 3§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

19. INVENTORIES 9. &E&

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

AR¥ETR AREF T

Raw materials [ 74,852 71964
Work-in-progress & 27,559 22981
Finished goods S 231,168 258,378
Less: allowance for inventories W FEEE (63,562) (71,632)
270,017 281,691

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EZREMEUERR

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥ETR AREF T

Trade receivables — contracts with customers BHRBER —BPAHY 356,422 492,000
Less: allowance for credit losses W EEBERE (10,493) (14215)
345,929 477785

Notes and bills receivables EWEE 160,218 136,357
Rental and utility deposits Me REEEe 1,396 1,395
Advance to suppliers [r) (B P EA 3K 38,963 21,449
Value added tax receivables WIS ERE 40,545 30,242
Other receivables and deposits Hip R Rige 37,787 42,195
624,838 709,423

206 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)
As at | January 2019, the carrying amount of trade receivables from contracts
with customers amounted to RMB543,786,000, net of allowance for credit losses

amounted to RMB14,122,000.

The Group offers credit terms generally accepted in the antenna system, base
station RF subsystem and coverage extension solution manufacturing industry to its
trade customers, which range from 30 to 240 days (2019: 30 to 240 days) from the
invoice dates. For the Group's major customers which are network operators and
domestic and overseas wireless network solution providers with good reputation
and repayment records, a longer credit term may be granted to them, depending
on price, the size of the contract, credibility and reputation of them. In order to
manage the credit risks associated with trade receivables effectively, credit limits
of customers are evaluated periodically. Before accepting any new customer,
the Group conducts research on the creditworthiness of the new customer and

assesses the potential customer's credit quality.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for credit

losses presented based on the invoice dates:

20.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

EZRHEMEBWERR (E)
R2019F 1 A8 REZFAHNH
BHRWERNERE (NREES
BEEARK14,1220007T) AARE
543,786,0007T °

AEENESEPRERERS - Hif
T RERBER R RS TEY
BEINEEH ARRAAEERN
EEHRAEEAMBHNTI0E24008
(2019 : 302240H) - BRPREL
& B ASME BB R T R e B
AERITBEREXCHNAEELE
P AR EREBERNEES  RT
B ARHAE  BRAEPHOERER
BEMT - AERERRE HEUERR
HBANEERRE - AARTEHEEFH
EERBETE - ARERA/EMI
EPRl - g REZAMEPHERLE
KiHhBEEFPHEEER -

UTREREREHHOE 5 RUER
(R EEERRH) RERE DT -

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETTT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 120,581 130,538
31 to 60 days 31260H 36,639 65,035
61 to 90 days 61290 H 35,071 57,585
91 to 120 days 91Z 1208 14,033 39,530
121 to 180 days 121%180H 26,457 62,131
Over 180 days BB 180H 113,148 122,966
345,929 477785

EHBRERLA
20204 3§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

20.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

At 31 December 2020, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB 129,457,000 (2019:
RMBI71,576,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting period. Out of
the past due balances, RMB79,768,000 (2019: RMB75,477,000) has been past due
over 90 days and is not considered as in default because the trade receivables are
of good credit quality and repayment records history. The Group does not hold

any collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the year ended

31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in note 33.

The following is an aged analysis of notes and bills receivables presented based on

the notes and bills issue dates:

20.

EZRHEMEBWERR (E)

R2020F 128318 RBREHARD
BEEBESFERES HOARK
129,457,0007C (20194F = AR# 171576000
T T AREE 2 B SRR &R - 8
HRfERR AR IE797680007T (20194 : AR
#754770007T) EBERER0R - HARW
BREXD RERBIERUENEERE
ZERBERRCERT - REEHER
BEMBERZEEHROERY) o

HE2020F %2019 12831 HIEFEH
B 5 M EMERERZR AT EOFIEE
FBTFE33 ©

AT ARERETHHFNRKEERN
FRie DA -

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT

0to 30 days 0E30H 7,294 35,460
31 to 60 days 31260H 5,806 24,657
61 0 90 days 61 290H 12,552 17,181
91 to 120 days 91ZE 1208 30,749 13,322
Over 120 days 81208 103,817 45,737
160,218 136,357

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd) 20.

All notes and bills received by the Group are with a maturity period of less than

one year.

As at 31 December 2019, notes and bills receivables with carrying amount of
RMB79,071,000 were pledged to secure the Group's banking facilities. No notes

and bills receivables were pledged as at 31 December 2020.

Analysis of trade and other receivables denominated in currencies other than the

functional currencies of the relevant group entities is set out below:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

B R HBYIRR (&)
AEBYRB|NABERENEHHRET
R —F

R2019F 12831 B - NEBEHREE
A ARET79,071,0007TH IR Z 15 A
AAREERRITRE - BIE2020F 12 A
318 - MERREARENEKER -

NEBEEERMNIEEEAINE
FHERE 5 R EAREERR AT T -

At 31 December

R+=A=+-8

2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTT ARETTT

United States Dollar (‘USD") EM(EA) 128,792 71,128
Euro (“EUR") Bt ([BT]) - 1,265
128,792 72,393

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2020 #§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

21.

PLEDGED BANK BALANCES/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group's pledged bank balances represent bank deposits with original maturity
within 12 months and carry fixed interest rate from 0.30% to 3.85% (2019: 0.30%
to 2.75%) per annum. They are mainly pledged to banks to secure bills payables

and certain of the bank borrowings of the Group.

The Group's bank balances and cash comprise cash and bank deposits which carry
interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.30% (2019: 0.001% to
0.30%) per annum.

Certain of the Group's bank balances and cash and pledged bank balances with an
aggregate amount of RMB305,161,000 (2019: RMB288,865,000) were denominated
in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the international market.
The government of the PRC has implemented foreign exchange control and
the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions

imposed by the government of the PRC.

Analysis of pledged bank balances together with bank balances and cash
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant

group entities is set out below:

21.

BEMRITES RITERKRES
AEENDKARTERERTETN
HANEARN  REF0I0EEISE
(2019 : 0.30EE2.75/F ) M E T F=
FEMBITER  BEEEATERR
TEAREERNERRETRITER
R o

AEERNRITERRREBEREEN
F0.001 EZE0.30E (20194 : 0001 EE
030E) MERMSNETENHEE R
RITER °

AEEETHRITABRKERGEDIER
RITHERR - A ARM305,161,0007T
(2019%F + AR¥2888650007T) AAR
BEHE - MARE L IEBER TSR 8 i
RBEE - PEBURETINEE I - 1§
BB N BIRINER & P BB HIE
SRR

B BE B RS R
BHERMRII S  BRBTERE
BeMANHIET :

2020 2019
20205 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETT

UsD £t 167,960 86,676
EUR BT 11,270 31,481
HKS BT 353 22463
Indonesian Rupiah & 2 -
179,585 140,620

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020

BEA0FENARILEE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. BERHMEMNENR
2020 2019
2020 2019%
RMB’000 RMB' 000
AR®TR AREFT
Trade payables B HRENRR 374,648 377,759
Notes and bills payable ARESE 177,974 214423
Payroll payable ERIE 22218 18976
Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  WFERRBENENERER 20915 18,091
Value added taxes payable JEIEER 6,128 5,770
Accrued expenses HIRER 12,797 11,756
Others Hit 16,272 20,209
630,952 666,984

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice

RIRBEFH YN E B RARSORER

dates: DT
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMEF T ARBTT
0 to 30 days 0&30H 72,801 48,355
31 to 60 days 31260H 49,133 59,065
61 to 90 days 612908 48,396 47,375
91 to 180 days 91E180H 111,294 115,076
Over 180 days #8:8180H 93,024 107,888
374,648 377,759

Typical credit term of trade payables ranges from 60 to 120 days from the invoice

dates.

EPRNRINEER - REERA%
ZHHRLT60HZEI20A °

EHBRERLA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

22.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd) 22. BEERHMEMERERNR(E)
The following is an aged analysis of notes and bills payable presented based on the REREETH R ENREN K
notes and bills issue dates: AN
2020 2019
20205 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

0 to 30 days 0&30H - -
31 to 60 days 31260H 36,324 32,501
61 to 90 days 61 £90H 94,061 50,743
Over 90 days #8:890H 47,589 131,179
177,974 214,423
Typical credit term of notes and bills payables ranges from 90 to 180 days. ENERNEERH-—KRBER0BZE

[180H -

The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all

payables are settled within the credit timeframe. AEBCH T BRERERBUR - A
RABRNESECEEHNEE -

Analysis of trade and other payables denominated in currencies other than the NEBSBEERNYE S UIIE
functional currencies of the relevant group entities is set out below: FHEMEB S LEMENERERI T

At 31 December

RWI12A31R
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

ARBTR ARETT

UsD £t 12,340 12,725
HK$ BT 349 460
12,689 13,185
21 2 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES BHEE
2020 2019
20205 20196
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Receipt in advance from contracts with customers BB P &KFIE 7,272 6,206

As at | January 2019, contract liabilities accounted to RMB22,939,000.

Contract liabilities are to be settled within the Group’s normal operating cycle and

are classified as current liabilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue amounting to RMB6,206,000
(2019: RMB22,939,000) was recognised in the current year which relates to

carried-forward contract liabilities.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities

recognised are as follows:

For revenue recognised upon sales of antenna system and related products, base
station RF subsystem and related products and coverage extension solution, the
Group receives certain of the contract value as advance payments from customers
according to the contracts terms. The advance payments give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract until the customer obtains control of the

respective goods.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2020 #§

RO9FIAIENANAGERARS
22939,0007C °

>

SHABERNASEMNEREZ RSN
BRI HBRRBALE -

;:H—U

HZE2000F 12A31BILFE - RAF
EREROU = AR 6,206,0007T (2019
F o ARK229390007T) EAEEANE
BEHMA -

HERRNAWAGSRELTEN—
AR RIS T

HHERBRAG RABHER - EU5A
FEBREBEERANBERHE RN
ERHNBENE  ARERES QK
TR B AR - T’Ei%fi}fi‘ﬁH;”
B BNRBRERAHRRKELS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

24, SBIORHEHMER

2020 2019
20205 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
PifaE AR®TR ARETT
Bank borrowings: RITIER -
— Secured fixed rate borrowings — BHERTEEEK (i) 20,000 44,000
— Unsecured fixed rate borrowings — EFBEBER (i) 59,575 34,882
— Unsecured floating rate borrowings — BERERE (ii) 20,000 20,000
99,575 98,882
Other borrowing; HAMER -
— Secured fixed rate borrowing — BEHERER (iv) 65,000 -
65,000 -

The amount is repayable: ZIEEEE -
— Within one year - —FR 99,575 98,882
— Within a period of more than - —FULERF

one year but not exceeding two years 65,000 -
Total st 164,575 98,882
Less: Amounts due within one year and B R F 2 AEE

shown under current liabilities Sl ERBAE A (99,575) (98,882)
Amounts due after one year R—FEFIEFIE 65,000 -

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Contd) 24. SRITRHAMERE

Notes: BisE
(i) The RMB secured fixed rate borrowings carry interest at the rate of 3.90% (2019: 3.90%) () ARBEERESEROFEFEA390
per annum and are secured by pledged bank balances (2019: pledged bank balances). E(2019% : 390F) - AEHEIPRITE
£ (2019 : BIERMRITHRR) (EEM -
(if) The unsecured fixed rate borrowings carry interest at the rate ranged from 2.60% to 5.55% (i) BERARTERERNFNERLO0ESE
(2019: 4.70% to 5.66%) per annum. 555 (20194F : 470EZE5.66[E) ©
(i) During the year ended 3| December 2020, the RMB denominated unsecured floating (iy EZE2020F 12A31BILEFE - AR
rate borrowings carried interest at the rate of the Loan Prime Rate (“LPR") plus 50 basis FHENEERZSERUNERTSR
points per annum (2019: the Shanghai Interbank Offered Rate (“SHIBOR”) plus or minus BRI ([LPR]) NEFS0EEZ M FIX
['12.75 basis points per annum). The effective interest rate for the unsecured floating rate (20194 : & L/ RITHE R /A=
borrowings was 4.00% (2019: 490%) per annum. [SHIBORJ) Ansis | 12.75 18 £ 2 &) 5 7
LB o BT RETNERERN X
B4002 (2019 : 490F) «
(v)  The other borrowing was an asset-backed borrowing from an third party financial vy HtERAREE=FEeRBENEE

institution, which is secured by certain intangible assets and carries interest at the rate of

4.72% (2019: nil) per annum.

The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than the

functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

BHER TS TEREEFR
B WIREFE472E (20194 : &) &
B

AEBUEREEEENNEERE AN
HERHEMRITESNT -

2020 2019

20205 20195

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT

UsD ETT 19,575 19,882

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2020 #§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

25. LEASE LIABILITIES 5. HEEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARETT
Lease liabilities payable: EAEEEE:
Within one year —FA 4,920 4,408
Within a period of more than one year but not REP—FU HENEBRME
more than two years 2,877 2818
Within a period of more than two years but not REME HENERDE
more than five years 974 2,203
8,771 9429
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months W RRBABETEIIM
shown under current liabilities 1218 A RZIBEEHF0R (4.920) (4,408)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months REEET256
shown under liabilities R 2ME AR BIBERFOR 3,851 5021
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities is 6% THEBBATAMMETE S E R X

(2019: 6%).

BE6E (20195 : 68) o

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents non-recurring government grants received for

acquisition and improvement of property, plant and equipment. The deferred

income s released to the profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant

assets. Movements of deferred income during the years are as follows:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

IEFEWA

SEIEWN 15 B WO IR 1 U 78 B
£ ARUBEREENE  BERR
f& o EEWAIZ AR E EO R A (EA
FHRARRR - FRAETRANEE
nr

2020 2019
20206 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
Government grant related to assets HEENBNRAES S
At beginning of the year REA) 12,773 12,797
Released to profit or loss RIEBRERA (3,971) (24)
At end of the year RER 8,802 12,773
Analysed for reporting purposes as: IIE2|MAE
Current portion ENEAEE 2,536 24
Non-current portion FEENEAEE S 6,266 12,749
8,802 12,773
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TEEMTA
2020 2019
20205 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Currency forward contracts, at fair value (note)

EREMAH
BAFEA (BE)

1,349 -

Note: At 31 December 2020, the Group has outstanding currency forward contracts with

an aggregate notional amount of USD 19,300,000 that require the Group to sell USD
for RMB at exchange rates ranging from RMB6.52 to RMB6.97 for USD| with maturity
periods up to nine months from the end of the reporting period. The currency forward
contracts give rise to a net fair value loss of RMBI,349,000 (2019: nil) which recognised

in profit or loss.

The above derivatives are classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL. Their fair values

are determined based on the valuation carried out by financial institutions, which

are measured using the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted

based on the applicable yield curves derived from quoted forward exchange rates

at the end of the reporting period. Details are set out in note 33.

ELERERLA

20204 3}

Mz M2020F 128318 AEEHBBERE
EEERBAY - BE{EA19,300,000
ETT RANBRAEBUNTRI
ETAARB62TEARECITTT
MERHEETLEARE - REIHR
REREHABRENMEAR - E¥RE
BHEEMATFEREEAEARE
1,349,0007C (20194F : &) B /£ Bz5H

FRTET AN BARRAFEF ABRR
NERAE - A FEREMEHER
ETMHEMNET - LERRENERE
R ERERGHNERES
st AR RRR S RNRET
B o FEENMES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

28.

Number of shares

RERE

Issued capital

ROEE ERITRAE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 20194 20204 20195
Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares shares shares
EER Ak EER gl
’000 '000 usD usD
TR TR EY ETT
Ordinary shares of USD0.00000| each FRMEE0.000001 7T
B E AR
Authorised: EE
At beginning and end of the year RENRER 2,000,000  2,000000 200000  2,000.00
Issued and fully paid BRITRAR
At beginning of the year REA) 819,587 820217 819.58 82021
Repurchase and cancellation of shares (note) B iR R m Kt dA (PRsE) (745) (630) (0.75) (0.63)
At end of the year RER 818,842 819,587 818.83 819.58
Issued capital
BRITRA
2020 2019
20205 20196
Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
equivalent equivalent
ZEEER HELERK
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR®TT
Issued and fully paid ERITRAR
At beginning of the year REH] 5,731.49 573579
Repurchase and cancellation of shares (note) R AR B E K sk g (Pst) (5.08) (4.30)
At end of the year RER 572641 573149

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Contd) 28. ARBRE (&
Issued capital shown in the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 20206 K2019F 12 A31 B - R&RE
December 2020 and 2019 were rounded to RMB6,000. IBEARBRINIERTRAN/A
FR#E6,0007T ©
There is no movement of authorised ordinary share during the years ended 31 BEE2020F R2019F 12A31HIESE
December 2020 and 2019. B AL BRI mEE -
Note: During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares through the Stock Exchange as MiEE : RER - ANARBEBM RN TAR
follows: BEEE SR
No. of ordinary Price per share
shares of BRE® Aggregate
Year Ended Month of repurchase USD0.000001 each Lowest Highest consideration paid
=R {E0.000001
FR BE A% EnEBERYAE RiE 55 EARE
HK$ HK$ HK$ RMB
BT B B ARWR
2020 20204 September 2020 20209 A 745,000 072 0.75 550,310 485,619
2019 20194 August 2019 201948 A 630,000 091 094 577,950 509,929
The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchase. DAL B m R A R (Bl 2 A 8 o
None of the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the R ARENTARMERE  HE
Company's listed securities during the year. HEE AR A ETER o
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 29. BROXAHRS

Share options were granted on 23 December 2013 (“2013 Option”) and 26
March 2015 (“2015 Option") for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors and eligible employees, and will expire on 22 December 2023 and 25
March 2025 respectively. Under the share option schemes of the Company, the
Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant share
options to an individual consultant or advisor who renders or has rendered bona

fide services to the Company.

EHBRERLA
20204 3§

R20135 128238 K2015F3 26 BFT
R AR (9 5I1A 201 35 BARE
RI0ISFEREDOFZENTME
EREEREERERE  MZEER
BB RIN2023F 12 223 %2025F
3A2SBER © BREBEARAIHEREST
2 RARRAIEFEGARTEERER
(BREARAREFARNES) AJ R
ARRRMD VBRI o W5 - RATH
TRAARE ARATREEHRED
1751/ 25 5 B ] o BB el 52 L PR AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

29.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

As at 31 December 2020, the number of ordinary shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding was 45,266,000 (2019:
46,336,000), representing 5.53% (2019: 5.65%) of the total ordinary shares in issue
at end of the reporting period.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. For 2013 Option and 2015
Option, options may be exercised after the completion of relevant vesting period

to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant.

2013 Option

30% of total number of options of 2013 Option (‘2013 Option A") are exercisable
on the second anniversary date of grant, 30% of total number of options of 2013
Option (2013 Option B") are exercisable on the third anniversary date of grant
and the remaining 40% of total number of options of 2013 Option (2013 Option
C") are exercisable on the fourth anniversary date of grant. In addition, 2013
Option is also subjected to the performance condition of the Group and individual

employee to exercise.

Pursuant to the board resolution on 29 May 2015, the 2013 Option was amended
whereby the vesting dates of the option has been accelerated. 2013 Option A
shall be vested on, and become exercisable from | June 2015, 2013 Option B
shall be vested on, and become exercisable from | April 2016 and 2013 Option C
shall be vested on, and become exercisable from | April 2017. Such amendment
is applicable prospectively to the unexercised 2013 Option and result in a net
decrease in fair value of such option measured immediately before and after the
modifications, of which no adjustment for the years ended 31 December 2020 and

2019 needed to the fair value of the 2013 Option.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

2015 Option

30% of total number of options of 2015 Option (2015 Option A”) are exercisable
from | April 2016, 30% of total number of options of 2015 Option (2015 Option
B") are exercisable from | April 2017 and the remaining 40% of total number of
options of 2015 Option (2015 Option C") are exercisable from | April 2018. In
addition, 2015 Option is also subjected to the performance condition of the Group

and individual employee to exercise.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

29. DURMEXNANRE (&)

2015FBRE

2015 FE AR A i PR R 4 B9 30% (2015
FEBREA]) TR2016F4 81 BT -
2015 FREMERE IR BR30% (12015
FEER]) ATR2017F4 A1 BT
20155 i AR i HE AR R 4 BV 82 TS 40%
(T2015FHERRREC]) AT 201854 A |
BT o thoh » 2015 FBEBRENEFE
AEEREEESNRBGEET AT
&

BN ARRENHENT

Exercise Fair value at

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period price grant date

BRI RH B FEH Rt TEE AVHE

2013 Option A 23/12/2013 23/122013 10 31/05/2015  01/06/2015 to 22/12/2023 RMBI.09 RMBO.5|

WI3FEIREA  2013F 128238 2013F12A3H% WISF6AIHE ARK1097T ARKOSITT
201555 H31H 2023F 12 A2H

2013 Option B 23/12/2013 23/122013 10 31/03/2016  01/04/2016 to 22/12/2023 RMBI.09 RMBO.5|

013FBBER  2013F 128238 2013F12A3HE WI6F4A1HE AREE1097T ARSI
201653 H31H 2023F 12 A2H

2013 Option C ~ 23/12/2013 23/12/2013 10 31/03/2017  01/04/2017 to 22/12/2023 RMBI.09 RMBO.5|

013FBBEC 2013F 128238  2013F12A3HE 0I7F481HE AR 1097 ARSI
201753 H31H 2023F 12 A2H

2015 Option A 26/03/2015 26/03/2015 t0 31/03/2016  01/04/2016 to 25/03/2025 RMB| 47 RMBO.6 |

0I15FBBEA 2015838268  2015F38268% WI6F4A1HE AR 14770 AR®061TT
201653 H31H 202553 H25H

2015 Option B 26/03/2015 26/03/2015 t0 31/03/2017  01/04/2017 to 25/03/2025 RMB| 47 RMBO.6 |

0I15FBBER 2015838268 2015F3826H%F 0I7F481BZ AR 14770 AR®061TT
201753 H31H 202553 H25H

2015 Option C 26/03/2015 26/03/2015 t0 31/03/2018  01/04/2018 to 25/03/2025 RMB| 47 RMBO.6 |

0I15FBBEC 2015838268  20I15F3826H8F 019F481HE AR 14770 AR®061TT
201953 H31H 202553 H25H

ELERERLA

20204 3}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

URBXNHRE (&)
TREBSERALHENARABR

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 29.

The following table discloses movements of the Company's share options held by

222

eligible persons:

o

2020 20205
Granted Forfeited Exercised Expired
Outstanding at during during during during  Outstanding at
Option type BRERR [/1/2020  the year theyear  theyear  theyear 31/12/2020
120205 20205
A1 RER REA  REAR  RER 12A31H
e RATHE it R (o :d JE# e RATHE
2013 Option A 2013 FHERIEA 6,872,000 — (228,000) — — 6,644,000
2013 Option B 2013 FHERHER 7,436,000 — (228,000) — — 7,208,000
2013 Option C 2013FBERRIEC 10,388,000 - (304,000) — — 10,084,000
2015 Option A 2015FHERIEA 6,492,000 — (93,000) — — 6,399,000
2015 Option B 2015FRERHER 6,492,000 — (93,000) — — 6,399,000
2015 Option C 2015 R RIEC 8,656,000 — (124,000) — — 8,532,000
46,336,000 — (1,070,000) — — 45,266,000
Exercisable at the ARERITIE

end of the year 45,266,000
Weighted average IETITEE RMBI 4370 RMBI.3196 RMBI.3518
exercise price AR 143707T — ARBI1319%7T — — AR®I135187T

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 29. DURMEXNANRE (&)
2019 20195
Granted Forfeited Exercised  Expired
Outstanding at during during during during  Outstanding at
Option type BB R R [/1/2019  the year the year  theyear  the year 31/12/2019
20195 20195
BB RER RER  RER RER 12A318
fe R AT6E il B 1 & e R AT6E
2013 Option A 20135 BAIREA 7,535,000 — (663,000) - - 6,872,000
2013 Option B 20135 HERER 8,099,000 - (663,000) - - 7,436,000
2013 Option C 20135FHEAREC 11,272,000 - (884,000) - - 10,388,000
2015 Option A 20155 HERREA 7,194,000 - (702,000) - - 6,492,000
2015 Option B 2015 F R ER 7,194,000 - (702,000) - - 6,492,000
2015 Option C 2015FREREC 9,592,000 - (936,000) - - 8,656,000
50,886,000 - (4,550,000) - - 46,336,000
Exercisable at the A RERTTEE
end of the year 46,336,000
Weighted average  NEFHITHEE RMBI 4074 RMBI 4397 RMBI 4370
exercise price AR 140747C - AR®143977C - - AR¥143707T

No equity settled share-based payment expense is recognised for the years ended BIE2020F R2019F 12A31BIEFE - Hil
31 December 2020 and 2019 in relation to share options granted by the Company. LAV A 1% T Y B8 A A e R DA B 2 A 38 DA
XM

EHBRERLA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

30. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS 30. AMEMERH
The Group as lessor FEEERHEBEA
All of the leased premises have committed lessees for the next one to ten years, FIEMENECEEAMARERNET
R—E+FREEER -
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: MERKZ ATRBEERNKET -
2020 2019
20205 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFR  ARKTI
Within one year —FR 9,187 8,881
In the second year F_F 9,979 8,402
In the third year F=F 9,333 6,824
In the fourth year FINF 8,132 5,785
In the fifth year BREF 5,705 5836
Over five years RENUE 594 4719
42,930 40,447
31.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 3. BAREIE
2020 2019
20205 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided i~ BEWIEY % - BB RS HER
the consolidated financial statements in respect of the BAIABRELR S I BREK
acquisition of property, plant and equipment BIBNEARRX 12,207 5477

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BZ00F12A31ALFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 2. BXERER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to AEBERHERUERTEEHE %
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders through NRIAARERE - WHERHEREER
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy HRETE  BRERGRZAE®R - B
remains unchanged from prior year. EFR - NEENEBRERFTE -
The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net of cash and AEENEAEBOERITER R
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising LR eFEMFERARREE AEN
issued share capital, share premium and other reserves. #Bn (BREEBTRE - BROEERE
thEfE) ©
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. ARREEFHLFRAEREE - 15R
As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks BEH)—HD  EFEEZRERKAKE
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendation of the directors, the ERERNHEANRR - REZEEHNE
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, #F AREREBRINMNRE - BITH
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as raising of new bank loans. R~ IR BB K ¥ i iR1T B SUAF & AR
SENBRENER -
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 33. MIBEKBREEEERBE
Categories of financial instruments ERMIANESR
2020 2019
20205 20196
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Financial assets ETREE
Amortised cost B 1,027,665 1,085,005
Financial liabilities EMER
Amortised cost B 776,602 752,472
FVTPL BRFHEFABS 1,349 -
Lease liabilities HERR 8,771 9,429

EhkERERLXT
20205 ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Contd)

Financial risk management objectives and polices

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
pledged bank balances, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, lease
liabilities and bank and other borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include credit risk, market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the financial assets best
represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with

its financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit
scoring system to assess the potential customer's credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk of trade receivables is significantly reduced.

The Group has a significant concentration of customers credit risk as 17.2% (2019:
30.9%) and 56.9% (2019: 86.0%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group's largest customer and the five largest customers respectively. These major
customers are network operators and domestic and overseas wireless network

solution providers with good reputation and repayment records.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Contd)

Financial risk management objectives and polices (Cont d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont d)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (Contd)

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in the
PRC, which accounted for 62.89% (2019: 82.83%) of the total trade receivables as
at 31 December 2020.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model on
trade balances individually or based on collective assessment. Except for debtors
with significant outstanding balances and credit-impaired, which are assessed
for impairment individually, the remaining trade receivables are grouped by
internal credit rating under a collective assessment, based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to ageing, repayment history and past due status of
respective trade receivables. Impairment of RMB 1,550,000 (2019: RMB2,712,000) is
recognised during the year. Details of the quantitative disclosures are set out below

in this note.

Pledged bank balances and bank balances
The credit risk of the Group on pledged bank balances and bank balances is limited
because the majority of the counterparties are interational banks or state-owned

banks, all of which are with high credit ratings.

Other receivables

The Group's other receivables representing notes and bills receivables and others.
The directors of the Company consider that the credit risk on other receivables is
limited and the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model on these other
receivables individually. The Group only accepts bills issued or guaranteed by
reputable PRC banks and therefore the management of the Group considers the
credit risk is insignificant. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that

the Group's credit risk on other receivables is significantly reduced.

EHBRERLA
20204 3§
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

Bk EE B R RBUR (8)

BEEREEBEREE (£)
EERRRBEFG (E)
ELXHHEEFPHEHCEZENREF
(#&)
AEERIEMBESNEFEERR
FTERERPE - 152020512431 H
B 5 U ER B 5 62.89% (20194 -
82.83%) °

AN AEBREHEEHEEAHE
SEHETERR AT G ERE BT
TS - REEAKREERERKE
ERERM YR (SRR TGE
TEBIRETE) - RELERER - &
HEHEREE SRUGRTE BN - &
SEERSREIGHEABEETLES A
FIABHRBEN - AEEFHNERER
EARE1,550,0007C (20195 : AR
#2,712,0007T) - EERBFBEHNE
BTEETRC °

EBRITRESAR IR T
RARZHH T RERREEFRNE
FRIRTTRBARTT - AERETHEFRT
BHRIRITEBNEERRAR

Rt [

AEE N H U R TR AR R H
KRR - ARAREFERAEMEN
ERNEERRER  MAKEERE
BEZRERENAREEEERE &
ERBRRAMERER - ABERKR
BAETE - WEBMETR - 1 A&
BREREEBREA SR EABRR
BRFCETTE R ERHE - AREER R
AEERFNTFERITETRERNE
B FAAEEERERAEERRE
NRE - BT S - ARAIERERA
AEBHBEKREFOEERRE AKX
FEE o
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REMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

33.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Contd)

Financial risk management objectives and polices (Contd)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following

categories:

33. BIBEMBERERREEE)

PREREEEBEREE (£)
EEmE R BEFG ()

TR

AEBHAREERR SRS

Internal credit rating ~ Description Trade receivables Other financial assets

REEEFR 2L B 5 RYURR HittEMEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL — not credit- [2-month ECL
does not have any past-due amounts impaired

1 ez HFTWEORRRE  AYEEMANR FENRREEEE - 2EABEHEEER
A REEEERE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL — not credit- [2-month ECL
usually settle after due date impaired

BRRE EBRALERIMARES  BE—RNIY FEPRBEESE - 2fEABHEEEBR
A&FE REEERRE

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk  Lifetime ECL — not credit- Lifetime ECL
since initial recognition through information impaired — not credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources

ez AEBABEKRZERSIBERETG HFEPRBEEEE - FEMEMERER -

wi% - EERRBERM REEEERE REEEERE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired — credit-impaired

E# REBBETEHMEECREEERE FERMEHEEER - FENEREEERE -

BAEEERE BAEEERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtorisin ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect of recovery

38 BEER mFﬁAkkﬁim%Wl%H$ MEBREER MIEEEER
SETRBARAREARER
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 33.

(Contd)

Financial risk management objectives and polices (Cont d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial assets
representing trade receivables, other receivables, pledged bank balances and bank

balances which are subject to ECL assessment:

Extemnal Internal

credit credit
Notes  rating rating
o3 o
BE RE [2-month or lifetime ECL

itz AR BEN RNEAGEESRNEEER

Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

Bk EE B R RBUR (8)

B¥EREERERIK (&)
EEmE R BEFG ()
TRFFAEERETRAEEEET
fheeBEE (MBS RKIER - Bt
FENRR  EIRRITERRIRITHERR)
ZIEERR :

2020 2019
Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
200 FAKREE WIFERMEE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARMTR ARETT ARETT

Financial assets at
amortised costs

BRERATR
LEBEE
Trade receivables 20 NA (note 2) Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired 213,015 380902
Watchlist ~ Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 133,801 97,053
Loss Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 9,606 356,422 14,045 492,000
EHRIER 0 TER (WE)  FEYESEEER-
AELEERE
BRrE GEUESESRE-
AELERER
E& FEARAEERE -
RLEEEE
Pledged bank balances 21 BBBAAA  N/A 12-month ECL 112,816 112,816 137,074 137,074
ERBITER 2l NER ERRHEEEE
Bank balances 21 BBBAAA  N/A [2-month ECL 371,792 371,792 292,194 292,194
BiTEH 2| MER EARSEERS
Other receivables 20 NA Low risk 12-month ECL 196,990 196,990 177735 [77,735
(note )
EfEYER 0 NER BER EARBEEER
(Bf3E1)

EHBRERLA
20204 3§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

33.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 33. MIBEBEEEERBEE)
(Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and polices (Contd) BERBEEEEREEK (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd) EEmE R ETE (E)
Notes: BisE
For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past due information . BRABEERBERERNS - AREEA
to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. BEEREERERREERRZ

BE KRN -

Not past due/ no fixed

2020 Past due repayment terms Total
20205 B KEH BETENRS et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AR®TR ARBTR

Other receivables H RN - 196,990 196,990

Not past due/ no fixed

2019 Past due repayment terms Total
20194 W KA EETETS @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFT AREFIT

Other receivables HAth FE YR K - 177,735 177,735

2 HEZEKERNES  AEEERAA
RRBREEREIRMETETE
HEBERBEBOERRE - KRERF
BEEAREREHREERENER
RN AEEERZABEETRD
ANERETEETZSRANESER
A

2. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances and credit-impaired which are assessed individually, the Group determines the
expected credit losses on these items by using a collective assessment, grouped by internal

credit rating.
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 33.

(Contd)

Financial risk management objectives and polices (Contd)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

Collective assessment — internal credit ratings

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal credit
rating for its customers. The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed based on collective
assessment as at 31 December 2020 within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).
Debtors with significant outstanding balances and credit-impaired with gross
carrying amounts of RMBI133,801,000 (2019: RMB97,053,000) and RMB9,606,000
(2019: RMB14,045,000) respectively as at 31 December 2020 were assessed
individually.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

Bk EE B R RBUR (8)

MREREEEERBE (&)
EEmERBEFE ()

SR — NEEETR
ERASBEREERRER, — 57 - K
SEHEEPEAABEETR T
FRUEEEIRRESEERRES
B RSB HRIEEZRIIRE2020
F12A31 BEETE (FEREREE
BB — REEEERE) T - 72020
F12A3I8  HEABEAREELES
(HBEEmEEAAR133,801,0007T (2019
F 0 ARKE97,0530007T)) RBAEEE
A (EEREERAR,6060007T
(2019%F + AR¥14,0450007T)) HIEUL
AR FCETTIRRIRT A,

Gross carrying amount A AREE
2020 2019
2020 20194
Average Trade Average Trade
loss rate receivables loss rate receivables
FHERE ESRWER THBEX BIHRIRR
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR¥ETR ARETT
Internal credit rating NEEETR
Low risk RE # 46,202 # 52,957
Watch list BxgE # 142,312 # 302,555
Doubtful 5 3.6% 24,501 1.0% 25390
213,015 380,902
# The percentage was lower than 0.1%. # B LARR0.1% ©

ELERERLA

20204 3}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Contd)

Financial risk management objectives and polices (Contd)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. The Group rebutted
the presumption of default under ECL model for trade receivables over 90 days
past due based on good credit quality and repayment records history for those
customers. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated. Due to greater financial uncertainty
triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has increased the expected loss
rates in the current year as there is higher risk that a prolonged pandemic could led

to increased credit default rates.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment allowance of RMB732,000
(2019: impairment allowance reversed of RMB180,000) in the profit or loss
based on the collective assessment. During the vear ended 3| December 2020
no impairment allowance (2019: nil) and impairment allowance of RMB8 18,000
(2019: RMB2,892,000) were made in the profit or loss on debtors with significant

outstanding balances and credit-impaired, respectively.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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PREREEEBEREE (£)
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T EER DERNEH AR ERE N
BEABREORME  LIRAFILE
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B pRZAEEPNERERBRE
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PERBEAONRR - EEESTHE
Bazni NRENFEREFAZE
BAE K} - R Covid-19KRITEI BN BE
cRTREMTE  ENRAARTH
RREREREOX LANERES @ &
SERERS T AFEMNEHREBRE o

HE20F12A3IBLEFE - ERER
AR ERERE AR 732,0007T -
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 33. MKEREEEERBX(Z)
(Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and polices (Contd) BERBEEEEREEK (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd) EEmE R ETE (E)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised TREREBECDERNEZEK
for trade receivables under the simplified approach. B FEREREEEEEE -
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit - impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
TFHEHEH FESES
FEFR FEBSR
(RELEEERE) (BEEERE) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETR AR®EFT

As at | January 2019

Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at | January 2019:
— Impairment losses recognised
— Transfer to credit-impaired
— Impairment losses reversed
— Write-offs

New financial assets originated

As at 31 December 2019
Changes due to financial instruments

recognised as at | January 2020

R2019F1 818 511 13611 14,122
SR T A BMEHRN
2019%F 1 A IHEHER

— REEE®ER - 4269 4269
-~ EREEERE (161) 6l -
— BEEERD (205) (1377) (1582)
— MEH - 2619) (2,619)
EENHEREE 25 - 25
2019124318 170 14,045 14,215

SRT A HmE
720205 | AIHEHER

— Impairment losses recognised — FEEERR 854 2,027 2,881
— Transfer to credit-impaired —EREEERE (15) 5 -
— Impairment losses reversed — FEEERD (155) (1,209) (1,364)
— Write-offs — HsA - (5272) (5272)
New financial assets originated EEReREE 33 - 33
As at 3| December 2020 20205 12A31H 887 9,606 10,493
BLtERABRALA 233

20204 3}



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 33. MKEREEEERBX(Z)
(Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and polices (Contd) BERBEEEEREEK (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd) EEmE R ETE (E)
Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables are mainly due to: EHRBEFNEERBEY T Eh
i
2020 2019
2020% W95
Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL
FRORARERR FEARAEERA
#n, (h) 1#&m,/ OB
Not credit- Credit- Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired impaired impaired
AREGERE REREAE ARLESHE  RLEERE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETR ARETT ARETT
Trade debtors with a gross camying amounts of EEREEARE204/,0007
RMB2,041,000 (2019: RMB4,430,000) defautted (20195 :
and transferred to credit-impaired ARE44300007T)
ROTBEEEHED
BARIER (15) 2,041 (161) 4430
Wiite-off of the credit-impaired trade debtors with ~ WIS E EBEEREES
a gross carrying amounts of RMB5,272,000 ARES52720007T
(2019: RMB2,619,000) as there is evidence (2019 : AR#2619,0007T)
indicating that the Group has no realistic & SRS
prospect of recovery BREERET
AEEERENERANS - (5,272) - (2619)
Settlernent in full of trade debtors with 2 BREEARE 12090007
gross carrying amount of RMB1,209,000 (2019% - AE%1377,0007C)
(2019: RMBI,377,000) NEFRNENEREE (155) (1,209) 205 (1377)

234
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Contd)

Financial risk management objectives and polices (Contd)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating
that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. None of the trade receivables that have been written

off is subject to enforcement activities.

Credit risk is not increased significantly since initial recognition for other receivables
and all gross amounts balance of other receivables RMB196,990,000 (2019:
RMB177,735,000) are rated as low risk and assessed with |12-month ECL that no
material impairment losses have been recognised as at 3|1 December 2020 and
2019.

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases and certain trade receivables,
bank balances, trade payables and bank borrowings of the Group are denominated
in HK$, USD, and EUR, currencies other than the functional currency of the
Company's principal subsidiaries, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

EHBRERLA
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33.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

Bk EE B R RBUR (8)

PREREEEBEREE (£)
EEmE R BEFG ()
EEERBTNEBARGREYKE
BEEFENERARE  fin - EHA
BARACEARERF - AREMH
R RN - CHMIEE 5B IKRARS
PERTEBTE -

Hib R RRNE SRR B BRI
VEBEERN  BEMERETRNZ
EasrriaEE AR 196,990,000 (2019
F: AR¥E177,735,00070) W AKR
B - SEEEN 1218 ABERE BB T AT
fly + MAR2020F K% 2019F 12 A31 8 »
HRBUERENREEE

R

EREE

AEEEINEHERRE - AAKEN
ATESRYIRN - R4 BEHE
MR RIRITEFAB T - ETRET
AHE (REEBLFARATEFAT
HWINEEER) - EARKEAAEINER
B o N5 B B A 30 (] SN SR B
KA EERESERIMNERR - &
BRE LM EARNIMNER R o
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REMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

33.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and polices (Contd)
Market risk (Contd)
Currency risk (Contd)
The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets

and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020
2020
Assets
gE
RMB’000

33.

Bk EE B R RBUR (8)

PREREEEBEREE (£)
5 EkE ()

EXmR (&)

Liabilities
=R
RMB’ 000

AR®BTR ARBTR

Rl E PRAREEAINEHENERE
ENEBAENREEDT

2019
20195
Assets Liabilities
BE AfE
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

HK$ BT 11,270 349 22463 4592
UsD ESTH 296,752 31,915 157,804 32,607
EUR BT 353 = 32,746 -

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2019: 5%) change in
RMB against HK$, USD and EUR. The 5% (2019: 5%) represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in the foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis of the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period have been determined based on the adjustment of translation
of the monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period for 5%
(2019: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A negative number below indicates a
decrease in post-tax profit where RMB strengthens against HK$, USD and EUR. For
5% (2019: 5%) weakening of RMB against HK$, USD and EUR, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on post-tax profit.
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Contd)

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020

BEA0FENARILEE

Bk EE B R RBUR (8)

Financial risk management objectives and polices (Contd) BBRREERRREGK ()
Market risk (Contd) m5EE (&)
Currency risk (Contd) EEER (&)
2020 2019
20206 20196
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
If RMB strengthens against HK$ TWARE B TAE (539) (891)
If RMB strengthens against USD MARERETHE (11,302) (5312)
If RMB strengthens against EUR WARS LB THE (15) (1392)
The Group has entered into currency forward contracts to manage its exposure to AEENEREHANUCHARGEL
USD from recognised liabilities. ETHETERE -

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk which arises from pledged
bank balances (note 21), fixed rate bank borrowings (note 24) and lease liabilities
(note 25). The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk which arises from
bank balances (note 21) and floating rate bank borrowings (note 24). The Group
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest
rates on bank balances and SHIBOR arising from the Group's RMB denominated
borrowings. The Group aims at keeping borrowings at variable rates. The Group
manages its interest rate exposures by assessing the potential impact arising
from any interest rate movements based on interest rate level and outlook. The
management will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and floating rates

and ensure they are within reasonable range.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant

interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The positive number below indicates decrease in post-tax loss/increase in post-tax

profit, and vice versa.

EHBRERLA
20204 3§

ERERS  ARFENREBRIL TR

FRRERE @ B SRE ST Rk
MRERINERR
FIE

AEEmEDEMRITERS (FE20)
ERRITE (H5E24) RAEERE (K

RE25) EAMATFENERR - K&
EmEERITAR (HEE21) KF B RTT

1ﬂ7§£(ﬁﬁ.&24)?Eéﬁfﬁémgﬂ%ﬂ
o AEEMBRERENERARTIEZE

FRAEBIAAREHERN GRS LR
SRITH A R SHIBORF XK E) - AEE
E’]ET“ELX/%@J?T'JThﬁFA AEHE

EBREN RN Rl A E AR
BHELNECYEEHEANKER -

EIRE B E B ST BN R AR L
Bl EEREAESIEHBER o

INEEE B A A R R R R
w@@A&$ﬂﬁﬂw*mEﬁﬁx*
ZREPEATIRER -

ATEHRTH&ERRD Bk
B RZINA

237



238

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 33. MIBEBEEEERBEE)
(Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and polices (Contd) BERBEEEEREEK (&)
Market risk (Contd) m5EE (&)
Interest rate risk (Contd) B (&)
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
(note a) (note a)
(Ff&Ea) (Hf5ta)
If the interest rates increase fisi K= £
Decrease in post-tax loss/increase in post-tax profit BigEERD / BiEFELm 230 166
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
(note b) (note b)
(Ff&ED) (Kf7Eb)
If the interest rates decrease fisl B R T2
Increase in post-tax loss/decrease in post-tax profit Bl BB,/ BEFER D (219) (143)
Notes: BiEE -

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end

of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at

the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rate on bank balances had been 10 basis points higher and interest rate on
short-term floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis points higher and all other
variables were held constant. These represent management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

If interest rate on bank balances denominated in HK$ and other foreign currencies had
been 0.1 basis point and 10 basis points lower, respectively, and interest rate on short-term
floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis points lower and all other variables were
held constant. These represent management’s assessment of the reasonably possible

change in interest rates.
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Contd)

Financial risk management objectives and polices (Contd)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance

with loan covenants.

Banking facilities available to the Group amounting to approximately
RMB797,000,000 (2019: RMB498,000,000) granted the Group for the bank

borrowings, bills payables and letter of credits.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a source of liquidity. As at 31 December
2020, the Group has available unutilised banking facilities of approximately
RMB506,2 18,000 (2019: RMB238,522,000).

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay.
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33.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

Bk EE B R RBUR (8)

PREREEEBEREE (£)
HBELmEE

RRBELRRERED  AEFEER
RE—EXFORENREFEY <
BEEBGARNENAKELERS
P RAERRERERBDNTE - B
BERRITERNERRBRETER
R4 -

AEECEBRITRENARKE
797,0000007T (20194 = AR #498000000
7)) ARERASENRITER B
NERRERE -

AEBRBRIBERIEATDES R
R e R2020F 128318 - AEEEAH
RARMBIRITRVE XA R®506,218,0007C
(2019%F + AR#238,522,0007T) °

TRAXKESRARSR FENZHA
HOFEE © TROEASERREFRA
WP RHREERABENRTRES

=E |
//\Li%%%% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 33. MKEREEEERBX(Z)
(Contd)
Financial risk management objectives and polices (Contd) HREREERERKE (&)
Liquidity risk (Contd) BEESEE (&)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest ERHFIFERTEERSRE o HF &
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve R EFRAE - BRIFESERRE
at the end of the reporting period. HARMF R 43t o
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective  Repayable 0to 3o 6l to 91to I8ldaysto  Iyearto undiscounted ~ amountat
interestrate ondemand  30days  60days  90days 180 days | year Syears  cashflows 3| December
i 332! BAFR RANA
ERAZ ZREEE 008 E0B 6IEZNA 9EINE BIAEIE IESF  RERE  WEEE
% RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'00  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000
% ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR
2020 00%
Trade and other payables B REMERER NA 153460 138807 113259 158913 47588 - - 60T 60
FER
Bank and other bomowings TR EA{EF
- Fixed nterest rate -ERHE 455 - 548 M8 40548 1089 108794 - SIS 15T
~Floating nterestrate~~ — FEIF% 400 - 67 67 6 0 2013 - 054 20000
Derivative financial fTESBIR
instruments N/A = = = = = 1,349 = 1349 1,349
TER
Lease fabies HEAR 600 - 0 548 2 139 39 A’ 9434 8771
153460 139842 (14422 199948 50246 134221 2732 194871 786,722
2009 WI9F
Trade and other payables ~ ERREMEREN NA 67078 BLI3 85910 84089 131178 - - 6948 649,458
AaH
Bank borrowings RN
- Fixed iterest rate -ERHE 441 - M50 B 0B M3 - m 78882
~Foatinginterestrate ~~ —EFIE 490 - 8 ) i) wo N8 - 20654 20000
Dividend payeble EffkE NIA 412 - - - - - - 412 413
Oyli
Lease libilties HEaR 600 - 506 378 362 1,149 2026 58] 10282 9429
271210 82021 91,720 84,801 173115 56550 5861 765278 761901

The amount included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative

financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to

those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BZ00F12A31ALFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 33. MKEREEEERBX(Z)
(Contd)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments SRMIANATETE
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial ARAIESRR  BEEKNATAGE
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial BHBrNeREENSRABNER
statements approximate their fair values at the end of the reporting period. The fair BEREANRERARNATERE - &5
value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with BERGRABBENATERAREER
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis. A REFRFAERESNMETE
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2020 A2020E 12 A3 BN A FEZR
Level 2
EFH
RMB’ 000
ARBTR
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAVESARSEZEMAE
Currency forward contracts EEEIEH 1,349
Fair value Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s)
TREE AFHER APESFR HERTRBR@A
31 December 2020
20206128310
Currency forward contracts Liabilities - Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated based on
RMBI,349,000 forward exchange rates (from observable forward exchange

rates at the end of the reporting period) and contracted forward
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of
various counterparties.
8- & MBERLRE ARRSREDREBEREX CRERERE
AR 1,349,0007T AN BRERER) METARMHNE - WiRRRAE
RPGUF 2 EERR 2R RFH AR fEE -

A
Al
F
il
&
o>
[Eay
it
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

34.

35.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The employees of the Group are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the local government. MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI
Xian are required to contribute 14%, 20% and 20% (2019: 14%, 20% and 20%),
respectively, of the payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of these entities with respect to the retirement benefit

scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions made by the Group amounted to
RMBI 1,383,000 (2019: RMB25,003,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

34.

35.

RIREFIFTE
AEENEB A RNRINERE
IRB AT EIMARE o BRI -
L E R REL %A RlIR T E KA
14% ~ 20% K% 20% (20194 : 14% ~ 20%
%20%) RIR KM BIE L R RIER
BAMES - ZERAIMRKEFE
EEERMMEHIEEMRNK -

BHE2020F12A3IBLLEFE + K
SEELORKEMAEMRAA
R #11,383,0007C (20194 : AR¥
25,003,0007T) °

BMETHAELRARENHER

TRAMAREREEBIELREN
28 EASRIRSED - WER
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BRBMELERERENRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

35, MERBMELRENYHRE)

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES (Contd)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities for the year ended 3|

December 2020 and 2019:

HE2020FE K2019F 12831 A IEE

B REESMELOREHRENT

Total
liabilities
from
Dividend Bank Lease financing
payable  borrowings liabilities activities
BEEE
ERkE  RITER HERE AfRR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®ETT ARBTT ARETE
As at | January 2019 20191 A 1A - 196,800 2271 199,071
Financing cash flows HERERE (10303)  (107,849) (3,150)  (121,302)
Non-cash changes HEH
Finance costs BT AR - 9931 309 10,240
Dividend recognised as distribution HERIED IREIRE
(note 12) (P5E12) 14,435 - - 14,435
New lease entered I FHE - - 9,999 9,999
At 31 December 2019 201912431 B 4,132 98,882 9,429 112,443
Financing cash flows MERERE (19.212) 61,022 (5,808) 36,002
Non-cash changes B2 EE)
Finance costs TR - 4671 62l 5292
Dividend recognised as distribution RIED KA S
(note 12) (PEE12) 5,080 - - 15,080
New lease entered FIHHE - - 4529 4529
At 31 December 2020 20205 12 A31 B - 164,575 8,771 173,346

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2020 #§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS SRk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEALRE
()  Related party balances and transactions @) BEATEHRRRS
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, BRZEREVERRZERES
the Group has following transactions and balances with related parties. oh o REEERYIBLBNZSH
RAEHRIT o
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
Relationships ~ BA& Nature of balances/transactions 7 RINE AR®BTRT ARETT
Related party ~ M/ Lease payment paid BENHEERE 1,267 1,056
(note i) (Bif5Ei)  Lease payment paid EREHHEER
for short-term leases MEFIE - 222
Lease liabilities HERE 1,423 2571
Interest on lease liabilities MEEENE 120 133
Rental deposit receivable EiEE RS 222 [0
Other payables (note i) Hoh FEAT AR (P =il I I
Associates Bt AT Trade sales BHHE 928 333
Trade purchases BH5EE 3314 -
Trade receivable B 5 REINEIE 471 471
Trade payables B HRENFE 3267 800
Other payables (note i) Hoh fE A RIE (P&t 201 200
Notes: P

() WEERARAMTEENAAESE
£

(i) Mr. Hu, an executive Director of the Company is also a director of the related

party.

(iy  H2020FK2019F12A31H - & Ak

(i) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the balances are non-trade in nature and
BHILE - AREREEER -

repayable on demand.

244 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

For year ended 31 December 2020
HZ000F A3 BILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 36. BEBEALRS (&)
(b)  Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEEBASHEHEM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management EERTEEREHEMKENE
were as follows: B
2020 2019
20206 20196
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETTT

Short-term employee benefits EHIEE A 12,225 10,464
Post-employment benefits BER 2 2 A 155 148
12,380 10,612
The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined having BEERFETHRAENHEHMOR
regard to the performance of individuals and market trends. BEARRETSBEMET -
The retirement benefits scheme contributions of one director were paid by MM IOFTEL - BE2020F K
SZWS for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as set in note 10. 019F12A31BIEEFE - &4

FREX N —REZNRKEM

ATEIEER -

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
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For year ended 31 December 2020
BE00F12A31BILFE

37.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
As at the end of both reporting periods, the particulars of the Company's

subsidiaries are as follows:

Place and date

of establishment/

Issued and fully

paid registered

37. RRABREEFLTFEE
RWRERELER - AQF TR BB

T~

Equity interest

attributable

Name of subsidiary incorporation capital/ share capital to the Group  Principal activities
R/ R ERITRER F&E
FRAER BB B SRER/RE EikE IEXK
2020 & 2019 2020 & 2019
2020FR2019F 20205 R2019F
MOBI Jian (note i) the PRC RMB267,000,000 100%  Production and sale of antennas
23 May 2006 and radio frequency subsystems
B &% (M) 7 AR#267,000,0007 100% AEERBHEREM
200655 A23H BIRBAIET AR
MOBI Shenzhen (note ii) the PRC RMB220,000,000 100%  Production and sale of antennas
12 August 1999 and radio frequency subsystems
BRI (Bitatin) i AR¥220,0000005 100% EERHERRM
1999487 128 BEEFATRAR
MOBI Xian (note iii) the PRC RMB 120,000,000 100%  Production and sale of antennas
29 April 2008 and radio frequency subsystems
ELr (i) i AR #120,000,0007 100% AEERBHEXREM
200854 A29H BIREAIETRR
MOBI HK (note iv) Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100%  Trading of antennas and radio
I5 December 2010 frequency subsystems
BLE (M) BE 10,000,000/ 7T 100% RENEREFETERES
0105128158
Notes: BifsE

() MOBI Jian is directly held by the Company and a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the

PRC.

(ii) MOBI Shenzhen is directly held by MOBI Jian and a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the

PRC.

(i)~ MOBI Xian is directly held by MOBI Shenzhen and a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in

the PRC.

(v)  MOBIHKis directly held by the Company.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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(i) BhAEZARE R RPRINGEE
XEERA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in e B AS 3Rk B

For year ended 31 December 2020

BEA0FENARILEE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 38. AQBHHARREE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT

Non-current Assets EREEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries PFARRGELTIRE 375,761 375,761
Amounts due from subsidiaries i G R/NCIE ] = 53,595
375,761 429,356

Current Assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEMF R EIFIE 90,553 35,023
Bank balances and cash RITERLE S 10,218 22,331
100,771 57,354
Current liabilities RENAE

Other payable Hofh FEITBR X 160 260
Amounts due to subsidiaries JESF R EIFIE 17,075 1,139
Dividend payable FERTAR B - 4,132
17,235 5,531
Net Current Assets RENE B 83,536 51,823
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEERRBDAE 459,297 481,179

Capital and Reserves BRA K
Share capital (note 28) PR (Bif5E28) 6 6
Reserves s 459291 481,173
Total Equity ks 459,297 481,179

ELERERLA

2020 #§
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38.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Contd)

Movement in reserves

38. AAFMBRRBRE (F)

HERE

Share option

Share reserve Retained
premium (note 28) earnings Total
BRERE
R EE (Pt £28) REBF st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®TR AR®BTx
At | January 2019 R2019%1 /18 434,656 28,029 31,340 494,025
Profit and the total comprehensive FEMBR
income for the year FH AR - - 2,093 2,093
Transfer of share option reserve PR IS AR B
upon forfeiture of share options B - (2,268) 2,268 -
Dividend recognised as distribution HRIEDRAR S (14,435) - - (14,435)
Repurchase and cancellation of shares Bt BE el K st e (510) - - (510)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%F 128318 419,711 2576 35,701 481,173
Profit and the total comprehensive FEMBR
income for the year FHEERE - - (6,316) (6,316)
Transfer of share option reserve PR W R A A B
upon forfeiture of share options ERERERE - (575) 575 -
Dividend recognised as distribution BERIEDRAIBLE (15,080) - - (15,080)
Repurchase and cancellation of shares AT e (486) - - (486)
At 31 December 2020 20205 12 A31 B 404,145 25,186 29,960 459,291

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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